PREMIUM
LEISURE CORP. SECURY

Notice of Annual Stockholders’ Meeting |+ = 71 2018
April 23,2018 | 9:00 a.m. 140 AN i
SMX Convention Center Py
Seashell Lane, Mall of Asia Complex, Pasay Clty'

To All Stockholders:

The annual meeting of the stockholders of PREMIUM LEISURE CORP. will be held on
April 23, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. at the Function Room 1, SMX Convention Center, Seashell Lane, Mall of
Asia Complex, Pasay City.

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:

1. Call to Order

2. Certification of Notice and Quorum

3. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on April 24, 2017

4. Approval of 2017 Operations and Results

5. Ratification of all Acts of the Board of Directors, Board Committees and the Management
during their Term of Office

6. Election of Directors for 2018-2019

7. Appointment of External Auditor

8. Amendment of the Second Article of the Articles of Incorporation to Reflect Change in
Primary Purpose of the Company

9. Other Matters

10. Adjournment

Each agenda item for approval is explained in the Definitive Information Sheet, with brief details
and rationale in the attached Annex “A”.

The Board of Directors has fixed the end of trading hours of the Philippine Stock Exchange on
March 23, 2018 as the record date for the determination of stockholders entitled to the notice of, to attend
and to vote at said meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Registration for those who are personally attending the meeting will start at 8:00 a.m. and end
promptly at 8:45 a.m. In case you cannot personally attend the meeting, you may accomplish the attached
proxy form (which need not be notarized) and file it with the office of the Corporate Secretary at the 33"
Floor The Orient Square, F. Ortigas Jr. Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City at least three (3) days before the
date of the meeting in accordance with the By-Laws of the Company. Proxies submitted shall be validated
on April 20, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. at the 5™ Floor, Tower A, Two E-Com C enter, Palm Coast Avenue, Mall
of Asia Complex, Pasay City.

For your convenience in registering your attendance, please bring proof of identification such as
passport, driver’s license, or company [.D.

Pasig City, 01 March 2018.

A.MER B. SERRANO
Corporate Secretary
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ANNEX “A”

Details and Rationale for Agenda Items for Approval

Agenda Item No. 3: Approval of Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on April 24, 2017

The Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on April 24, 2017 were posted on the Company’s
website: http://www.premiumleisurecorp.convinvestor-relations/disclosures/other-reports  within twenty-four
hours from adjournment of the meeting. Copies of the Minutes of the annual stockholders’ meeting held on
April 24, 2017 are available for inspection during office hours at the office of the Corporate Secretary and will
also be made available during the ASM. The results of last year’s annual stockholders’ meeting were also
timely disclosed to The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. and the Securities and Exchange Commission. The
Minutes are subject to stockholders’ approval during this year’s stockholders™ meeting.

Item 4: Approval of 20817 Operations and Results

The Company’s 2017 performance results have been summarized in the Annual Report, which includes the
Audited Financial Statements (AFS) of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017. The AFS, as
audited by the external auditor which expressed an unqualified opinion therefor, have been reviewed and
approved by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors. Stockholders will be given an opportunity to
raise questions regarding the operations and report of the Company during the annual stockholders’ meeting.

Item S: Ratification of all Acts of the Board of Directors. Board Committees and the Management During
Their Term of Office

All actions, proceedings and contracts entered into, as well as resolutions made, including approvals of
significant related party transactions, of the Board of Directors, the Board Committees and the Management
from the last annual stockholders’ meeting held on April 24, 2017 will be presented to the shareholders for their
approval and ratification. The Company’s performance in 2017, as detailed in the Annual Report, is attributed
to the strategic directions and key policies set by the Board of Directors which were effectively executed and
complied with by management in conformance with good corporate governance and ethical best practices. The
ratification of the acts undertaken by the Board of Directors, Board Committees, and Management is subject to
stockholders’ approval during this year’s stockholders’ meeting.

Item No. 6: Election of Directors for 2018-2019

Incumbent Directors of the Company, including Independent Directors, have been pre-qualified by the
Company’s Corporate Governance Committee for election as directors for 2018-2019. Their proven
competence, expertise and qualifications based on current regulatory standards, will help sustain the Company’s
solid performance for the benefit of all its shareholders. The profiles of the Board of Directors are contained in
the Definitive Information Statement for reference of the stockholders and are likewise posted on the
Company’s website. Directors for 2018-2019 will be elected during this year’s stockholders’ meeting.

Item No. 7: Appointment of External Auditor

Upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board approved and endorses for stockholder approval the
re-appointment of SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. (SGV&Co.) as the Company’s exiernal auditor for 2018.
SGV&Co. is one of the top auditing firms in the country and is duly accredited with the SEC. The appointment
of SGV&Co. as external auditor of the Company for 2018 is subject to stockholders’ approval during this year’s
stockholders’ meeting.

Item No. 8: Amendment of Second Article of the Articles of Incorporation

The Board of Directors approved the change in the Company’s primary purpose to include a provision that the
Company shall not engage in, and removing any reference to engaging in, real estate business. For this to be
effective, the Second Article of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation needs to be amended. Discussion on
the amendment of Articles of Incorporation is included in the Definitive Information Statement. This proposed
amendment requires vote of stockholders representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock
of the Company, without prejudice to the appraisal right of dissenting stockholders. The proposal to amend the
rticles of Incorporation will be presented for stockholder approval during the Annual Stockholders” Meeting.



PROXY FORM

The undersigned stockholder REMIUM LEISURE CORP.

appoints

(the Company) hereby
or inb¥ence, the Chairman of the meeting,

attorney and proxy, with power of substitutionptesent and vote all shares registered in histhadme
as proxy of the undersigned stockholder, at theuahNeeting of Stockholders of the Company on April
23, 2018 and at any of the adjournments thereati®purpose of acting on the following matters:

as

1. Approval of minutes of previous meeting
held on April 24, 2017.
No

Yes Abstain

2. Approval of 2017 Operations and Results.

Yes No Abstain

3. Ratification of the acts of the Board of Direstand
the management during their term of office.
No

Yes Abstain

4. Election of Directors.
_____ Vote for all nominees listed below
Willy N. Ocier
Armin Antonio B. Raquel-Santos
A. Bayani K. Tan
Exequiel P. Villacorta, Jr.
Joseph C. Tan (Independent)
Juan Victor S.
(Independent)

Roman Felipe S. Reyes (Independ

Withhold authority for all nominees listed abo

Withhold authority to vote for the nominees
listed below:

Tanjuatco

5. Election of Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. as extér
auditors.
No

Yes Abstain

6. Amendment of Second Article of the
Articles of Incorporation to reflect change in
Primary Purpose of the Company

No

Yes Abstain

7. At their discretion, the proxies named above
authorized to vote upon such other matters prog
come before the meeting.
No

Yes Abstain

ent)

are
erly

PRINTED NAME OF STOCKHOLDER

SIGNATURE OF STOCKHOLDER/
AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY

DATE:



THIS PROXY SHOULD BE RECEIVED BY THE CORPORATE SEERARY AT LEAST THREE (3) DAYS
BEFORE THE DATE SET FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING AS PRONED IN THE BY-LAWS.

THIS PROXY IS NOT REQUIRED TO BE NOTARIZED, AND WHEPROPERLY EXECUTED, WILL BE VOTED
IN THE MANNER AS DIRECTED HEREIN BY THE STOCKHOLDE). IF NO DIRECTION IS MADE, THIS
PROXY WILL BE VOTED “FOR” THE ELECTION OF ALL NOMINEES AND FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE
MATTERS STATED ABOVE AND FOR SUCH OTHER MATTERS ABAY PROPERLY COME BEFORE THE
MEETING IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED IN THE INFORMATION STATEMENT AND/OR AS

RECOMMENDED BY MANAGEMENT OR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A STOCKHOLDER GIVING A PROXY HAS THE POWER TO REVAKIT AT ANY TIME BEFORE THE RIGHT
GRANTED IS EXERCISED. A PROXY IS ALSO CONSIDERED RPEKED IF THE STOCKHOLDER ATTENDS
THE MEETING IN PERSON AND EXPRESSED HIS INTENTIONDTVOTE IN PERSON.

THIS PROXY FORM SHALL BE VALID FOR FIVE (5) YEARS ROM DATE HEREOF.



SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE

l, , Filipind, lepal age and with office address at
, do hereby certify that:

1. I am the duly appointed Corporate Secretary of (the
“Corporation”), a corporation duly organized andsérg under and by virtue of the laws of the Rdub
of the Philippines, with office address at

2. Based on the records, during the lawfully comeemeeting of the Board of Directors of the Corfiora
held on , the following resmis were passed and approved:

“‘RESOLVED, That

be authorized andrapgpas he is hereby authorized
and appointed, as the Corporation’s Proxy (the XiPoto attend all meetings of the

stockholders of Premium Leisure Corp. (PLC) whethermeeting is regular or special,
or at any meeting postponed or adjourned therefvagth,full authority to vote the shares

of stock of the Corporation held in PLC and to @gbn all matters and resolution that
may come before or presented during meetings,yoadjournments thereof, in the name,
place and stead of the Corporation.

“RESOLVED, FINALLY, That PLC be furnished with artiéied copy of this resolution
and PLC may rely on the continuing validity of thésolution until receipt of written
notice of its revocation.”

3. The foregoing resolutions have not been modifietended or revoked in accordance with the recufrds
the Corporation presently in my custody.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have signed this instrumemt i on

Printed Name and Signature of the
Corporate Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME on in .

Affiant exhibited to me his Competent Evidenceddntity by way of issued on
at .

Doc. No. ;

Page No. ;

Book No. ;

Series of



WILLY N. OCIER

EXPERIENCE /
EDUCATION

Mr. Ocier, 61, is the Chairman of the Board andebior of Premium Leisure Corp., APC Group, Irc.,

PremiumLeisure and Amusement, Inc. and AbaCore iHgddCorp. and is concurrently one of the Co-Vj
Chairpersons of Belle Corporation, and the Viceifthan of Tagaytay Highlands International Golf Clu

Inc. He is the Chairman and President of Pacifitir@ Systems Corporation, and Chairman, Presi&ent

ce
b

Chief Executive Officer of Philippine Global Commications, Inc. He is also the Chairman of Tagaytay

Midlands Golf Club, Inc., The Country Club at TagmyHighlands, Inc. and The Spa and Lodge, Incsit$e

as Director of Leisure and Resorts World Corporgtivantage Equities, Philequity Management, Inc.

Philequity Funds and Toyota Corporation Batangas.

He graduated from Ateneo de Manila University vétBachelor of Arts degree in Economics.

ARMIN ANTONIO B. RAQUEL-SANTOS

EXPERIENCE /
EDUCATION

Mr. Raquel-Santos, 50, is concurrently a Directbe, President and Chief Executive Officer of PLG In
lle

PremiumLeisure and Amusement Inc. and the Execuifiee President — Integrated Resorts of B
Corporation. He is also a Director of Pacific Oeliystems Corporation, Tagaytay Highlands Inteonati
Golf Club, Inc. and member of the Board of Trusteflglelco Resorts (Philippines) Foundation Corpiorat
Formerly, he was Chief Finance Officer of Aboitizth Inc., Cebu Industrial Park, Inc. and Mactanrixoic
Zone Il. His experience include stints with mudtiional companies such as Securities 2000 Incgépiore
Technologies Group) and First Chicago Trust Compzriyew York.

He holds a Master of Arts in Liberal Studies frorarinouth College, U.S.A. and Bachelor of Sciencg
Business Administration Major in Finance from Iddallege, U.S.A.
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ROMAN FELIPE S. REYES

EXPERIENCE /
EDUCATION

Mr. Reyes, 66, a Certified Public Accountant, is hairman of Reyes Tacandong & Co. He serves é
Independent Director of Pakistan International @omr Terminal Limited, Premium Leisure Corp., R®N
Philippine Geothermal Production Company, Pasudaticdsian Countertrade, Macawiwili Gold Minin
And Development Co., Inc., FF Cruz & Co., and Roelweisure Club. He is also a current Trustee afi

Beda College Manila, San Beda College Alabang, Bada Alumni Association Foundation, and the
of

Chairman of the Board of Governors of Nicanor ReMesnorial Foundation. He was formerly a membe
the GSIS Board of Trustees and formerly DirectoBahk of Commerce, National Reinsurance Corporal
of the Philippines and PNCC. He was a Senior Parine the Vice Chairman for Client Services 4
Accounts of SGV & Co. from 1984-2009, and the Rtest of Knowledge Institute in 2009.

Mr. Reyes earned his Bachelor of Science degr€ainmerce, major in Accounting, from San Beda Cell
in 1972, and obtained his MBA degree in Financenftbe University of Detroit in 1975.
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JOSEPH C. TAN

EXPERIENCE /
EDUCATION

Atty. Joseph C. Tan, 60, is the Founding PartnevlOfST Law Firm from September 2006 to present.
was a Special Counsel for the Agus Cruz & Manzaaw IOffice from 2004 to August 2006. He was
Associate of Puno & Puno Law Offices from 1991 893. He is currently an Independent Director of 2
Group, Inc. and Pacific Online Systems Corporatind LMG Chemicals Corporation. He was a direcfo
San Carlos Bioenergy Corporation. He was also ecttir of Philippine Bank of Communications frg
September 2010 to August 2011.

Atty. Tan holds a Bachelor of Arts with a Major Business Administration degree from University ahd
Francisco, USA (Class of 1978). He also holds ehBbr of Laws degree from the Ateneo de Manila €ysl
of Law, Makati City, graduating with honors (Cla¥s1985).
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A.BAYANI K. TAN =

EXPERIENCE /
EDUCATION

Mr. A. Bayani K. Tan, 62, Filipino, is a Non-Exetug Director of the Corporation. He is also a Dice,
Corporate Secretary or both of the following listennpanies: Belle Corporation, Coal Asia Holdings,,
Discovery World Corporation, I-Remit, Inc., Paci®nline Systems Corporation, Philequity Divideéfield
Fund, Inc., Philequity Dollar Income Fund, Inc.,ilBquity Fund, Inc., Philequity Peso Bond Fur
Inc., Philequity PSE Index Fund, Inc., TKC Meté@lsrporation, Tagaytay Highlands International G
Club, Inc.,Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, IncThe Country Club at Tagaytay Highlands, Inc., Bpa and
Lodge at Tagaytay Highlands, Inc. and Vantage E&gjitnc.

Mr. Tan is also a Director and the Corporate Secyetf Sterling Bank of Asia Inc. He is the Managi
Partner of the law offices of Tan Venturanza VaJdéanaging Director/President of Shamrock Developin
Corporation, Director of Destiny LendFund, Inc.,sBwal Laboratories, Inc. and Pure Energy Holdi
Corporation, President of Catarman Chamber Elemgr8ahool Foundation, Inc., Managing Trustee
SCTan Foundation, Inc., Trustee and Treasurer diisRe Foundation, Inc. and Trustee and Corpo
Secretary of St. Scholastica's Hospital, Inc.

Mr. Tan holds a Master of Laws degree from New Ydrkversity and earned his Bachelor of Laws deg
from the University of the Philippines where he vaasember of the Order of the Purple Feather (Oditege

of Law Honor Society) and ranked ninth in his cldds. Tan passed the bar examinations in 1981 where

placed sixth. He has a Bachelor of Arts major ititleal Science degree from the San Beda Collegenf
where he graduated Class Valedictorian and wasdmadahe medal for Academic Excellence.

Other Information: A complaint for Estafa has bédied against Universal Leisure Club, Inc. (ULChet
Universal Rightfield Property Holdings, Inc., areetUniversal Leisure Corp., as well as their officend
directors, including Atty. Tan, former CorporatecBgary of these companies. The Complaint was diseali
by the Office of the City Prosecutor of Manila (OQfh March 18, 2013. Complainants belatedly file
Motion for Reconsideration which was denied by @@P on June 16, 2014. A Petition for Review dg
March 31, 2014 was filed by the Complainant betbee Department of Justice (DOJ). On August 7, 2(
Atty. Tan filed his Comment to the said Petitiamal Resolution dated April 17, 2015, the PetitmnReview
was denied and the DOJ dismissed the Complairistafa.
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JUAN VICTOR S. TANJUATCO

EXPERIENCE /
EDUCATION

Mr. Tanjuatco, 71, is an Independent Director oMéntures, Inc., and a Director of Ketmar Fast Fpod

Corporation. Previously, he served in the sameagpan the board of Insular Savings Bank and Agkgitt

Development Bank. A career banker, he was the fofnesident of Export and Industry Bank and was

assigned to various managerial and executive pasitit Credit Agricole Indosuez in Manila, New Zewl
and Hongkong, where, after 21 years, he retirddegsity General Manager in Manila.

Mr. Tanjuatco holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree immmics from the Ateneo de Manila University (cum

laude) and a Masters in Business Administratiorjpria Finance, from the Wharton School, University|
Pennsylvania.

EXEQUIEL P. VILLACORTA, JR.

EXPERIENCE /
EDUCATION

Mr. Villacorta, 72, is an elected Director of BD@asing and Finance, Inc. Prior to this positionyas a

Director of Equitable PCI Bank, EBC Insurance Bmalge, and Maxicare Healthcare Corporation. He was

the former Chairman of EBC Strategic Holdings Cogpion, EBC Investments (now BDO Strategic

Holdings), Jardine Equitable Finance Corporatidrat8gic Property Holdings, PCIB Properties, Eduléa

Data Center, and PCI Automation Center. He wasaRy@sident and CEO of Banco De Oro Universal Bank
and TA Bank of the Philippines, and was Vice Presidof the Private Development Corporation of the

Philippines. He was Senior Adviser and BSP Corgralf Equitable PCI Bank and PBCom, and Advise
the Board of PCI Capital Corporation.

Mr. Villacorta holds a Bachelor of Science degme@usiness Administration from De La Salle Univers
and a Master’s degree in Business Management tnerAsian Institute of Management.

to



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-I1S

Information Statement Pursuant to Section 20
of the Securities Regulation Code

1. Check the appropriate box
[1 Preliminary Information Statement
[X] Definitive Information Statement

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charBRREMIUM LEISURE CORP.

3. Province, country or other jurisdiction of imporation or organization:
Philippines

4, SEC ldentification NumbeAS093-009289
5. BIR Tax ldentification Numbef03-457-827

6. Address of principal office and Postal Code:
5th Floor, Tower A, Two E-Com Center, Palm Coast &enue, Mall of Asia Complex, Pasay City

7. Registrant’s telephone number, including arefed®32) 662-8888

8. Date, time, and place of the meeting of sectnitgers:

Date 23 April 2018 (Monday)
Time : 9:00 A.M.
Venue : Function Room 1, SMX Convention Center, Sahell Lane, Mall of Asia

Complex, Pasay City

9. Approximate date on which the Information Stagatris to be sent or given to security holders:
23 March 2018

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections @8 l&h of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of deaépplicable only to corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of CommonlS@atstanding
Common Stock 31,627,310,000 (As of 28 February 2018)

11. Are any or all of Registrant’s securities listen a Stock Exchange?

Common Shares Yes [ X] No[ ]
Preferred Shares Yes[ ] No [ X]

If so disclose name of the Exchangghe Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE REQUE STED
NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Date, time and place of meeting of securitigolders

(a) Date - 23 April 2018 (Monday)
Time - 9:00 A.M.
Place - Function Room 1, SMX Convention Center, Seashell Lane, Mall of

Asia Complex, Pasay City, Metro Manila

The approximate date on which the Information $tetet will be sent or given to security holders
is on23 March 2018

(b) The complete mailing address of the princigféite of Premium Leisure Corp. (“the Company”)
is:

5th Floor, Tower A, Two E-Com Center, Palm Coast Agnue, Mall of Asia Complex, Pasay
City

Iltem 2. Dissenters’ Right of Appraisal

The following items subject to approval in the Aah&tockholders’ Meeting oApril 23, 2018,  afford
dissenting stockholders the right of appraisalindef to be the right of any stockholder to dissemt demand
payment of the fair value of his shares:

Amendment of the Second Article of the Company'sicdes of Incorporation to reflect change in
Primary Purpose of the Company;

In case the right of appraisal will be exercised¢ct®dn 82 of the Corporation Code provides for the
appropriate procedure, viz:

The appraisal right may be exercised by any stddeinavho shall have voted against the proposedocate
action, by making a written demand on the corporatwithin thirty (30) days after the date on whible
vote was taken for payment of the fair value ofdliares: Provided, That failure to make the demwtidn

such period shall be deemed a waiver of the apgmaght. If the proposed corporate action is inmpbated
or affected, the corporation shall pay to such ldtotder, upon surrender of the certificate(s) afckt
representing his shares, the fair value thereaffdse day prior to the date on which the vote te®n,
excluding any appreciation or depreciation in apétion of such corporate action.

If within a period of sixty (60) days from the dake corporate action was approved by the stockins]dhe
withdrawing stockholder and the corporation canagtee on the fair value of the shares, it shall be
determined and appraised by three (3) disintergstezbns, one of whom shall be named by the stéd&ho
another by the corporation and the third by thettws chosen. The findings of the majority of thpraisers
shall be final, and their award shall be paid by tlorporation within thirty (30) days after suchaavis
made: Provided, That no payment shall be made yodasenting stockholder unless the corporation has
unrestricted retained earnings in its books to ceueh payment: and Provided, further, That upomreant

by the corporation of the agreed or awarded ptlee stockholder shall forthwith transfer his shacethe
corporation.

11



Iltem 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Oppositia to Matters to be Acted Upon

(a) No person who has been a director or officexr mominee for election as director of the Compamy
associate of such persons, has a substantialstiteiect or indirect, in any matter to be actpdmu
other than the election of directors for the ye@t&2019.

(b) The Company is not aware of any director ausiéy holder who intends to oppose any actiondo b
taken by the Registrant during the stockholdersting.

CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Iltem 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Theeof

(a) As ofJanuary 31, 2018the Registrant had 31,627,310,000 common shatstanding and each share
is entitled to one vote. As dhanuary 31, 2018out of the outstanding capital stock of the Coagion,
805,360,750mmon shares &.5464%is owned by foreigners.

(b) The record date with respect to the deternonati the stockholders entitled to notice of antewat the
Annual Stockholders' Meeting Idarch 23, 2018.

(c) With respect to the election of directors ofese (7) directors, each stockholder may vote suchbyer
of shares for as many as seven (7) persons he ho@ge to be elected from the list of nominees.eor h
may cumulate said shares and give one candidateayg votes as the number of his shares multiplied
by seven (7) shall equal, or he may distribute tloenthe same principle among as many candidates as
he shall see fit, provided that the total numberaiés cast by him shall not exceed the humbeharfes
owned by him multiplied by seven (7).

(d) Security ownership of certain record and ben&fiowners and management.
a. Security Ownership of Certain Record and BenefiCiainers
The persons or groups identified in the table bedoswknown to the Company as directly or indirectly

the record or beneficial owners of more than fiegecpnt (5%) of the Company’s voting securities as
of January 31, 2018

Name of Beneficial .
Title of Name and Address of Record Owner and Citizen No. of Shares

Class Owner and Relationship with Relationship with Held
Issuer

Record Owner
Common | Belle Corporation (Belle) * Belle Corporation Filipino 24,904,904,324 78.745
(affiliate and majority
5/F Tower A, Two E-Com Center | shareholder)
Palm Coast Ave., Mall of Asia
Complex, CPB-1A Pasay City

- Percent
ship

Common | PCD Nominee Corp. (Filipino) **| (please see footnote) Filipino 6,409,582,235 20.266

G/F Makati Stock Exchange,
6767 Ayala Avenue, Makati City

*Belle Corporation is the parent company of Premilueisure Corp. The shares held by Belle
Corporation, being a corporate shareholder, skealldied or disposed of, by the persons who shall
be duly authorized by Belle for the purpose. Theurs person/s that has/have the power to vote on
the shares of Belle shall be determined upon theg@sion of its proxy form to the Company, which
is not later than three (3) days before the dateemeeting.

*PCD Nominee Corporation (“PCDNC”) is a wholly-owd subsidiary of Philippine Central
Depository, Inc. (“PCD”). The beneficial ownerssofch shares registered under the name of PCDNC
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are PCD'’s participants who hold the shares in thwin behalf or in behalf of their clients. The PCD
is prohibited from voting these shares; insteacptméicipants have the power to decide how the PCD
shares in Premium Leisure Corp. are to be votecbfA3ecember 31, 2017, Banco De Oro — Trust
Banking Group owns 2,003,480,000 shares, whicresgmt 6.335% of the Company’s outstanding
capital stock.

As of January 31, 2018805,360,755 common shares of the Company aredyaon-Filipinos,
constituting 2.5464% of the Company’s outstandiagit@l stock.

b. Security Ownership of Management

The following table shows the shares beneficialiyyed by the directors and officers of the Compangfa
January 31, 2018:

Amount* and
Title of Name of Beneficial Naturg Qf Citizenship Percent
Class Owner Beneflcm?ll
Ownership
Common Willy N. Ocier 38,888,001 Direct Filipino 123%
Common A. Bayani K. Tan 2,000,002 Direct Filipino %0
1 Direct
Common Exequiel P. Villacorta, Jr. 500,000 Indirect Filipino 0%
Common Joseph C. Tan 1 Direct Filipino 0%
Common Juan Victor S. Tanjuatco 1 Direct Filipino %0
Common Roman Felipe S. Reyes 1 Direct Filipino 0%
Common Armin B. Raquel-Santos 1,000 Direct Filipino 0%
Common Jackson T. Ongsip 0 Filipino 0%
Common Maria Neriza C. Banaria 0 Filipino 0%
Common Arthur A. Sy 20,000 Direct Filipino 0%
Common Elmer B. Serrano 0 Filipino 0%
Common Phil lvan A. Chan D Filipino 0%

*Number of shares
(3) Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More

The Company is not aware of any party which holag woting trust or any similar agreement for
5% or more of Premium Leisure Corp.’s voting sdsi

Changes in Control

On June 2, 2014, the Company’s Board of Directpps@ved to take on the gaming business and inteoést
the Belle Group. The transaction involved the saBelle of PLC’'s non-gaming assets (comprisingngiiily
real properties and corporate club membership shaaed acquisition of all of Belle’s interest in
PremiumLeisure and Amusement, Inc. (PLAI) and 34ik%rest in Pacific Online Systems Corporation
(POSC). The transfers of the said assets were ebetpbn July 24, 2014. As part of the considerdtothe
transfer of assets, PLC undertook to increaseuttsogized capital stock, and out of such increBs#le agreed
to subscribe to new shares to increase its stateiCompany to 90% of the outstanding capital.

As a result of the transactions, the Company direstns 100% of PLAI and 34.5% of POSC. Belle, thge
with other principal shareholders agreed to offeedain number of shares for sale, and as a reulhich,

its shareholdings in PLC was reduced. As of Demym®l, 2015, Belle directly owns 78.745%
(24,904,904,324 shares) of PLC.

On August 5, 2015, PLC acquired additional 47,853,8hares of POSC, thereby increasing its ownership

from 34.5% to 50.1%. This resulted to the linelibg consolidation of POSC by PLC. As of Decembgr 3
2016, PLC owns 50.1% of POSC's issued shares.
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Iltem 5. Directors and Executive Officers

Directors and Executive Officers

The names and ages of all the incumbent Direottested on April 24, 2017 during the Annual Stodklecs'
Meeting and who are to serve for a term of one/€By until their successor shall have been dulgteteand
qualified, and the Executive Officers are:

Name Citizenship | Age Position Period Servec
Willy N. Ocier Filipino 61 Chairman of the Board urd 25, 1999 - present
Armin B. Raquel-Santos Filipino 50 President ande€Executive| Jul 18, 2014 — July 03,
Officer 2017 as EVP & COO
July 01, 2017 — present, as
President & CEO
Roman Felipe S. Reyes Filipino 66 Independent Barec Jul 18, 2014 — present
A. Bayani K. Tan Filipino 62 Director Jun 23, 199%resent
Joseph C. Tan Filipino 60 Independent Director 18412014 — present
Juan Victor S. Tanjuatco Filipino 71 Independeniebior Jul 18, 2014 — present
Exequiel P. Villacorta, Jr. Filipino 72 Director |8, 2014 — present
Jackson T. Ongsip Filipino 44 Vice President fardfice Apr 23, 2012 - present
and Chief Financial Officer
Maria Neriza C. Banaria Filipino 35 Assistant VReeesident and | Apr 25, 2016 - present
Controller
Elmer B. Serrano Filipino 50 Corporate Secretary r 2p, 2015 - present
Arthur A. Sy Filipino 48 Assistant Corporate Seargt | Jul 19, 2011 — present
Phil lvan A. Chan Filipino 35 | Assistant Corporate Secretar] May 11, 2015 - present
Frederic C. DyBuncio* Filipino 58 President & CEO ul a8, 2014 - Jun 30, 2017

*Mr. DyBuncio resigned as President and CEO andapasinted as Adviser to the Board on July 01, 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The following are brief descriptions of the busimesperiences over the past five (5) years ofrthembent
members of the Board.

All of the incumbent members of the Board have be@ninated for re-election by the Corporate Govecea
Committee.

Willy N. Ocier

Mr. Ocier, 61, is the Chairman of the Board andebior of Premium Leisure Corp., APC Group, Inc.,
PremiumLeisure and Amusement, Inc. and AbaCore iHggdCorp. and is concurrently one of the Co-Vice
Chairpersons of Belle Corporation, and the Vicei@han of Tagaytay Highlands International Golf Club
Inc. He is the Chairman and President of Pacifitin@ Systems Corporation, and Chairman, Presi@ent
Chief Executive Officer of Philippine Global Commcations, Inc. He is also the Chairman of Tagaytay
Midlands Golf Club, Inc., The Country Club at TagayHighlands, Inc. and The Spa and Lodge, Incsitée

as Director of Leisure and Resorts World Corporgtigantage Equities, Philequity Management, Inc.
Philequity Funds and Toyota Corporation Batangas.

He graduated from Ateneo de Manila University vatBachelor of Arts degree in Economics.

Armin B. Raquel-Santos

Mr. Raquel-Santos, 50, is concurrently a Directbe President and Chief Executive Officer of PL@ an
PremiumLeisure and Amusement Inc. and the Execuifice President — Integrated Resorts of Belle
Corporation. He is also a Director of Pacific Osliystems Corporation, Tagaytay Highlands Inteonati
Golf Club, Inc. and member of the Board of Trusteellelco Resorts (Philippines) Foundation Corpiorat
Formerly, he was Chief Finance Officer of Aboitizth Inc., Cebu Industrial Park, Inc. and Mactanri€roic
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Zone . His experience include stints with mudtional companies such as Securities 2000 Incgépiore
Technologies Group) and First Chicago Trust Compryew York.

He holds a Master of Arts in Liberal Studies frorarnouth College, U.S.A. and Bachelor of Science in
Business Administration Major in Finance from ldballege, U.S.A.

Roman Felipe S. Reyes

Mr. Reyes, 66, a Certified Public Accountant, is tbhairman of Reyes Tacandong & Co. He servesias a
Independent Director of Pakistan International @ordr Terminal Limited, Premium Leisure Corp., RBN
Philippine Geothermal Production Company, Pasud&iiddsian Countertrade, Macawiwili Gold Mining
And Development Co., Inc., FF Cruz & Co., and Roekweisure Club. He is also a current Trustee arf S
Beda College Manila, San Beda College Alabang, Bada Alumni Association Foundation, and the
Chairman of the Board of Governors of Nicanor Reyesorial Foundation. He was formerly a member of
the GSIS Board of Trustees and formerly DirectoBahk of Commerce, National Reinsurance Corporation
of the Philippines and PNCC. He was a Senior Paamné the Vice Chairman for Client Services anddnts

of SGV & Co. from 1984-2009, and the President nbiledge Institute in 2009.

Mr. Reyes earned his Bachelor of Science degr&@immerce, major in Accounting, from San Beda Celleg
in 1972, and obtained his MBA degree in Financenftbe University of Detroit in 1975.

A. Bayani K. Tan

Mr. A. Bayani K. Tan, 62, Filipino, is a Non-Exeowg Director of the Corporation. He is also a Dire,
Corporate Secretary or both of the following listaanpanies: Belle Corporation, Coal Asia Holdinigs,,
Discovery World Corporation, I-Remit, Inc., Paci®nline Systems Corporation, Philequity Dividéfield
Fund, Inc., Philequity Dollar Income Fund, Inc.,ilBguity Fund, Inc., Philequity Peso Bond Fund,.Jnc
Philequity PSE Index Fund, Inc., TKC Metals Corpiana, Tagaytay Highlands International Golf Clubg,
Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc., The Country ClabTagaytay Highlands, Inc., The Spa and Lodge at
Tagaytay Highlands, Inc. and Vantage Equities, Inc.

Mr. Tan is also a Director and the Corporate Sacyedf Sterling Bank of Asia Inc. He is the Manawi
Partner of the law offices of Tan Venturanza Valddanaging Director/President of Shamrock Developime
Corporation, Director of Destiny LendFund, Inc.,sPaal Laboratories, Inc. and Pure Energy Holdings
Corporation, President of Catarman Chamber Elemgr&ahool Foundation, Inc., Managing Trustee of
SCTan Foundation, Inc., Trustee and Treasurer dfisRe Foundation, Inc. and Trustee and Corporate
Secretary of St. Scholastica's Hospital, Inc.

Mr. Tan holds a Master of Laws degree from New Ydrkversity and earned his Bachelor of Laws degree
from the University of the Philippines where he vaasember of the Order of the Purple Feather (Odiege

of Law Honor Society) and ranked ninth in his cldds. Tan passed the bar examinations in 1981 where
placed sixth. He has a Bachelor of Arts major ifitRRal Science degree from the San Beda Collegenfr
where he graduated Class Valedictorian and wasdasdahe medal for Academic Excellence.

Joseph C. Tan

Atty. Joseph C. Tan, 60, is the Founding PartndM©fST Law Firm from September 2006 to present. He
was a Special Counsel for the Agus Cruz & Manzaaw Dffice from 2004 to August 2006. He was an
Associate of Puno & Puno Law Offices from 1991 &93. He is currently an Independent Director of 2GO
Group, Inc. and Pacific Online Systems Corporasind LMG Chemicals Corporation. He was a direcfor o
San Carlos Bioenergy Corporation. He was alsoecttir of Philippine Bank of Communications from
September 2010 to August 2011.

Atty. Tan holds a Bachelor of Arts with a Major Business Administration degree from University ahS
Francisco, USA (Class of 1978). He also holds ehBbx of Laws degree from the Ateneo de Manila €y#
of Law, Makati City, graduating with honors (Cla¥s1985).

Juan Victor S. Tanjuatco

Mr. Tanjuatco, 71, is an Independent Director of\#htures, Inc., and a Director of Ketmar Fast Food
Corporation. Previously, he served in the samecigpan the board of Insular Savings Bank and Asiit
Development Bank. A career banker, he was the foimesident of Export and Industry Bank and was
assigned to various managerial and executive pasitat Credit Agricole Indosuez in Manila, New Zewl
and Hongkong, where, after 21 years, he retirddegmity General Manager in Manila.
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Mr. Tanjuatco holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree irolmmics from the Ateneo de Manila University (cum
laude) and a Masters in Business Administratiorjprma Finance, from the Wharton School, University
Pennsylvania.

Exequiel P. Villacorta, Jr

Mr. Villacorta, 72, is an elected Director of BD@#sing and Finance, Inc. Prior to this positionwas a
Director of Equitable PCI Bank, EBC Insurance Bmalge, and Maxicare Healthcare Corporation. He was
the former Chairman of EBC Strategic Holdings Cogtion, EBC Investments (now BDO Strategic
Holdings), Jardine Equitable Finance Corporatianat8gic Property Holdings, PCIB Properties, Edpléa
Data Center, and PCI Automation Center. He wasaRsident and CEO of Banco De Oro Universal Bank
and TA Bank of the Philippines, and was Vice Presidof the Private Development Corporation of the
Philippines. He was Senior Adviser and BSP Corgradf Equitable PCI Bank and PBCom, and Adviser to
the Board of PCI Capital Corporation.

Mr. Villacorta holds a Bachelor of Science degredusiness Administration from De La Salle Universi
and a Master’s degree in Business Management fnerAsian Institute of Management.

| ndependent Directors
The nomination, pre-screening and election of iedejent directors were made in compliance with the

requirements of the Code of Corporate GovernandétenSecurities and Exchange Commission’s Guidglin
on the Nomination and Election of Independent Does which have been adopted and made part of the
Corporation’s By-Laws.

The Corporate Goverance Committee constituted ley Gompany’'s Board of Directors, indorsed the
nominations for re-election as independent direcgiven in favor of Messrs. Joseph C. Tan, JuatoVis.
Tanjuatco and Roman Felipe S. Reyes. The Corp@aternance Committee, composed of Juan Victor S.
Tanjuatco (Chairman), Joseph C. Tan and Romanéd-&8ifReyes, has determined that these nominees for
independent directors possess all the qualificatimd have none of the disqualifications for indejeat
directors as set forth in the Company’s Manual anpGrate Governance and Rule 38 of the Implementing
Rules of the Securities Regulation Code (SRC).

The nominees, whose required information are diigabove, are in no way related to the stockh®lao

nominated them and have signified their acceptahttee nominations. These nominees are expectaticod
the scheduled Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

Directorships in other reporting companies

During the last five (5) years, the following ditecs are also directors of other reporting compaatelisted
below:

Type of Directorship
(Executive, Non-Executive,

Independent); Indicate if

Director is also Chairman
Non-Executive
Non-Executive
Executive / Vice Chairman
Non-Executive / Chairman
Executive / Chairman
Non-Executive

Name of Director Name of Listed Company

Leisure & Resorts World Corp.
Vantage Equities, Inc.

Belle Corporation

APC Group, Inc.

Pacific Online Systems Corporation
AbaCore Capital Holdings, Inc.

Willy N. Ocier

Armin Antonio B.
Raguel-Santos*
Roman Felipe S. Rey

Pacific Online Systems Corporation Non-Executive

No directorship in other listed compan

A. Bayani K. Tan

Discovery World Corporatic
Coal Asia Holdings, Inc.
I-Remit, Inc.

TKC Metals Corporation

Non-Executive

Non-Executive
Non-Executive
Non-Executive
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Type of Directorship
(Executive, Non-Executive,

Name of Director Name of Listed Company Independent): Indicate if
Director is also Chairman
Josep C. Tar 2GO Group, Inc Independer
Pacific Online Systems Corporation Independent
Juan Victor S. Tanjuatc | IP Ventures, Inc Non-Executive
Exequiel P. Villacorta, . | BDO Leasing and Finance, |i Non-Executive
Belle Corporatio Executive

Atlas Consolidated Mining & Development | Executive / Vice Chairman

Frederic C. DyBuncio* | Corporation

Pacific Online Systems Corporation Non-Executive

2GO Group, Inc. Non-Executive

* Mr. DyBuncio resigned as President & CEO and wappointed as Adviser to the Board on July 01, 26fErwas
replaced by Mr. Raquel-Santos.

Other Executive Officers

Jackson T. Ongsip

Mr. Ongsip, 44, is the Vice President for Financel &hief Financial Officer of the Company. He is
concurrently the Vice President for Portfolio Intraents of SM Investments Corporation, the ExecWifioe
President and Chief Financial Officer of Belle Gangtion and a Director, the President and Chiefchtiee
Officer of APC Group, Inc. He is a Certified Publfccountant with an extensive audit and finance
background accumulated from 5 years in externat auith SyCip, Gorres, Velayo & Co. (SGV) and 1laye
with Globe Telecom. He graduated from the Univgrsif Santo Tomas with a Bachelor of Science in
Accountancy.

Maria Neriza C. Banaria

Ms. Banaria, 35, is the Financial Controller ancsis&nt Vice President of Premium Leisure Corp.aAs
Certified Public Accountant, her strong backgroimdccounting, audit and finance have been accusulila
through extensive experience and exposure to \aiiwustries. She holds a Bachelor of Science degre
Business Administration and Accountancy from thévdrsity of the Philippines.

Elmer B. Serrano

Mr. Serrano, 50, is the Corporate Secretary olGbmpany. He is a Senior Partner of the law firm tWiaz
Vergara Gonzalez & Serrano and has been practi@imfpr over two decades specializing in Corpotate,
Mergers & Acquisitions, and Banking & Finance. At8errano was a senior officer of BDO Unibank, Inc.
handling investment banking, corporate finance, amgers & acquisitions until 2005. He is currerdly
Director and Corporate Secretary of 2GO Group, Negros Navigation Co., Inc., and DFNN Inc. Helgoa
the Corporate Secretary of SM Investments CorpmratsM Prime Holdings, Inc., Crown Equities, Inc.,
Bankers Association of the Philippine and PDS Grofi@ompanies, and is also the Corporate Informatio
Officer of BDO Unibank, Inc. and BDO Leasing anadiice, Inc. He is a graduate of the Ateneo Law 8lcho
and Trust Institute of the Philippines, a Certifisssociate Treasury Professional, and holds a degfr8.S.
Legal Management from the Ateneo de Manila Univgrsi

Arthur A. Sy

Mr. Sy, 48, is the Assistant Corporate SecretaryP@mium Leisure Corp. He is the Vice President of
Corporate Legal Affairs and Assistant Corporater&acy at SM Investments Corporation, and is the
Corporate Secretary of various major corporatiofithizv the SM Group of Companies. He is also the
Corporate Secretary of National University. A memtfethe New York Bar, Mr. Sy holds a Bachelor at#\
degree in Philosophy from the University of SantomBs and a Juris Doctor degree from the Ateneo Law
School.

Phil Ivan A. Chan

Mr. Chan, 35, is the Assistant Corporate SecreitbBremium Leisure Corp. He is a Senior Associaeyer
at Martinez Vergara Gonzalez & Serrano. He alsp asthe Assistant Corporate Secretary of listetpamy
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Crown Equities, Inc. Atty. Chan holds a degree &.B egal Management from Ateneo de Manila Unitgrsi
and a Juris Doctor degree from Ateneo Law School.

Significant Employees
There are no other significant employees.

Family Relationships
No director and/or executive officer of Premiumdwgie Corp. are related up to the fourth degreeffinityt
or consanguinity.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

Except as here disclosed, the Company is not asfaney of the following events wherein any of iteedtors,
executive officers, nominees for election as doeatxecutive officers, underwriter or control pmrs were
involved during the past five (5) years up to ties$t date:

(1) Any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any imess of which any of the above persons was a gener
partner or executive officer either at the timéahkruptcy or within two years prior to that time;

(2) Any conviction by final judgment, in a criminal preeding, domestic or foreign;

(3) Any order or judgment, or decree, not subsequenetersed, suspended or vacated, of any court of
competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, pereatty or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending
or otherwise limiting the involvement of any of tabove persons in any type of business, securities,
commodities, or banking activities; and,

(4) Any findings by a domestic or foreign court of castgnt jurisdiction (in civil action), the SEC or
comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreigrhange or electronic marketplace or self-regujator
organization, that any of the above persons hdateitha securities or commodities law, and the foeigt
has not been reversed, suspended, or vacated.

The Company and its major subsidiaries and assscete not involved in, nor are any of their préper
subject to, any material legal proceedings thatlccquotentially affect their operations and finarcia
capabilities.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
No director or executive officer or any membertgdit immediate family has, during the last two yedrad
a direct or indirect, material interest in a tranigm or proposed transaction to which the Compagayg a

party.

As summarized and disclosed in the corporationfsotidated financial statements, in the ordinanyrse of
business, the Company has transactions with refsdeties which consist mainly of extension of it
bearing notes to, or availment of noninterest-lmgpadvances from, Belle Corporation. The outstapdin
balances at year-end are due and demandable. filieeebeen no guarantees provided or received for an
related party receivables or payables. Aside frbasé transactions, the Company has no other signffi
transactions that need to be disclosed.

The related party transactions are described ire 28t (Related Party Transactions) of the Noteshéo t
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Disagreement with Director

No director has resigned nor declined to standdeglection to the Board of Directors since theedztthe
last annual meeting of stockholders because dfagdéement with the Company on any matter reladitige
latter's operations, policies, or practices
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Iltem 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Ofers

Summary of Annual Compensation

Salary/
Name and Principal Position Year | Per Diem Bonus ggrfr;‘]nsgltjiiln CTg;?I ?:sn:til)n
Allowance P P

Willy N. Ocier, Chairman of the Board

Frederic C. DyBuncio, President & CEO*

Armin Raquel-Santos, President & CEO*

Jackson T. Ongsip, CFO

Maria Neriza C. Banaria, Controller

President and 4 most highly compensated 2018* 11,709,011 B 757,040 12,466,050

exooutive officers ghly comp 2017 | 11,709,011 - 757,040 12,466,050
2016 12,137,248 - 592,454 12,729,702

. . 2018* | 10,760,000 10,760,000

,(O\dln(;tgge(()jf)flcers and directors as a Group 2017 10.760.000 _ _ 10,760,000

2016 7,410,000 - - 7,410,000

* Compensation based on estimates only
** As of July 1, 2017, Mr. DyBuncio, who resigneim presidency and the board of directors, was
replaced by Mr. Raquel-Santos

Other annual compensation pertains to leave coioveasd other employee benefits.
Except as provided above, there are no other officEthe Company receiving compensation.

Compensation of Directors
For Board of Directors meetings, all independergadors are given a per diem of Php50,000.00 each p
meeting, while other directors are given a per dafnPhp10,000 each. For committee meetings, each
director is given a per diem of Php10,000.00 pgrrdgardless of the number of meetings during émees
day.

Employment Contracts and Termination of Employmentand Change in Control Arrangements
There is no compensatory plan or arrangement \wihect to named executive officers.

Warrants and Options Outstanding
None.

Item 7. Independent Public Accountants

a. The Company’s external auditors for 2017-2018 i€y Gorres, Velayo & Co. (SGV),
with Ms. Belinda T. Beng Hui as the partner-in-cer

b. Representatives of SGV are expected to be presehe a\nnual Meeting to respond to
appropriate questions and will be given the oppotyuo make a statement if they so desire.

C. There was no event in the past five (5) years wig®d/ and the Company had any

disagreement with regard to any matter relatinga¢oounting principles or practices,
financial statement disclosure or auditing scopprocedure.

d. In compliance with SRC Rule 68 3 (b) (iv), the gasnent of SGV’'s engagement partner
for the Company shall not exceed five (5) conseewears.
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e. The aggregate fees paid by the Company for prafeakservices rendered by the external
auditor for the audit of financial statements fog {years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
are as follows:

(R00Q's omitted)

2017 $£432.0
2016 400.0
f. There were no other assurance and related serbigethe external auditor that are

reasonably related to the performance of the andieview of the registrant's financial
statements. The rotation of independent auditodsthe two-year cooling off period has
been observed in the audit of the Company’s fireratatements.

g. The Audit Committee, composed of Roman Felipe SieR€Chairman), Joseph Tan and
Exequiel P. Villacorta, Jr., recommends to the Boair Directors the appointment of the
external auditors. The Board of Directors and thecldolders approve the Audit
Committee’s recommendation. The Executive Commithpproves the audit fees as
recommended by the Management.

Iltem 8. Compensation Plans

No action is to be taken with respect to any plarspant to which cash or non-cash compensationbagyaid or
distributed.

ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Iltem 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Gier than for Exchange

No action will be presented for shareholders’ apatat this year's annual meeting which involveshatization or
issuance of any securities.

Item 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities

No action will be presented for shareholders’ apatat this year's annual meeting which involves thodification
of any class of the Company’s securities, or ttsaace of one class of Company’s securities in axgh for
outstanding securities of another class.

Iltem 11. Financial and Other Information

The Audited Financial Statements of the Company thedManagement Report, incorporating the Managémen
Discussion & Analysis, is attached Asnex “B” .

Representatives of the external auditor, Sycip &o¥elayo & Co., are expected to be present atheial meeting,
and they will have the opportunity to make a statenif they desire to do so and are expected tvh#able to respond
to appropriate questions from the shareholders. Jdmpany has had no material disagreement withpSgacirres

Velayo & Co. on any matter of accounting principtepractices or disclosures in the Company’s fifgrgtatements.

Iltem 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions an&imilar Matters

Acquisition of POSC shares

On August 5, 2015, the Company purchased additbn&51,315 shares in POS@20.90 per share, for an aggregate
amount of approximate1.0 billion. The acquisition resulted in providingntrolling interest to PLC over POSC at
50.1% ownership. The acquisition was accounteduiing the pooling of interest method, and resultedhe
consolidation of POSC in PLC books.

20



Acquisition of Falcon Resources, Inc.

On June 16, 2014, Total Gaming Technologies Insulasidiary of Pacific Online, and the sharehold#r§alcon
Resources Inc. (FRI) entered into a Memorandumraddostanding (MOU) for the former’s intention taqage the
latter’s interest in FRI representing 100% ownegyshAs at December 11, 2014, the Deed of Salehiitriansfer of
shares of stock has been executed. FRI is a comgagaged in consultancy services for TGTI andtadistributor
for POSC. FRIis a company incorporated in théipjines.

Acquisition of Lucky Circle Corporation (LCC) Subsidiaries.

On July 1, 2017, LCC, a subsidiary of Pacific Oaliacquired 100% ownership interest in the foll@uiine entities
engaged in lotto/keno outlets and retail of scriaitadkets: Athena Ventures, Inc., Avery Integratédb, Inc., Circle 8
Gaming Ventures, Inc., Luckydeal Leisure, Inc., kyfortune Business Ventures, Inc., Luckypick Lees@ub Corp.,
Luckyventures Leisure Corp., Lucky Games Entert@nimVentures Inc. and Orbis Valley Corporation. The
acquisition is assessed by the Company to be arnsition of a business. The net assets recogriizéte December
31, 2017 consolidated financial statements weredas provisional assessment of their fair vallibs. valuation was
not completed as at February 23, 2018. Provisigoaldwill recognized as at December 31, 2017 ansalitd
B3.7 million.

Iltem 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

No action will be presented for shareholders’ apal@t this year's annual meeting in respect of aoguisition or
disposition of property of the Company.

ltem 14. Restatement of Accounts

No action will be presented for shareholders’ apatat this year's annual meeting which involves testatement of
any of the Company’s assets, capital or surplusewatc
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OTHER MATTERS

Item 15. Action with Respect to Reports

There is no action to be taken with respect to r@mpprt of the Company or of its directors, officerscommittees,
except for the approval of the minutes of the pyasiannual meeting of the Company.

At the annual meeting, shareholders will be askeapprove and ratify the acts of the Board of Divecduring their

term of office. The matters for stockholders’ rigation are acts of the Board, its Committees arehd@ement for the
previous year up to the date of the annual meetinigh were entered into or made in the ordinarysewf business,
the significant acts or transactions of which aveeted by appropriate disclosures with the Seegritind Exchange
Commission and Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.aaréollows:

Date Subject
April 24, 2017 Submission of the Results of the AalnStockholders’ and Organizational
Board Meetings of PLC

May 24, 2017 Submission of the General InformaBteet for 2017

May 30, 2017 Submission of the New Manual on CapoGovernance

May 31, 2017 Submission of the Annual Corporate &oance Report for 2016

June 23, 2017 1. Resignation of Mr. Frederic C. DyBuncio as
Director/President/CEO of PLC and as member obkecutive
Committee.

2. Election of Mr. Armin B. Raquel-Santos as directand
appointment of Mr. Raquel-Santos as the new PregideO and
Member of Executive Committee

3. Appointment of Mr. DyBuncio as Adviser to the Board

July 4, 201 Submission of the amended General Infation Sheet for 201
January 8, 2018 Submission of the Attendance oBtiead of Directors for 2017
February 23, 201 1. Declaration of cash dividends in the amount of PO#%891 pe!

share to be paid to all stockholders of recordfddarch 9,
2018 and payable on March 23, 2018;

2. Amendment of the Second Atrticle of the Articles of
Incorporation to reflect the change in the Compamyimary
purpose.

3. Amendment of Section 2 of Article V-A of the Comg&nBy-
Laws to reflect the change in the period of nonoraof
directors.

4. Setting of Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on April ,23018
(9:00am), to be held at SMX Convention Center, Beldsane,
Mall of Asia Complex, Pasay City, with March 23,180as the
Record Date for shareholders entitled to noticeanfl to vote at
the meeting.

Item 16. Matters Not Required to be Submitted

No action is to be taken with respect to any matteich is not required to be submitted to a votsesfurity holders.

22



Iltem 17. Amendment of Articles of Incorporation / By-Laws

Shareholders have the right to approve or disagpaoy proposed amendments to the Articles of Iraratjpn of the
Company. On the other hand, the Board of Diredtarge the power to amend the By-Laws pursuant tathieority
delegated to it by the stockholders on Decembei 293.

The Board of Directors approved the change in ti@@any’s primary purpose to include a provisiort tha Company
shall not engage in, and removing any referenemgaging in, real estate business. For this tdfbetve, the Second
Article of the Company’s Articles of Incorporatimeeds to be amended, as follows:

From

To

To acquire by purchase, exchange, assignment,
otherwise to hold, own and use for investment o
otherwise to sell, assign, transfer, exchangeeldas
develop, mortgage, pledge, traffic and deal inaitid
and otherwise to operate, enjoy and dispose of, a

and all properties of every kind and descriptionl anl

wherever situated, as and to the extent permitied
law, including but not limited to real estate, wheat
improved or unimproved, agricultural and natura
resource projects and any interest or right therasn
well as buildings, tenements, warehouses, factorie
edifices and structures, irrigation work and othe
improvements, fishponds, salt beds and othe
productive work; and bonds, debentures, promisso
notes, shares of capital stock, or other securiies
obligations, created, negotiated or issued by an
corporation, association, or other entity, foreign
domestic; including those engaged in leisure an
gaming businesses; and while the owner, holder
possessor thereof, to exercise all the rights, poeed
privileges of ownership or any other interest there
including the right to receive, collect and dispoge
any and all rentals, dividends, interest and ingomg
derived therefrom, and the right to vote on any
proprietary or other interest shares of capitatistand
upon any bonds, debentures, or other securitieiadav
voting power, so owned or held; Provided that thg
corporation shall not engage in the business of g
Open End investment company as defined in th
Investment Company Act (Republic Act. No. 2629)
without first complying with the applicable prowsis

ofTo acquire by purchase, exchange, assignment,
r gift or otherwise ando hold, own and use fo
investment or otherwise to sell, assign, trans
exchange, mortgage, pledge, traffic and deal
yand with and otherwise to enjoy and dispose
any and all properties of every kind arn
description and wherever situated; abgnds,
debentures, promissory notes, shares of cay
stock, or other securities or obligations, creat
negotiated or issued by any corporatig
s association, or other entity, foreign or domest
r including those engaged in leisure and gam
rbusinesses; and while the owner thereof,
yexercise all the rights, powers and privileges|of
ownership, including the right to receive, collect
yand dispose of, any and all dividends, interest and
income, derived therefrom, and the right to vate
don any shares of capital stock, and upon any
brbonds, debentures, or other securities having
voting power, asowned or held, and to issu
proxies for said purpose, but only to the exte
permitted by law, any corporation, associatid
> partnership, individual or entity of which thi
corporation is a holder of any bonds, debentur
promissory notes, shares of capital sto
securities or obligations. Provided that t
> company shall not engage in real estate busin
nactivities or thatof an Open End investmen
ecompany as defined in the Investment Compd
Act (Republic Act No. 2629), without first
complying with the applicable provisions of sa|

er,

in
of,
d

ital
ed,
n,
ic;
ng
to

qg

2Nt

of said Act. Act.

This proposed amendment requires vote of stocki®ldpresenting at least two-thirds (2/3) of thestaunding
capital stock of the Company, without prejudicéhte appraisal right of dissenting stockholders. pitoposal to
amend the Articles of Incorporation will be presshfor stockholder approval during the Annual Shadélers’
Meeting.

Item 18. Other Proposed Actions

Other than the matters indicated in the Notice Agdnda included in this Information Statement, ¢hare no other
actions proposed to be taken at the annual meeting.
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Iltem 19. Voting Procedures

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

(f)

The amendment of the Articles of Incorporation ieggithe vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the
Company'’s outstanding capital stock while otheromstto be taken at the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting shall require the vote of the stockholdezpresenting at least a majority of the
Company'’s outstanding capital stock.

Two inspectors, who shall be officers or employefethe Corporation, shall be appointed by the

Board of Directors before or at each meeting oftioekholders, at which an election of directors

shall take place; if no such appointment shall Haeeen made or if the inspectors appointed by
the Board of Directors refused to act or fail ttead then the appointment shall be made by the
presiding officer of the meeting.

A third party will be appointed by the Companyualidate the votes and its tabulation as
necessary.

Stockholders may vote at all meetings either is@eior by proxy duly given in writing in favor
of any person of their confidence and each stoddrahall be entitled to one vote for each share
of stock standing in his name in the books of theporation; provided, however, that in the
election of Directors, each stockholder shall bétled to cumulate his votes in the manner
provided for by law.

The Company’s By-Laws does not prescribe a manhemting. However, voting will be
conducted by ballot if so requested by voting shatdters.

With respect to the election of seven (7) does; each stockholder may vote such number of
shares for as many as seven (7) persons he magetmbe elected from the list of nominees,
or he may cumulate said shares and give one caedidanany votes as the number of his shares
multiplied by seven (7) shall equal, or he mayridiste them on the same principle among as
many candidates as he shall see fit, providedigatotal number of votes cast by him shall not
exceed the number of shares owned by him multifdiedeven (7).

Upon confirmation by the inspectors that thésea mathematical impossibility for certain
nominees to be elected into office based on proxé&d and votes present/represented in the
meeting, the actual casting and counting of vabeshe election of Directors may be dispensed
with.
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SIGNATURE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I hereby certify that the information set
forth in this report is true, complete and correct.

This report is signed in the City of Pasay, Metro Manila on 20 March 2018.

7y 0 4

ARMIN ANTONIO B. RAQUEL-SANTOS
President




MANAGEMENT REPORT

PREMIUM LEISURE CORP.
BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Background

Premium Leisure Corp., formerly Sinophil CorporatifPLC” or the “Company”) was incorporated as
Sinophil Exploration Co., Inc. on November 26, 19P8C was organized with oil and gas exploratiod an
development as its primary purpose. The Companyo#imelt companies (Contractors), were participamts i
several Geophysical Survey and Exploration Cordrantd Non-Exclusive Geophysical Permits enteredl int
with the Philippine Government, through the Depanitrof Energy, covering certain petroleum contesietis

in various locations. It also had passive equisestments in Dragon Oil Plc (Dragon Oil) and Siddia
Limited (Sinoil). In 1996, with investor interest oil exploration and mining companies remainingeagally
soft, the Company's management recommended coores&iPLC from an oil exploration company to an
investment holding company. In line with the Comyawlecision to change its primary purpose, the Qomg
assigned its interests in Dragon Oil and SinoiBtdle Corporation (“Belle”) and/or its subsidiarieS o
finance the Company's projects, acquisitions andstments in 1997, private placements of PLC'seshar
were made to several investors, both in the colwarid/overseas.

On June 3, 1997, the Securities and Exchange Casiumi§SEC) approved the Company's application for a
change in primary purposes from oil and gas exfitoreand development to being an investment holding
company. As an investment holding firm, it shatigage in the acquisition (by purchase, exchange,
assignment or otherwise), ownership and use farstment any and all properties and other assetgefy
kind and description.

On June 2, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Camypapproved a plan to take on the gaming busereds
interests of Belle Corporation (the “InvestmentrP)a In line with this, the Company was authorized

a. To sell to Belle its non-gaming related assets isting of the following:

e Membership shares in Tagaytay Midlands Golf Cluio, |

* Alot with gross area of 4,348 square meters latat¢hin the Aseana Business Park at the Manila
Bay Reclamation Area.

» Several parcels of land in The Parks at Saratotis Within the Tagaytay Highlands Complex.

* Undeveloped land located in the City of Tanauanyifce of Batangas.

b. To acquire from Belle the following:

e 100% ownership interest in PremiumLeisure and Armes#, Inc. (“PLAI") for a consideration of
R10,847.8 million; and

*  34.5% ownership interest in Pacific Online Syst&uwsporation (“POSC”) for a consideration of B
1,525.0 million.

c. Toexecute a Memorandum of Agreement (Second Amentifgreement to the Settlement Agreement
dated August 28, 2009) for the redemption of 1,000,000 preferred shares by Belle for a cash
consideration of R1,000.0 million.

On July 24, 2014, the transfer of the above assets completed.

On June 20, 2014, Belle and PLC entered into aigti®n Agreement for 24,700,000,000 common shares
of PLC at a subscription price of B0.369 per sloaretotal subscription of B9,114,300,000 theliabyeasing
Belle’s ownership interest in PLC to 90%. Subdguippayments were received in July 2014.

On July 18, 2014, PLC’s Board of Directors and ktmtders unanimously approved the amendment to the
Articles of Incorporation for the increase in auihed capital stock from B4,032,500,000 dividetbin
10,130,000,000,000 common shares with par valuB0o25 per share and 6,000,000,000 preferred shares
with par value of B0.25 per share, to B10,907@Ddivided into 37,630,000,000 common shares péth
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value of B0.25 per share and 6,000,000,000 pefestiares with par value of B0.25 per share. pplcation
for the increase in authorized capital stock waggayed by the SEC on September 5, 2014.

Material acquisitions of investments

The Company has invested in various companiesllasvi

1.

100% Equity Investment in Premium Leisure and Ammuset, Inc. (“PLAI")

PLAI is a co-grantee together with Belle Corporatiand other SM consortium members (under
CAl/License Reg. No. 08-003) by the Philippine Anmasat and Gaming Corporation (“PAGCOR”) of a
Certificate of Affiliation and Provisional Licendghe “Provisional License”) to operate an integdate
casino resort, complex in the approved site locatelde vicinity of the Bagong Nayong Pilipino Mé&mi
Bay Entertainment City (“PAGCOR Entertainment Cjtyivhich site was originally referred to as “Belle
Grande”. On April 29, 2015, PAGCOR granted the RagWwaming License (“License”) to the
consortium. This regular casino license has theesanms and conditions of the Provisional Licease,
applicable, and runs concurrent with PAGCOR’s Ceggional Franchise, which expires in 2033, and
renewable for another 25 years, by the PhilippirengCess. PLAI was the special purpose entity
authorized by PAGCOR to perform the casino openatfor the consortium.

On October 25, 2012, Belle Corp., together with Rl#nd SM Investments Corporation (Philippine

Parties), formally entered into a Cooperation Agreet with Melco Resorts and Entertainment

(Philippines) Corporation (“MRP Parties”), whiclotoeffect on March 13, 2013, the date on which the
conditions to closing under the Closing Agreemeatenfulfilled, or waived. Under the Cooperation

Agreement, the Philippine Parties agreed to incthdeMIRP Parties as co-licensees for which PAGCOR
issued an Amended Certificate of Affiliation ando#sional License dated January 2013. The
Cooperation Agreement further specified the respeables of the Philippine Parties and the MRP
Parties in the casino resort project.

Under the Cooperation Agreement, the Philippingi®arthrough Belle Corporation, would provide the
land and building structures for the casino compl&ke land and building structures are leasetheo t
MRP Parties who will in turn provide the fit outschoperate the entire casino complex.

Likewise under the Cooperation Agreement, the neecial purpose entity to perform the casino
operations was agreed to be MRP. In considerait®P? Parties agreed to pay the Philippine Parties,
through PLAI, certain amounts based on gaming reesms follows:

Fees payable to PLAI

PLAI will be entitled to receive from MRP agreedempmonthly payments consisting of the following:

a) the higher of (i) one-half of the Project's Mass rkit gaming EBITDA (after deductions
comprising 2% management allowance, Mass Markeatipg expenses and an agreed deductible of 7%
of Mass Market Gaming EBITDAPLAI MASS EBITDA) or (ii) 15% of the Project’'s net Mass Market
gross gaming revenues (after deduction of amoumt® AGCOR non-VIP license fee@LAlI MASS

Net Win), whichever is higher; and

b) the higher of (i) one-half of the Project’'s VIP gag EBITDA (after deductions comprising 2%
management allowance, VIP operating expenses andgesed deductible of 7% of VIP gaming
EBITDA) (PLAI VIP EBITDA ) or (ii) 2% of the Project’'s net VIP gross gamirgyenues (after
deduction of amounts for PAGCOR VIP license feelf, ¥ommissions and incentives, as well as VIP
bad debt expenseI(Al VIP Net Win ), whichever is higher (theLAl VIP Monthly Payment ).

In addition, at the end of each fiscal period on2dnths, a calculation is made to determine tHertihce
between (i) the higher of PLAI VIP EBITDA and 5.08fthe Project’'s PLAI VIP NET WIN, and (ii) the
cumulative PLAI VIP Monthly Payments made for tieeél period. If (i) is higher, the differencepiaid
to PLAI as an additional payment for the followipgriod. If (ii) is higher, the difference is deded
from the first VIP payment for the following fiscaériod. Meanwhile, MRP will retain all revenuesrh
the non-gaming operations of the Project.
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City of Dreams Manila integrated resort openedhéoublic in December 2014, and had its grand openi
on February 2015. The resort complex is located tamd area of around 6.2 hectares in the gateivay
the Entertainment City. It is composed of hoteaiteand dining areas with an allotment of aroud® 3
mass and VIP gaming tables, 1,700 slot machineslafi0 electronic gaming tables. As of December
31, 2017, City of Dreams Manila boasts of 274 gamables, 1,754 slot machines and 158 electronic
gaming tables in operation. With approximately 8Z,5quare meters of gaming gross floor area and
around 20,000 square meters of retail and restataeifities and various entertainment options y@it
Dreams Manila is one of the main players in thdifine gaming industry. Total gross floor areahs
entire complex is at 310,565 square meters.

The City of Dreams Manila features top hotel brawith approximately 950 hotel rooms from 6 towers
within its vicinity. Nuwa has approximately 260 lrious rooms, while Hyatt, managed by Hyatt
International Corporation, holds 365 rooms. Asfast Nobu Hotel, meanwhile, owns 321 rooms.

City of Dreams Manila also showcases three entertant areas, including DreamPlay by DreamWorks,
a one-of-a-kind entertainment for the whole famiBgnterplay, the central lounge in the casino that
features live performances and its night club, Ghao

Melco Resorts & Entertainment Limited (“Melco”) ésdeveloper, owner and operator of casino gaming
and entertainment casino resort facilities in Asia.

In Macau, it operates its superbly designed andagad facilities through its subsidiary Melco Resort
(Macau) Limited, one of the only six companies tggdironcessions or subconcessions to operate Gasino
in Macau. In Manila, the City of Dreams Manila ogehits doors to the public in December 2014 and
marked the formal entry of Melco into the fast-girggyvand dynamic tourism industry in the Philippines
The integrated casino resort at Entertainment Qitanila Bay, Manila, is operated and managed by it
Philippine subsidiary, MRP.

Controlling Interest in Pacific Online Systems Gangtion (“LOTO’)

Pacific Online Systems Corporation, with PSE tickgnbol LOTO was incorporated in 1993. A systems
integrator of gaming solutions, it is primarily exgged in the development, design and management of
online computer systems, terminals and softwaraffergaming industry, with the Philippine Charity
Sweepstakes Office (PCSO) as its main custombadtbeen consistently profitable since its fisesry
2002.

On July 22, 2014, PLC executed several Deeds ekSdIShares with Belle and certain of its subsiela
for the acquisition of 101,668,953 POSC common eshaat a subscription price of B15 per share
equivalent to 34.5% ownership interest in POSC fa& total consideration of
B1,525,034,310. On August 5, 2015, PLC acquimditianal 47,851,315 shares of Pacific Online
Systems Corp. (“POSC"), thereby obtaining an oVerainership of 50.1% of POSC. The purchase
resulted in combining PLC’s and POSC's financiadtetents on a line-by-line basis. Based on
management’s judgment, PLC’s investment gives Padrolling interest over POSC as evidenced by
more than 50% voting interest.

As of December 31, 2017, PLC has 50.1% ownershROSC issued shares, with a total of 224,280,403
shares.

Acquisition of Falcon Resources, Inc.

On June 16, 2014, Total Gaming Technologies Insutssidiary of Pacific Online, and the shareholders
of Falcon Resources Inc. (FRI) entered into a Memdum of Understanding (MOU) for the former’s
intention to acquire the latter’s interest in FBpresenting 100% ownership. As at December 114,201
the Deed of Sale for the transfer of shares ofkstas been executed. FRI is a company engaged in
consultancy services for TGTI and a sub-distribditerPOSC. FRI is a company incorporated in the
Philippines.
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Acquisition of Lucky Circle Corporation (LCC) Subgries.

On July 1, 2017, LCC, a subsidiary of Pacific Oalinacquired 100% ownership interest in the follayin
nine entities engaged in lotto/keno outlets andilref scratchit tickets: Athena Ventures, Inc.,ehty
Integrated Hub, Inc., Circle 8 Gaming Ventures,. Ihaickydeal Leisure, Inc., Luckyfortune Business
Ventures, Inc., Luckypick Leisure Club Corp., Lugkptures Leisure Corp., Lucky Games
Entertainment Ventures Inc. and Orbis Valley Cogtion. The acquisition is assessed by the Company
to be an acquisition of a business. The net assetgnized in the December 31, 2017 consolidated
financial statements were based on provisionalsassent of their fair values. The valuation was not
completed as at February 23, 2018. Provisionatig@dbrecognized as at December 31, 2017 amounted
to B3.7 million.
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Revenues

The following are the major revenue and income &#é&m2017 and 2016:

2017 201¢€
Year ended December 31 (Php) Amount % to total Amount %o total
Gaming revenue share 2,609,352,639 53% 1,642,976,365 47%
Equipment lease rentals 1,840,520,991 37% 1,579,660,972 45%
Commission, distribution and instant scratch tisket 479,472,385 10% 308,438,496 9%
Total 4,929,346,015 100% 3,531,075,833 100%

Products

PLC’s investments in companies engaged in gamird) gaming-related activities are indicated belown the
Philippines, the gaming industry is relatively ypad by the private sector, creating opportunitiesexperienced
leisure operators. PLC’s gaming businesses arertak@e mainly by the following:

1. PremiumLeisure & Amusement Inc. (“PLAI") is a graatby PAGCOR of Certificate of Affiliations and
Provisional License to operate integrated resortdiding casinos, in the vicinity of PAGCOR Enténment
City. The License runs concurrent with PAGCOR’s @assional Franchise, which expires in 2033,
renewable for another 25 years, by the Philippinadgess.

2. Pacific Online Systems Corporation (“POSC”) skesion-line betting equipment to the PCSO for tlottiery
operations in the Visayas and Mindanao region$oftw and nationwide for KENO. PLC owns a conirdl
interest of 50.1% of issued shares of Pacific @nlimhich is a publicly-listed company.

Competition

Gaming busines<City of Dreams Manila is competing against casiopsrated by PAGCOR and the other licensees
that are already operating — Resorts World Marifil&ravelers International Hotel Group, Inc. (“Trées”), Solaire
Resort and Casino of Bloomberry Resorts Corporatioil Okada Manila, which commenced casino operatim
December 30, 2016. Travelers has also broken grounits planned Resorts World Bayshore project AGEOR
City, with the opening thereof reportedly estima2®d 9.

Lottery equipment leasing, distribution and retaiisinessPOSC, PLC'’s subsidiary, expects that the aggregsigh
for small town lottery (STL) and the prevalencellefgal gambling particularly in interior towns aneimote areas will
provide competition to its online lotto revenueawéver, management believes that POSC has no citimpetith
its online KENO games that appeals to a differeatk®t segment and its wide distribution networlselfing varied
lottery tickets nationwide.

Employees

The Company is a holding company whose businesstimanpower intensive; hence, its transactiongairemely
manageable through temporary secondment of persfsoneits affiliates on an as-needed basis. Thiargement is
also resorted to in keeping with austerity measadspted due to present economic conditions. Thesgonnel
seconded to the Company are not subject to Cole&argaining Agreements.

Risks

Economic and Political Conditions
The Company's business is mainly the acquisitiom@astments in gaming, which are generally influesh
by Philippine political and economic conditions.gbts and conditions that may have a negative impact

the Philippine economy as a whole may also advweraffect the Company’s ability to acquire various
investments.
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POSC experienced some opposition from the Locale@owent Unit (LGU) officials in certain VISMIN
areas during its introductory phase. Future opjoosftom government officials in certain areasiféicllt to
predict. Any opposition may hinder or slowdown tigening of other untapped areas in VISMIN for lotto
and keno outlets. Any incidence of, or a perceptbrpolitical resistance may adversely affect PGSC’
business and financial growth.

In order to mitigate the risk above, managemenpg&ebreast of any potential condition that may esblg
affect its operations, and, with the leadershithefCompany’s board of directors, considers avklaptions
and applicable steps to take to minimize risks.

Changes to the Philippine Laws and Regulations

Although laws and regulations are enacted for tmroon benefit, changes to these laws and regutatiay
create negative effects to the operating and filshnondition of PLC, including its subsidiariesdaatfiliates.

In order to mitigate the risks mentioned above,Gloenpany continues to exercise fiscal prudenceaalogpt
what it considers conservative financial and openal controls.

Competition Risk

As the Entertainment City grows and accommodate® rplayers, the increase in competition also pases
risk to the Company especially as it obtains gamhmage revenue, through PLAI, from City of Dreameanifa,
whose operations may be affected by the increapkagérs in the market. Aside from the Entertainti@ity,
new developments are also expected in other pakiewo Manila as well as in other cities like Cebu

In spite of the increase in competition, the inseei number of players in the gaming industryjseeted to
improve the Philippines’ ability to attract moredmn players to the Entertainment City, makingghening
industry in the country more robust. The Compargo anonitors the Company’s performance and the
performance of its competitors. The Company alsteawnors to always be up-to-date on market trends.

Risks relating to the Equipment Lease AgreemenijEdf POSC with PCSO
Any subsequent amendments to the Company's ELA RI@EO may affect POSC’s future results of
operations. More importantly, the term of POSC’sABkith PCSO shall terminate by the year 2018. ka th

event that the ELA’s term is not extended, POSQ stidp generating revenues from PCSQO'’s online lotto
operations.

While POSC relied on lotto revenues in the pass, éxpected that presence of other gaming-reladsthess
will support the Company’s earnings stream.

Data Privacy
PLC may be at risk for breach of data privacy awitél information is gathered from customers and
prospective buyers, suppliers, contractors and dilrginess partners. This risk is mitigated throcgmpany-
wide orientation on the Data Privacy Act, the tgpd€ which include legal bases and implementings@ind
regulations, rights of the individuals owning théormation, exercising breach reporting procedaresother
advisories.

The Company practices annual Enterprise Risk Managein identifying, assessing and addressingisks specified

above. Management monitors the

Properties

The Company has real estate property recordedrasiment asset held for sale. This pertains torateveloped land
in the City of Tanauan, Province of Batangas, artingrio B285.5 million.

These properties are not subject to mortgage giiehencumbrances.
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Legal Proceedings

To the best of the Company’s knowledge neithetGbmpany nor any of its subsidiaries or affiliatesiiparty to, nor
are they involved in, any litigation that will maitgly affect its interests.

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of sgchialders during the calendar year covered byrépert.

OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Sockholder Matters
MARKET INFORMATION
The principal market where the registrant’s comraquity is traded is the Philippine Stock Exchar®K). The high

and low sales prices for each quarter within tis¢ t&o fiscal years of the registrant’'s common ebaas quoted on
the PSE, are as follows:

STOCK PRICES

2017 High Low

First Quarter 1.60 1.16
Second Quarter 1.66 1.47
Third Quarter 1.70 1.53
Fourth Quarter 1.64 1.26
2016 High Low

First Quarter 1.00 0.44
Second Quarter 1.24 0.81
Third Quarter 1.22 0.84
Fourth Quarter 1.20 0.99

As of February 26, 2018, Premium Leisure Corp. madapitalization on 31,627,310,000 outstandingeshan the
PSE amounted to B38,585,318,200.00 based ondbsiaglprice of B1.22 per share.
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SECURITY HOLDERS

The number of shareholders of record as of Jan®4ry2018 was 368. Common shares outstanding as of
January 31, 2018 were 31,627,310,000. The top @0 shareholders as of January 31, 2018 arellasvé:

Name Citizenship Total Percentage
BELLE CORPORATION Filipino 24,904,904,324 78.74
PCD NOMINEE CORP. (FILIPINO) Filipino 5,622,437,600 13
PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION (NON-FILIPINO) Others 787,1835 2.49
SYSMART CORPORATION Filipino 128,270,000 0.41
SYNTRIX HOLDINGS, INC. Filipino 74,040,000 0.23
WILLY NG OCIER AND/OR GERALDINE ESCOLAR YU OCIER Fipino 22,000,000 0.07
WILLY NG OCIER Filipino 16,888,000 0.0
PARKORAM DEVELOPMENT LIMITED Others 14,264,119 0.05
OSCAR S. CU ITF ANTHONY CU Filipino 10,430,000 0.03
OSCAR S. CU Filipino 9,070,00 0.03
PARALLAX RESOURCES, INC. Filipino 4,570,30 0.01
GILBERT DEE Filipino 2,600,00 0.01
WASHINGTON Z. SYCIP American 1,597,000 0.01
ALEXANDER AUSTRIA & OR DOMINICA AUSTRIA Filipino 1,520,000 0.00
AUGUSTO LITONJUA &OR LUIS SALVADOR Filipino 1,520,00 0.00
CAI CHANG CHU Chinese 1,400,000 0.00
LEONCIO TAN TIU Filipino 1,300,00 0.00
ELIZABETH CHENG Filipino 1,100,00 0.00
WILLIAM T. GABALDON Filipino 1,000,00 0.00
MARY ANGELI F. BASILIO Filipino 900,00( 0.00
DIVIDENDS

The Company’s Board of Directors approved on Felyr@&, 2018 the declaration of cash dividends @DB391 per
share for a total cash dividend payment to its commshareholders of approximately B1,388.8 millayable on
March 23, 2018 to shareholders of record as of M8r2018.

In 2017, the Company declared and paid cash didslen B0.0281 per share for a total cash divigengnent to its
common shareholders of approximately R888 millidhis was paid on March 23, 2017 to sharehold&reanrd as
of March 10, 2017.

In 2016, the Company declared and paid cash didislef B0.0215 per share for a total cash divigendnent to its
common shareholders of approximately B680 millibims was paid on March 23, 2016 to shareholdersaérd as
of March 10, 2016.

In 2015, the Company declared and paid cash didsl@f B0.022 per share for a total cash divideaydnent to its
common shareholders of approximately B700 millitims was paid on April 17, 2015 to shareholderseabrd as of
March 20, 2015.

There is no legal restriction that limits or wolikely limit the Company’s ability to pay dividendaside from its
retained earnings available for such.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board of Directors adopted, as a matter ofcgptihat the Corporation shall declare dividendatdeast 80% of
the prior year’'s unrestricted retained earningsntainto consideration the availability of cashstrictions that may
be imposed by current and prospective financialecawnts, projected levels of cash, operating resufitsts
businesses/subsidiaries, working capital needsl@glterm capital expenditures of its businessésigiaries, and
regulatory requirements on dividend payments, anuthers.

Dividends shall be paid to all shareholders onnmeedgthin thirty (30) days from date of declaration
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RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

The Company did not sell or issue securities withepast three (3) years that were not registenelér the Securities
Regulation Code.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF OPERATING PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Catlition — 2017 compared to 2016

(Amounts in Peso except percentages) Years Ended December 31 Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis
2017 2016 Increase (Decrease) 2017 2016
REVENUE Amount %
Gaming revenue share 2,609,352,639 1,642,976,365 966,376,274 59% 53% 47%
Equipment lease rentals 1,840,520,991 1,579,660,972 260,860,019 17% 37% 45%
Commission and distribution income 479,472,385 308,438,496 171,033,889 55% 10% 9%
4,929,346,015 3,531,075,833 1,398,270,182 40% 100% 100%
COST AND EXPENSES
Cost of services 1,539,038,409 1,238,853,192 300,185,217 24% 31% 35%
General and administrative expenses 1,018,683,377 561,531,251 457,152,126 81% 21% 16%
Amortization of intangible asset 238,472,484 324,769,436 (86,296,952) -27% 5% 9%
2,796,194,270 2,125,153,879 671,040,391 32% 57% 60%
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)
Interestincome 75,918,013 47,139,103 28,778,910 61% 2% 1%
Dividend income 20,927,342 24,616,646 (3,689,304) -15% 0% 1%
Finance charges (10,859,855) (12,748,505) 1,888,650 -15% 0% 0%
Other expense - net 19,006,861 (24,228,217) 43,235,078 -178% 0% -1%
104,992,361 34,779,027 70,213,334 202% 2% 1%
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 2,238,144,106 1,440,700,981 797,443,125 55% 45% 41%
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX
Current 235,892,039 254,329,643 (18,437,604) 7% 5% 7%
Deferred (413,893) 28,271,202 (28,685,095) -101% 0% 1%
235,478,146 282,600,845 (47,122,699) -17% 5% 8%
NET INCOME 2,002,665,960 1,158,100,136 844,565,824 73% 41% 33%

Net Income Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 1,756,459,152 959,849,646 796,609,506 83% 36% 27%
Non-controlling interests 246,206,808 198,250,490 47,956,318 24% 5% 6%
2,002,665,960 1,158,100,136 844,565,824 73% 41% 33%

PLC recognized full-year 2017 audited consolidated income of Php2.0 billion, higher by 73% (or
Php844.6 million) than the 2016 reported net incahBhpl,158.1 million. Operating EBITDA (proxy for
cash flow) for the year is at Php2.6 billion, 37%rmthan its reported EBITDA of Php1.9 billion i@156.

The Company’s consistent profitability enabled PioQleclare a regular dividend of Php0.04391 peresha
on February 23, 2018, for a total dividend paymehtapproximately Php1,388.8 million, payable on
March 23, 2018 to shareholders of record as of M&,c2018. This cash dividend is 56% higher than th
dividends declared and paid in 2017.

2017 revenues increased considerably by 40% to.PHyillon from the 2016 revenues of Php3.5 billaue
mostly to the following factors: 1) the growth metgaming segments of City of Dreams Manila contet
Php2.6 billion in gaming revenue share, up by 59%#sws Phpl.6 billion recognized in 2016; 2) the
improvement in the sales of lotto and keno tickets2017 provided Php1,840.5 million in equipmesdde
rental revenues, increasing by 17% versus the gegar’s revenues of Php1,579.7 million; and 3) bigh
commission and distribution income by 55% or PhpQ Hillion.

Costs and expenses increased by Php671.0 milli@®17 due to the increase in costs of servicesttire

attributable to the Company’s gaming share reveagaipment lease rentals, commission, distributind
instant scratch tickets income and the increageneral and administrative expenses.
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(Amounts in Peso except percentages)

Years Ended December 31

Horizontal Analysis

Vertical Analysis

Increase (Decrease) 2017 2016
2017 2016 Amount %
NET INCOME 2,002,665,960 1,158,100,136 844,565,824 73% 41% 33%
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Other comprehensive income (loss) to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Mark-to-market gains (losses) on available-for-sale financial assets 132,500,049 62,197,638 70,302,411 113% 3% 2%
Realized loss transferred to profit or loss 31,647,929 - 31,647,929 100% 1% 0%
Remeasurement gain (loss) on net retirement benefits - net of tax 1,248,964 (496,546) 1,745,510 -352% 0% 0%
165,396,942 61,701,092 103,695,850 168% 3% 2%

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 2,168,062,902 1,219,801,228 948,261,674 78% 44% 35%
Total Comprehensive Income (Loss) Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 1,873,300,753 1,005,380,815 867,919,938 86% 38% 28%
Non-controlling interests 294,762,149 214,420,413 80,341,736 37% 6% 6%

2,168,062,902  1,219,801,228 948,261,674 78% 44% 35%

PLC recognized comprehensive income of Php2.2ohilfor 2017 versus Phpl.2 billion in 2016. This is

mainly due to a significantly higher net incomelimsd for 2017 as well as the recovery of the sipaiees of

its available-for-sale investments.

Aside from what has been mentioned in the foregdihgre were no significant elements that arosmfro

continuing operations, nor were there any seasvaits that had a material effect on the resultpefations

of PLC in 2017.
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

December 31 Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis

Increase (Decrease) 2017 2016
2017 2016 Amount %
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,962,635,687 1,811,503,962 1,151,131,725 64% 16% 11%
Investments held for trading 178,482,842 165,990,214 12,492,628 8% 1% 1%
Receivables 700,656,306 731,760,497 (31,104,191) -4% 4% 4%
Notes receivable 1,605,925,000 805,925,000 800,000,000 99% 9% 5%
Other current assets 205,657,568 164,427,432 41,230,136 25% 1% 1%
5,653,357,403  3,679,607,105 1,973,750,298 54% 30% 22%
Noncurrent asset held for sale 285,510,452 285,510,452 - 0% 2% 2%
Total Current Assets 5,938,867,855 " 3,965,117,557 1,973,750,298 50% 32% 23%
Noncurrent Assets
Intangible asset 9,668,071,971 9,906,544,455 (238,472,484) -2% 52% 59%
Available-for-sale financial assets 648,597,890 657,377,802 (8,779,912) -1% 3% 4%
Property and equipment 438,063,955 479,088,812 (41,024,857) -9% 2% 3%
Goodwill 1,832,260,734  1,828,577,952 3,682,782 0% 10% 11%
Deferred tax assets 15,439,685 14,576,327 863,358 6% 0% 0%
Retirement asset 13,413,273 8,630,802 4,782,471 55% 0% 0%
Other noncurrent assets 79,307,906 47,879,065 31,428,841 66% 0% 0%
Total Noncurrent Assets 12,695,155,414 12,942,675,215 (247,519,801) -2% 68% 77%
TOTAL ASSETS 18,634,023,269 16,907,792,772 1,726,230,497 10% 100% 100%
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade payables and other current liabilities 1,440,759,097 544,597,585 896,161,512 165% 8% 3%
Current portion of obligations under finance lease 39,488,510 47,698,388 (8,209,878) -17% 0% 0%
Income tax payable 29,434,444 43,000,753 (13,566,309) -32% 0% 0%
Current portion of installment payable 2,680,828 - 2,680,828 100% 0% 0%
Total Current Liabilities 1,512,362,879 635,296,726 877,066,153  138% 8% 4%
Noncurrent Liabilities
Obligation under finance lease 35,374,474 71,644,208 (36,269,734) -51% 0% 0%
Retirement liability 17,479,083 12,549,700 4,929,383 39% 0% 0%
Installment payable 2,762,995 - 2,762,995 100% 0% 0%
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 55,616,552 84,193,908 (28,577,356) -34% 0% 0%
Total Liabilities 1,567,979,431 719,490,634 848,488,797 118% 8% 4%
Equity Attr to the Equity Holders of the Parent
Capital stock 7,906,827,500  7,906,827,500 - 0% 42% 47%
Additional paid-in capital 7,238,721,924 7,238,721,924 - 0% 39% 43%
Cost of parent company shares held by a subsidiary (475,427,035) (438,877,905) (36,549,130) 8% -3% -3%
Other reserves 40,848,816 (75,992,785) 116,841,601 -154% 0% 0%
Retained earnings 1,604,112,304 727,181,016 876,931,288 121% 9% 4%
Total Equity Attr to Equity Holders of the Parent 16,315,083,509 15,357,859,750 957,223,759 6% 88% 91%
Non-controlling Interests 750,960,329 830,442,388 (79,482,059) -10% 4% 5%
Total Equity 17,066,043,838 16,188,302,138 877,741,700 5% 92% 96%
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 18,634,023,269 16,907,792,772 1,726,230,497 10% 100% 100%

As of December 31, 2017, PLC's total assets amduot®hp18,634.0 million, higher by Php1,726.2 ionil]
or 10% versus total assets as at December 31, 2Z0dypmovements in balance sheet items are asafsilo

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in bankshod-term investments or cash equivalents of the
Company.

Cash and cash equivalents increased by 64% (PHp1,dfllion) to Php2,962.6 million in 2017. Thichease
pertains to the collections of higher gaming reweshbare, cash dividends from the Company’s availfdsl
sale investments, interest income from banks and-¢brm investments, offset by the payment ofadbvids
to shareholders in March 2017 and operating expgense
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Investments held for trading

Investments held for trading increased by 8% mathlg to additional investments for the year as wasl|
mark-to-market gains and losses due to changdsaie prices.

Receivables
Receivables includes trade receivables from PCEO@SC'’s equipment rentals and receivables front¥el

for City of Dreams Manila’'s gaming share revenuava#i as operational advances to customers, supplie
and employees. The Company recorded net decred8é of Php31.1 million in receivables.

Intangible Asset

The Company’s intangible asset pertains to the PARQ@aming license obtained by PLC through its
subsidiary, PremiumLeisure and Amusement, Inc. (PL&n April 1, 2016, the Company implemented a
change in accounting estimate extending of the difehe intangible asset to concur with the term of
PAGCOR'’s Congressional Franchise which is renewf@blenother twenty-five (25) years upon its expaa

in 2033.

The decrease in the intangible asset account igght@bout by the amortization of the intangibleeds

Property and equipment

Property and equipment (PPE) of the Company pertaionline lottery equipment, leasehold improvetsien
office and transportation equipment. There is agral decrease of Php41.0 million in the accoumtjgared

to balances at December 31, 2016 due to the rexedjrdepreciation for the year that was tempered by
additions in PPE for the period.

Goodwill

Goodwill pertains to the goodwill recognized upamuaisition of controlling interest in POSC throutite
pooling method in 2015. The increase in the accqanmtains to additional goodwill recognized by the
Company upon LCC'’s acquisition of 100% ownershigeriest in the following nine entities engaged in
lotto/keno outlets and retail of scratchit tickets.

Total Liabilities

Total liabilities increased by P848.5 million or8% as at December 31, 2017 from total liabilitids o
Php719.5 million as at December 31, 2016. The aswds due mostly to the increase in trade and othe
payables related to POSC'’s operations as wellasased service fees related to the increase ilngashare
revenue from City of Dreams Manila.

Equity

Stockholders’ equity increased by P877.7 millioroa®ecember 31, 2017 from Php16,907.8 million fas o
December 31, 2016. The increase was due mainlyetancrease in retained earnings from the net imcom
earned for the year, offset in part by the dedlamatnd payment of dividends during the period Wwort
approximately Php888 million. Minority interestas Php751.0 million as at December 31, 2017.
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Below are the comparative key performance indicatdtthe Company and its majority-owned subsid&rie

Manner in which the
financial rations are December 31, | December 31,

Ratio computed 2017 2016
Current assets divided by

Current ratio A 3.93:1.00 6.24:1.00
current liabilities
Netincome (loss) divided by

Return on assets average total assets during the 11.27% 6.95%
period
Netincome (loss) divided by

Return on equity average total equity during the 12.04% 7.22%
period

Asset to equity Total assets divided by total 1.09:1.00 1.04:1.00
equity

Debt to equity Interest bearing debt divided 0.00:1.00 001:1.00

by total equity

Earnings before interest, tax,
Interest rate coverage depreciation and amortizaton 239.15 149.19
divided by interest expense

The current ratio of the Company decreased in 24# 6.24 to 3.93. This is mainly brought abouttbg
increase in current liabilities for 2017. Despite increase in current assets of 50%, the incri@asarrent
liabilities of 138% contributed to a lower curreatio.

Return on assets (from 6.95% to 11.27%) and retarequity (from 7.22% to 12.04%) significantly iroped
in 2017. This is mainly because of the 73% incréasest income for 2017 compared with previous ybkat
income in 2017 amounted to Php2.0 billion in 20&7sus Php1.2 billion in 2016.

Interest-bearing debt refers to obligations undearfce lease of lottery equipment of POSC. These ar
minimal compared with the Company’'s total equity.

No material off-balance sheet transactions, arnaweges, obligations, and other relationships ofGbenpany
with unconsolidated entities were created durirggytsar.

As of December 31, 2017, except for what has bexednin the preceding, there were no material event
uncertainties known to management that had a rahterpact on past performance, or that would haneterial
impact on the future operations, in respect offtflewing:

» Known trends, demands, commitments, events or tainées that would have a material impact on the
Company;

» Material commitments for capital expenditures @ reasonably expected to have a material impact o
the Company's short-term or long-term liquidity;

» Known trends, events or uncertainties that havedratiat are reasonably expected to have a material
favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/regsfimcome from continuing operations;

» Significant elements of income or loss that did amigée from the Company's continuing operations;

» Seasonal aspects that had a material impact c@dhmpany's results of operations; and

The Company does not foresee any liquidity probteer the next 12 months.

2018 Plan of Operations

PLC remains committed to look for various opportigsifor growth through profitable investments tmgeasing the
company’s shareholder value for partners and ivestlike. It shall likewise continue to partneithwits parent
corporation’s corporate social responsibility aBejle Kaagapay, to continue on enhancing qualitifeffor its host
communities.
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Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Catlition — 2016 compared to 2015

Consolidated Statements of Income

(Amounts in Peso except percentages) Years Ended December 31 Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis
2016 2015 Increase (Decrease) 2016 2015
REVENUE Amount %
Gaming revenue share 1,642,976,365 756,237,939 886,738,426 117% 47% 51%
Equipment lease rentals 1,579,660,972 630,926,248 948,734,724 150% 45% 43%
Commission and instant scratch tickets 308,438,496 88,400,678 220,037,818 249% 9% 6%
3,531,075,833 1,475,564,865 2,055,510,968 139% 100% 100%
COST AND EXPENSES
Cost of services 1,238,853,192 388,947,906 849,905,286 219% 35% 26%
General and administrative expenses 561,531,251 257,399,862 304,131,389 118% 16% 17%
Amortization of intangible asset 324,769,436 563,277,634 (238,508,198) -42% 9% 38%
2,125,153,879 1,209,625,402 915,528,477 76% 60% 82%
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)
Interestincome 47,139,103 42,034,540 5,104,563 12% 1% 3%
Dividend income 24,616,646 31,770,513 (7,153,867) -23% 1% 2%
Finance charges (12,748,505) (4,996,708) (7,751,797) 155% 0% 0%
Equity in net earnings of an associate - 75,525,743 (75,525,743) -100% 0% 5%
Other expense - net (24,228,217) (2,355,705) (21,872,512) 928% -1% 0%
34,779,027 141,978,383  (107,199,356) -76% 1% 10%
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 1,440,700,981 407,917,846 1,032,783,135 253% 41% 28%
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX
Current 254,329,643 186,833,985 67,495,658 36% 7% 13%
Deferred 28,271,202 (2,070,488) 30,341,690  -1465% 1% 0%
282,600,845 184,763,497 97,837,348 53% 8% 13%
NET INCOME 1,158,100,136 223,154,349 934,945,787 419% 33% 15%

Net Income Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 959,849,646 155,232,754 804,616,892 518% 27% 11%
Non-controlling interests 198,250,490 67,921,595 130,328,895 192% 6% 5%
1,158,100,136 223,154,349 934,945,787 419% 33% 15%

PLC recognized full-year 2016 audited consolidated income of Phpl.2 billion, higher by 419% (or
Php934.9 million) than 2015 net income of Php228ilion. Operating EBITDA (proxy for cash flow) for
the year is at Php1.9 billion, more than doubletitsreported EBITDA in 2015.

2016 revenues increased substantially by 139% t@3Bh billion from 2015's revenues of
Php1.5 billion due to mostly to the following fardo1) the overall improvement in all the gamingrsents

of City of Dreams Manila contributed Php1.6 billiongaming revenue share, up by 117% versus Php756.
million recognized in 2015 and 2) the full-year solidation of POSC in PLC contributed Php1.8 billio
revenues in 2016 from its equipment lease renwlwell as commission, distribution and instant &tra
tickets income, showing a growth of 162% from pgear’s Php719.3 million revenues for five montrenf
August 2015.

Costs and expenses increased by Php915.5 milli@d1% mostly due to the increase in costs of sesvic
directly attributable to the Company’s gaming shaesenue, equipment lease rentals, commission,
distribution and instant scratch tickets income,olvhincreased substantially for the year. General a
administrative expenses increased by Php304.1omiiti 2016 mostly due to the full-year consolidatif
POSC. Costs and expenses as a percentage to reversugecreased to 60% from 82% in 2015, an indicat
of growth in the Company as well as continuous afi@nal efficiency.

Equity in net earnings of an associate was notgmrized in 2016 due to POSC's consolidation begigpivin

August 2015, wherein POSC became a subsidiaryadsté an associate. This is the main reason for the
decrease in the Company’s other income.
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(Amounts in Peso except percentages) Years Ended December 31 Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis
Increase (Decrease) ' 2016 @ 2015
2016 2015 Amount %
NET INCOME 1,158,100,136 223,154,349 934,945,787 419% 33% 15%

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Other comprehensive income (loss) to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Mark-to-market gains (losses) on available-for-sale financial assets 62,197,638 (252,460,264) 314,657,902  -125% 2% -17%
Share in mark-to-market loss on available-for-sale financial assets of an associate - (38,258,713) 38,258,713  -100% 0% -3%
Remeasurement gain (loss) on net retirement benefits - net of tax (496,546) 4,582,575 (5,079,121) -111% 0% 0%
61,701,092 (286,136,402) 347,837,494 -122% 2% -19%
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 1,219,801,228  (62,982,053) 1,282,783,281 -2037% 35% -4%
Total Comprehensive Income (Loss) Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 1,005,380,815 (105,673,078) 1,111,053,893 -1051% 28% -7%
Non-controlling interests 214,420,413 42,691,025 171,729,388 402% 6% 3%
1,219,801,228  (62,982,053) 1,282,783,281  -2037% 35% -4%

PLC recognized comprehensive income of Phpl.2ohilfor 2016 versus comprehensive loss of Php63.0
million in 2015. This is mainly due to a signifidhnhigher net income realized for 2016 as welltlas
recovery of the share prices of its available-falesnvestments.

Aside from what has been mentioned in the foregdihgre were no significant elements that arosmfro

continuing operations, nor were there any seasvaits that had a material effect on the resultpefations
of PLC in 2016.
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

December 31 Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis
Increase (Decrease) ¥ 2016 ' 2015
2016 2015 Amount %
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,811,503,962 1,187,556,503 623,947,459 53% 11% 7%
Investments held for trading 165,990,214 226,746,690 (60,756,476) -27% 1% 1%
Receivables 731,760,497 509,585,194 222,175,303 44% 4% 3%
Notes receivable 805,925,000 805,925,000 - 0% 5% 5%
Other current assets 164,427,432 131,884,988 32,542,444 25% 1% 1%
3,679,607,105 2,861,698,375 817,908,730 29% 22% 17%
Noncurrent asset held for sale 285,510,452 285,510,452 - 0% 2% 2%
Total Current Assets 3,965,117,557 3,147,208,827 817,908,730 26% 23% 19%
Noncurrent Assets
Intangible asset 9,906,544,455 10,231,313,891 (324,769,436) -3% 59% 62%
Available-for-sale financial assets 657,377,802 586,543,893 70,833,909 12% 4% 4%
Property and equipment 479,088,812 544,628,438  (65,539,626) -12% 3% 3%
Goodwil 1,828,577,952 1,828,577,952 - 0% 11% 11%
Deferred tax assets 14,576,327 42,261,133 (27,684,806) -66% 0% 0%
Retirement asset 8,630,802 10,731,917 (2,101,115) -20% 0% 0%
Other noncurrent assets 47,879,065 50,731,752 (2,852,687) -6% 0% 0%
Total Noncurrent Assets 12,942,675,215 13,294,788,976 (352,113,761) -3% 77% 81%
TOTAL ASSETS 16,907,792,772 16,441,997,803 465,794,969 3% 100% 100%
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade payables and other current liabilities 544,597,585 365,772,706 178,824,879 49% 3% 2%
Current portion of obligations under finance lease 47,698,388 25,201,309 22,497,079 89% 0% 0%
Income tax payable 43,000,753 49,600,322 (6,599,569) -13% 0% 0%
Total Current Liabilities 635,296,726 440,574,337 194,722,389 44% 4% 3%
Noncurrent Liabilities
Obligation under finance lease 71,644,208 93,527,275 (21,883,067) -23% 0% 1%
Retirement liability 12,549,700 18,638,266 (6,088,566) -33% 0% 0%
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 84,193,908 112,165,541  (27,971,633) -25% 0% 1%
Total Liabilities 719,490,634 552,739,878 166,750,756 30% 4% 3%
Equity Attr to the Equity Holders of the Parent
Capital stock 7,906,827,500 7,906,827,500 - 0% 47% 48%
Additional paid-in capital 7,238,721,924 7,238,721,924 - 0% 43% 44%
Cost of parent company shares held by a subsidiary (438,877,905) (422,210,490) (16,667,415) 4% -3% -3%
Other reserves (75,992,785) (121,523,954) 45,531,169 -37% 0% -1%
Retained earnings 727,181,016 440,361,436 286,819,580 65% 4% 3%
Total Equity Attr to Equity Holders of the Parentl5,357,859,750 15,042,176,416 315,683,334 2% 91% 91%
Non-controlling Interests 830,442,388 847,081,509 (16,639,121) -2% 5% 5%
Total Equity 16,188,302,138 15,889,257,925 299,044,213 2% 96% 97%
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 16,907,792,772  16,441,997,803 465,794,969 3% 100% 100%

As of December 31, 2016, PLC’s total assets amaduot®hp16,907.8 million, higher by Php465.8 millio
or 3% versus total assets as at December 31, 20&p movements in balance sheet items are as fellow

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in banklzort-term investments or cash equivalents of the

Company.

The 53% increase (Php623.9 million) in cash andl eagiivalents pertains to the collections of higher
gaming share for 2016, the receipt of cash dividdnaim the Company’s available for sale investments
interest received from banks, short-term investmant loans receivable, offset by the payment of

dividends to shareholders in March 2016 and thengsys of expenses and fees.
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Investments held for trading

Investments held for trading decreased by 27% mainé to sale of investments for the year as veell a
mark-to-market gains and losses due to changdsaie prices.

Receivables

Receivables includes trade receivables from PC3@@SC’s equipment rentals and receivables from
Melco for City of Dreams Manila’s gaming share newe as well as operational advances to customers,
suppliers and employees. The Company recordechaegdse of 44% or Php222.2 million in receivables
due to: 1) City of Dreams Manila recorded high grgaming revenues for December 2016, thereby
translating to higher gaming revenue share for RirGhe month, due to be collected on the following
month and 2) Higher POSC receivables in line with higher revenues.

Intangible Asset

The Company'’s intangible asset pertains to the PAR@aming license obtained by PLC through its
subsidiary, PremiumLeisure and Amusement, Inc. (PL@n April 1, 2016, the Company implemented a
change in accounting estimate extending of theolifdhe intangible asset to concur with the term of
PAGCOR'’s Congressional Franchise which is renewftslanother twenty-five (25) years upon its
expiration in 2033.

The decrease in the intangible asset account igght@bout by the amortization of the license.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment (PPE) of the Company pertaimnline lottery equipment, leasehold
improvements, office and transportation equipme&here is an overall decrease of Php65.5 milliothen
account compared to balances at December 31, 284 &dhe recognized depreciation for the yearvitzest
tempered by additions in PPE for the period.

Goodwill

Gooduwill pertains to the goodwill recognized updrPs acquisition of controlling interest in POSC
through the pooling method in 2015. The increasgoiodwill is due to the additional goodwill recopedl
in 2017 upon LCC'’s consolidation

Total Liabilities

PLCs total liabilities increased by P166.8 millimn30% as at December 31, 2016 from total liab#itdf
Php552.7 million as at December 31, 2015. The asagés due mostly to the increase in trade and othe
payables related to POSC'’s operations as well@sased service fees related to the increase iimgam
share revenue from City of Dreams Manila.

Equity

Stockholders’ equity increased by P299.0 milliom&Becember 31, 2016 from Php15,889.3 millionfas o
December 31, 2015. The increase was due mainhetintrease in retained earnings from the net ircom
earned for the year, offset in part by the dedlanaand payment of dividends during the period Wwort
Php680 million. Minority interest is at Php830.4lion as at December 31, 2016.
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Below are the comparative key performance indicatbtthe Company and its majority-owned subsid&rie

Manner in which the
financial rations are December 31, | December 31,

Ratio computed 2016 2015

Current ratio Current gssg'gs divided by 6.24:1.00 7.14:1.00
current liabilities
Netincome (loss) divided by

Return on assets average total assets during the 6.95% 1.38%
period
Netincome (loss) divided by

Return on equity average total equity during the 7.22% 1.41%
period

Asset to equity Tote}l assets divided by total 1.04:1.00 1.03:1.00
equity

Debt to equity Interest bearing debt divided 0.01:1.00 0.01:1.00

by total equity

Earnings before interest, tax,
Interest rate coverage depreciation and amortizaton 149.22 200.02
divided by interest expense

The current ratio of the Company decreased in 2646 7.14 to 6.24. This is mainly brought abouttbg
increase in current liabilities for 2016 due to tdmasolidation of POSC. Despite the increase iretirassets
of 26%, the increase in current liabilities of 44&mtributed to a lower current ratio. In spiteldkt however,
the current assets of the Company can more thaguatkdy cover its current liabilities. In additiothe
Company does not foresee any cash flow or liquiglibblems over the next 12 months.

Return on assets (from 1.38% to 6.95%) and retoraquity (from 1.41% to 7.22%) significantly impexy/
in 2016. This is mainly because of the 419% in@daset income for 2016 compared to previous ydat.
income in 2016 amounted to Php1.2 billion in 20&6sus Php223 million in 2015.

Interest-bearing debt refers to obligations undearfce lease of lottery equipment of POSC. These ar
minimal compared with the Company’s total equitgriiings can cover interest charges 114 times o620
up from 83 times in 2015.

No material off-balance sheet transactions, arnareges, obligations, and other relationships ofCbenpany
with unconsolidated entities were created durirggytbar.

As of December 31, 2016, except for what has besednin the preceding, there were no material event
uncertainties known to management that had a rahterpact on past performance, or that would haneterial
impact on the future operations, in respect offtlewing:

* Known trends, demands, commitments, events or taindes that would have a material impact on the
Company;

* Material commitments for capital expenditures &t reasonably expected to have a material impact o
the Company's short-term or long-term liquidity;

» Known trends, events or uncertainties that havedratiat are reasonably expected to have a material
favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/regsfimcome from continuing operations;

» Significant elements of income or loss that did awige from the Company's continuing operations;

» Seasonal aspects that had a material impact dddhmepany's results of operations; and

The Company does not foresee any liquidity probteer the next 12 months.
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Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Catlition — 2015 compared to 2014

Consolidated Statements of Income

(Amounts in Peso, except percentages) Years Ended December 31 Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis
Increase (Decrease)
2015 2014 Amount % 2015 ~ 2014
REVENUE
Gaming revenue share 756,237,939 38,809,095 717,428,844 1849% 51% 100%
Equipment lease rentals 630,926,248 - 630,926,248 100% 43% 0%
Commission and instant scratch tickets 88,400,678 - 88,400,678 100% 6% 0%

1,475,564,865 38,809,095  1,436,755,770  3702% 100% 100%

COST AND EXPENSES

Cost of services 356,598,224 12,075,317 344,522,907 2853% 24% 31%
General and administrative expenses 289,749,544 408,292,190 (118,542,646) -29% 20% 1052%
Amortization of intangible asset 563,277,634 48,624,286 514,653,348 1058% 38% 125%

1,209,625,402 468,991,793 740,633,609 158% 82%  1208%

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)

Equity in net earnings of an associate 75,525,743 31,521,474 44,004,269 140% 5% 81%
Interest income 42,034,540 6,465,350 35,569,190 550% 3% 17%
Dividend income 31,770,513 1,999,754 29,770,759  1489% 2% 5%
Finance charges (4,996,708) - (4,996,708) -100% 0% 0%
Gain on sale of land - 149,170,154  (149,170,154)  -100% 0% 384%
Fair value change due to cancellation of swap - 1,643407,304 (1,643,407,304) -100% 0%  4235%
agreement and sale of golf club shares

Share in cumulative translation adjustments of (2,355,705) (58,318,988) 55,063,283 -96% 0%  -150%

available-for-sale financial assets

141,978,383 1,774,245,048 (1,632,266,665) -92% 10% 4572%

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 407,917,846  1,344,062,350 (936,144,504) -70% 28%  3463%

PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX

(Note 27)

Current 186,833,985 5,117,366 181,716,619  3551% 13% 13%

Deferred (2,070,488) - (2,070,488)  -100% 0% 0%
184,763,497 5,117,366 179,646,131 3511% 13% 13%

NET INCOME (LOSS) 223,154,349 1,338,944,984 (1,115,790,635) -83% 15% 3450%

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 155,232,754 1,338,944,984 (1,183,712,230) -88% 11%  3450%

Non-controlling interests 67,921,595 - 67,921,595 100% 5% 0%

223,154,349 1,338,944,984 (1,115,790,635) -83% 15%  3450%

PLC recognized full-year audited consolidated Bagsibefore interest, income taxes, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) of B1.0 billion for 2015. Fwyear consolidated net income is at B223.2 oillfor
2015.

2015 revenues increased substantially due to thgdar operations of City of Dreams - Manila framich

the Company receives gaming revenue share. Smapéning in December 2014, City of Dreams is now a
significant player in the gaming industry. Gamiegenue share for 2015 amounted to B756.2 miliersus

the reported share in 2014 of B38.8 million. Tlasolidation of POSC in PLC also contributed to the
significant increase in revenue by about B719I8ami On August 5, 2015, PLC acquired additionahes

of POSC, resulting in an overall ownership of 50.T%is resulted in the consolidation of the finatgiof
POSC, contributing higher revenues in terms of apeint lease rentals, commission, distribution asthint
scratch tickets revenues.

Costs and expenses increased by B740.6 milliopared with 2014 figures due to: (a) higher costenf/ices

in 2015 amounting to B356.6 million (these ardsdgectly associated with the Company’s gamingnele
share and equipment lease rentals) (b) full-yegfacebf amortization of intangible asset amountm@563.3
million in 2015 from B48.6 million in 2014, and) (he general increase is partially offset by logeneral
and administrative expenses which decreased bg.BIillion in 2015 due mainly to higher recognized
expenses in 2014, specifically related to provismmdoubtful accounts.

Full year net income of B223.2 million for 2015cdomased from 2014 reported net income of
B1,338.9 million. 2014 performance includes offdransactions resulting to other income amountm@
1,792.6 million due to corporate re-organizatioattthe Company had undertaken which resulted to the
acquisition of gaming businesses and sale of nomiggarelated assets.
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Years Ended December 31

Horizontal Analysis

Vertical Analysis

2015 2014 Increase (Decrease) 2015 2014
Amount %

NET INCOME (LOSS) 223,154,349  1,338,944,984 (1,115,790,635) -83% 15%  3450%
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Other comprehensive income (loss) to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Mark-to-market gains (losses) on available-for-sale (252,460,264) 23,420,369 (275,880,633) -1178%  -17% 60%
financial assets
Share in _mark-to—market loss on available-for-sale financial assets of (38,258,713) } (38.258.713) -100% 3% 0%
an associate
Falrl value change Fiue tg recovery of previous impairment of : 1,643,407,304 (1,643,407,304) -100% 0%  4235%
available-for-sale financial assets
Recycling of fair value change due to cancellation of swap - (1,643,407,304) 1,643.407,304  -100% 0%  -4235%
agreement and sale of golf club shares
Recycllng of share in c_umulatlve translation adjustments of . 58,318,088 (58,318,988)  100% 0% 150%
investment in an associate
Other comprehensive income (loss) not to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods:
Remeasurement gain on net retirement benefits - net of tax 4,582,575 - 4,582,575  100% 0% 0%
i:sorsigir:::?z?g?ent loss on net retirement benefits of an } (3.989.546) 3080546 -100% 0% 10%

(286,136,402) 77,749,811 (363,886,213) -468% -19% 200%
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (62,982,053) 1,416,694,795 (1,479,676,848) -104% -4%  3650%
Totgl comprehensive income (loss) attributable to: (105,673,078) 1,416,694,795 (1,522,367,873) -107% 7% 3650%
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests 42,691,025 - 42,691,025  100% 3% 0%

(62,982,053) 1,416,694,795 (1,479,676,848) -104% -4%  3650%
Comprehensive loss in 2015 is at B63.0 millionmpared with comprehensive income in 2014 of

B1,416.7 million mainly due to the lower net inafor 2015 as well as the higher mark-to-markes los
AFS investments that were recorded as part of atheprehensive loss.
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis
December 31 Increase (Decrease) December 31
" 2015 " 2014 Amount %" 2015 " 2014
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,187,556,503  2,692,121,573 (1,504,565,070) -56% 7% 17%
Investments held for trading 226,746,690 - 226,746,690 100% 1% 0%
Receivables 509,585,194 57,771,668 451,813,526 782% 3% 0%
Notes receivable 805,925,000 - 805,925,000 100% 5% 0%
Other current assets 131,884,988 28,849 131,856,139 457056% 1% 0%
Noncurrent asset held for sale 285,510,452 285,510,452 - 0% 2% 2%
Total Current Assets 3,147,208,827  3,035,432,542 111,776,285 4% 19% 19%
Noncurrent Assets
Intangible asset 10,231,313,891 10,794,591,525 (563,277,634) -5% 62% 68%
Available-for-sale financial assets 586,543,893 489,801,169 96,742,724 20% 4% 3%
Investment in an associate - 1,552,566,238 (1,552,566,238) -100% 0% 10%
Property and equipment 544,628,438 383,800 544,244,638 141804% 3% 0%
Goodwill 1,828,577,952 - 1,828,577,952 100% 11% 0%
Deferred tax asset 42,261,133 - 42,261,133 100% 0% 0%
Other noncurrent assets 61,463,669 85,498 61,378,171 71789% 0% 0%
Total Noncurrent Assets 13,294,788,976 12,837,428,230 457,360,746 4% 81% 81%
TOTAL ASSETS 16,441,997,803 15,872,860,772 569,137,031 4% 100% 100%
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade payables and other current liabilities 365,772,706 79,141,507 286,631,199 362% 2% 0%
Current portion of obligations under finance lease 25,201,309 - 25,201,309 100% 0% 0%
Income tax payable 49,600,322 4,812,080 44,788,242 931% 0% 0%
Total Current Liabilities 440,574,337 83,953,587 356,620,750 425% 3% 1%
Noncurrent Liabilities
Obligation under finance lease 93,527,275 -
Retirement liability 18,638,266 1,047,500 17,590,766 1679% 0% 0%
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 112,165,541 1,047,500 111,118,041 10608% 1% 0%
Total Liabilities 552,739,878 85,001,087 467,738,791 550% 3% 1%
Equity Attributable to the Equity Holders of the
Parent
Capital stock 7,906,827,500  7,906,827,500 - 0% 48% 50%
Additional paid-in capital 7,238,721,924  6,946,201,779 292,520,145 4% 44% 44%
Subscription receivable - (185,480,975) 185,480,975 -100% 0% -1%
Cost of parent company shares held by a subsidiary (422,210,490) - (422,210,490) -100% -3% 0%
Other reserves (121,523,954) 139,381,879 (260,905,833) -187% -1% 1%
Retained earnings 440,361,436 980,929,502 (540,568,066) -55% 3% 6%
15,042,176,416 15,787,859,685 (745,683,269) -5% 91% 99%
Non-controlling Interests 847,081,509 - 847,081,509 100% 5% 0%
Total Equity 15,889,257,925 15,787,859,685 101,398,240 1% 97% 99%
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 16,441,997,803 15,872,860,772 569,137,031 4% 100% 100%

Total assets increased by B569.1 million (4%)=i®,®242.0 million as of December 31, 2015 from
B15,827.9 million as of December 31, 2014. Thisease was mainly brought about by the consotidaif
POSC in 2015, which contributed to significant eeses in the Company’s receivables, investments (bo
marketable securities and AFS) and property angpatgnt. Goodwill of B1,828.6 million was recogrdzzes

a result of the acquisition of controlling interesPOSC, accounted for using the pooling methoelaivhile,
intangible asset decreased by B563.3 million itb2@ue to amortization for the year.

Total liabilities amounted to B552.7 million in %) up by 550% from 2014’s B85.0 million amourttisT
increase was also mainly brought about by the dimtagmn of POSC's financials with PLC.

The increase in income tax payable for 2015 is paiue to the higher revenues recorded for the yeesus
the previous year, resulting to relatively higteetds.

Stockholders’ equity amounted to B15,889.3 millas of December 31, 2015. This increased by B101.4
million from 2014. Changes in stockholders’ equitglude an increase in additional paid-in capitgl b
B292.5 million mostly due to the effect of the [l method in consolidating POSC, B422.2 million
treasury shares held by a subsidiary, full paynier2015 of subscription receivable amounting t@®%
million, a decrease in other reserves by B260lRomibrought about mainly by the mark-to-marketdes in
AFS. Retained earnings for 2015 is also lower B#®6 million versus 2014 due to the B695.8 niillio
dividends declared and paid during the year ofigehe B223.2 million net income (of which B15&illion

is attributable to the parent company) recognizedie year.
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Below are the comparative key performance indicatbtthe Company and its majority-owned subsidgrie

Manner in which the
financial rations are December 31, | December 31,
Ratio computed 2015 2014
Current ratio Current assets divided by 7.14:1.00 7.14:1.00
current liabilities
Net income (loss) divided by
Return on assets average total assets during the 1.38% 14.93%
period
Net income (loss) divided by
Return on equity average total equity during the 1.41% 15.20%
period
Asset to equity thjt'yassets divided by total 1.03:1.00 1.01:1.00
Debt to equity Ig;igi: zgant;g debt divided 0.01:1.00 Not applicable
Earnings before interest and
Interest rate coverage taxes divided by interest 200.02 Not applicable
expense

The current ratio of the Company decreased for 28 32.76 to 7.14. This is mainly brought abowtie
increase in current liabilities for 2015 due to tlmasolidation of POSC. Despite the increase iretirassets
of 14%, the increase in current liabilities of 425%ects the current ratio heavily. In spite ofsthiowever,
the current assets of the Company can more thaguatkdy cover its current liabilities. In additiothe

Company does not foresee any cash flow or liquiglibblems over the next 12 months.

Return on assets (from 14.93% to 1.38%) and redarequity (from 15.20% to 1.41%) also significantly
declined in 2015. This is mainly because of thatretly lower net income recognized in 2015 ver20$4.
2014 recorded several one-off transactions dubdad-organization that contributed to the higtetunn on

assets and return on equity in 2014,

No material off-balance sheet transactions, arnareges, obligations, and other relationships ofCbenpany

with unconsolidated entities were created durirggytbar.

As of December 31, 2015, except for what has besednin the preceding, there were no material event
uncertainties known to management that had a mahterpact on past performance, or that would haneterial

impact on the future operations, in respect offtlewing:

» Known trends, demands, commitments, events or tainées that would have a material impact on the

Company;

» Material commitments for capital expenditures &t reasonably expected to have a material impact o

the Company's short-term or long-term liquidity;

* Known trends, events or uncertainties that havedratiat are reasonably expected to have a material

favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/regsfincome from continuing operations;

» Significant elements of income or loss that did awige from the Company's continuing operations;

» Seasonal aspects that had a material impact dddhmepany's results of operations; and

The Company does not foresee any liquidity probbeer the next 12 months.
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Key Variables and other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors

The Company expects no material commitments foitalegxpenditures and expected funds in 2017. hEo t
best of the Company’s knowledge, aside from whatalieeady been mentioned in the preceding, thera@r
known trends, events or uncertainties that willéhavmaterial impact on sales; no significant elesef
income or loss that did not arise from continuingem@ations aside from those disclosed in the Naiabhée
Audited Financial Statements; and no seasonal tspéth material effect on results of operations.

PLC maintains sufficient cash balances to meet mim operational requirements, as determined by
management from time to time. Additional cash regpaients are sourced from affiliates. To the béthe
Company’s knowledge, there are no known trendsitevar uncertainties that will have a material itpan

its liquidity.

Information on Independent Accountant and Other Rehted Matters
a. External Audit Fees
a.l. Audit and Audit-Related Fees

The aggregate fees paid by the Company for prafeakservices (excluding Value Added Tax) rendered
by the external auditor for the audit of finanad#htements for the years ended 31 December 2017 and

2016 follow:
(R000's omitted)
2017 P432.0
2016 400.0

a.2. There were no other assurance and relateideghy the external auditor that are reasonaltdyee
to the performance of the audit or review of thgisant's financial statements.

b. Tax Fees

There were no professional services rendered bgsttenal auditor for tax accounting complianceyieg]
planning and any other form of tax services in eafde last two years.

c. All Other Fees

There were no other professional services rendgrélde external auditors for each of the last tewarg other
than item (a) and (b) above.

d. The Audit Committee's approval policies and prared for the above services

The Audit Committee has the oversight responsjbditer the audit function and activities of the Gamy's
internal and external auditors. It provides assteahat financial disclosures made by the managease
presented in the Auditor's report reasonably refl@cthe financial condition; the result of opéat and the
plans and long-term commitments; and (b) interoatwls are operating as intended.

The Audit Committee has the responsibility to rectend an external auditor to be selected and apgabint
by the stockholders during each annual stockhaldeeeting.

It reviews the audit coverage of the External Aoditand deliberates on their audit report pri@rtdorsement
to the Board of Directors and presented to theksimider's for approval.

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Please refer to the portion of this Informationt&taent on "Directors and Executive Officers".
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COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company remains focused on insuring the adopbb systems and practices of good corporate
governance in enhancing value for its shareholders.

In compliance with the initiative of the Securitiead Exchange Commission (“SEC”), PLC submitted its
Corporate Governance Manual (the “Manual”) to tlE&CS This manual institutionalizes the principlds o
good corporate governance in the entire Compang. Cbmpany believes that corporate governance, the
framework of rules, systems and processes govertiiagperformance of the Board of Directors and
Management of their respective duties and respiitis, and from which the organization’s valuasda
ethics emerge, is of utmost importance to the Camyigasshareholders and other stakeholders, whiddiec
among others, clients, employees, suppliers, fieascgovernment and community in which it operaldse
Company undertakes every effort possible to creareness throughout the entire organization.

Even prior to the submission of its Manual, howewae Company already created various Board-level
committees. These committees were comprised okanlive Committee to oversee the management of the
Company and is responsible for the Company’s firangoals and policies, an Audit Committee to nevie
financial and accounting matters, a Nomination Cdttes for the selection and evaluation of qualificas

of directors and officers, and a Compensation aachliheration Committee to look into an appropriate
remuneration system. Subsequently, the followingrb@ommittees were created: a Board Risk Oversight
Committee to review the policies and procedurestirey to the identification, analysis, management,
monitoring and reporting of financial and non-fical risks, a Related Party Transactions Committee
monitor and review significant related party trastgmns. Likewise, a Corporate Governance Committas
formed to review the Company’s continual procesgadd corporate governand®n April 24, 2017, the
Nomination Committee was merged with the Corpoaeernance Committed Compliance Officer was
also appointed. Members of various committees gpected to serve for a term of one (1) year. Thea@any
submits its Corporate Governance Self-Rating repgorthe SEC and PSE as proof of its complianck tlui
leading practices and principles on good corpayaternance.

The Board establishes the major goals, policieshjettives of the Company, as well as the meansotator
and evaluate the performance of Management. ThadBako ensures that adequate internal control
mechanisms are implemented and properly compliedl ievels.

The Company remains committed to adhere to thedmepbrate governance practices following the mdea
of the 2016 Corporate Governance Code. For 20f&tipes and company policies were developed and
approved by the Board not only to protect the g and rights of the shareholders and staketsabdealso

to promote transparency and accountability. Sormtbeexe are shown below:

Appointment of a Lead Independent Director

Review of Board Charters annually

Merger of Nomination Committee with the CG Coittee

Setting of retirement age for Directors and IKdficers

Scheduling of Board and Committee Meetingsatstart of the year

Appointment of a Compliance Officer who is aa@te individual from the Corporate Secretary
Setting a threshold for related party transacti

NogrwbPE

The Company is not aware of any non-compliance wdttManual of Corporate Governance, by any of its
directors, officers or employees.
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UNDERTAKING TO PROVIDE COPIES OF THE INFORMATION ST ATEMENT
AND THE ANNUAL REPORT

UPON WRITTEN REQUEST OF ANY SHAREHOLDER OF RECORD E NTITLED TO NOTICE OF AND
VOTE AT THE MEETING, THE COMPANY SHALL FURNISH SUCH SHAREHOLDER WITH A COPY
OF THE COMPANY’S INFORMATION STATEMENT (ON SEC FORM 20-IS) AND ANNUAL REPORT
(ON SEC FORM 17-A) WITHOUT CHARGE. ANY SUCH WRITTE N REQUEST SHALL BE ADDRESSED

TO:

THE CORPORATE SECRETARY
PREMIUM LEISURE CORP.

5F TOWER A, TWO E-COM CENTER,
PALM COAST AVENUE,

MALL OF ASIA COMPLEX, PASAY CITY
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC Building, EDSA Greenhills
Mandaluyong City, Metro Manila

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Premium Leisure Corp. and Subsidiaries is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements including the schedules attached therein. for the
years ended December 31. 2017 and 2016, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting
framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.. the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders. has audited the
consolidated financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing,
and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
complc/ n of such audit.

WILLY N. OCIER
Chairman of the Board

for

NIO B. RAQUEL-SANTOS
hief Executive Officer

Signed this 23" day of February 2018

5™ Floor Tower A, Two E-Com Center Palm Coast Avenue, Mall of Asia Complex CBP-1A, Pasay City 1300
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Premium Leisure Corp.

5th Floor, Tower A

Two E-Com Center, Palm Coast Avenue
Mall of Asia Complex, Pasay City

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Premium Leisure Corp. and its subsidiaries
(the Company), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31,
2017 and 2016, and the consolidated statements of income, consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2017, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2017 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Recoverability of Goodwill in Pacific Online Systems Corporation

Under PFRS, the Company is required to annually test the amount of goodwill for impairment. As of
December 31, 2017, goodwill arising from the acquisition of Pacific Online Systems Corporation (POSC)
amounted to £1,717.6 million out of a total goodwill balance of £1,832.3 million. The Company’s
assessment of the recoverable amount of the POSC cash generating unit (CGU) was based on value-in-
use calculation. In addition, management’s assessment process requires significant judgment and is based
on assumptions, specifically revenue growth rate, discount rate and the long-term growth rate. Given the
significant level of management judgement and estimation involved in the value-in-use calculation, we
considered this area to be a key audit matter.

The Company’s disclosures about goodwill are included in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Audit Response

We involved our internal specialist in evaluating the methodologies and the assumptions used. These
assumptions include revenue growth rate, discount rate and the long-term growth rate. We compared the
key assumptions used, such as revenue growth rate against the historical performance of the CGU and
other relevant external data. We tested the parameters used in the determination of the discount rate
against market data. We also reviewed the Company’s disclosures about those assumptions to which the
outcome of the impairment test is most sensitive; specifically those that have the most significant effect
on the determination of the recoverable amount of goodwill.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement) and Annual Report for the year ended
December 31, 2017, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement) and Annual Report for the year ended
December 31, 2017 are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audits, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We

remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Belinda T. Beng Hui.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

W T. Moy
elinda T. Beng Htii

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 88823

SEC Accreditation No. 0923-AR-2 (Group A),
May 1, 2016, valid until May 1, 2019

Tax Identification No. 153-978-243

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-78-2015,
June 26, 2015, valid until June 25, 2018

PTR No. 6621231, January 9, 2018, Makati City

February 23, 2018

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



PREMIUM LEISURE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

2017

2016

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 7 and 29)

P2,962,635,687 P1,811,503,962

Investments held for trading (Notes 8 and 29) 178,482,842 165,990,214
Receivables (Notes 9, 26 and 29) 700,656,306 731,760,497
Notes receivable (Notes 10, 26 and 29) 1,605,925,000 805,925,000
Other current assets (Notes 11 and 29) 205,657,568 164,427,432
5,653,357,403 3,679,607,105
Noncurrent asset held for sale (Note 15) 285,510,452 285,510,452
Total Current Assets 5,938,867,855 3,965,117,557
Noncurrent Assets
Intangible asset (Note 12) 9,668,071,971 9,906,544,455
Available-for-sale financial assets (Notes 13, 26 and 29) 648,597,890 657,377,802
Property and equipment (Note 14) 438,063,955 479,088,812
Goodwill (Notes 16 and 17) 1,832,260,734 1,828,577,952
Deferred tax assets (Note 25) 15,439,685 14,576,327
Retirement asset (Note 19) 13,413,273 8,630,802
Other noncurrent assets (Notes 29 and 31) 79,307,906 47,879,065
Total Noncurrent Assets 12,695,155,414 12,942,675,215

TOTAL ASSETS

P18,634,023,269 £16,907,792,772

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Trade payables and other current liabilities (Notes 18 and 29) P1,443,439,925 P544,597,585
Current portion of obligations under finance lease
(Notes 27 and 29) 39,488,510 47,698,388
Income tax payable 29,434,444 43,000,753
Total Current Liabilities 1,512,362,879 635,296,726
Noncurrent Liabilities
Obligations under finance lease (Notes 27 and 29) 35,374,474 71,644,208
Retirement liability (Note 19) 17,479,083 12,549,700
Installment payable (Note 29) 2,762,995 -
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 55,616,552 84,193,908
Total Liabilities 1,567,979,431 719,490,634

(Forward)



December 31

2017 2016

Equity Attributable to the Equity Holders of the Parent
(Notes 20 and 29)

Capital stock

Additional paid-in capital

Cost of Parent Company shares held by a subsidiary

Other reserves

Retained earnings

£7,906,827,500 £7,906,827,500

7,238,721,924  7,238,721,924
(475,427,035)  (438,877,905)
40,848,816 (75,992,785)

1,604,112,304 727,181,016

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent

Non-controlling Interests (Note 16)

16,315,083,509 15,357,859,750

750,960,329 830,442,388

Total Equity

17,066,043,838 16,188,302,138

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

P18,634,023,269 P16,907,792,772

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



PREMIUM LEISURE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31
2017 2016 2015
REVENUE
Gaming revenue share - net (Notes 21 and 31) £2,609,352,639 P1,642,976,365 £756,237,939
Equipment rental (Notes 27 and 31) 1,840,520,991 1,579,660,972 630,926,248
Commission and distribution income (Note 31) 479,472,385 308,438,496 88,400,678
4,929,346,015 3,531,075,833 1,475,564,865
COST AND EXPENSES
Cost of services (Note 22) 1,539,038,409 1,238,853,192 388,947,906
General and administrative expenses (Note 23) 1,018,683,377 561,531,251 257,399,862
Amortization of intangible asset (Note 12) 238,472,484 324,769,436 563,277,634
2,796,194,270 2,125,153,879 1,209,625,402
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)
Interest income (Notes 7, 10 and 20) 75,918,013 47,139,103 42,034,540
Dividend income (Notes 8 and 13) 20,927,342 24,616,646 31,770,513
Finance charges (10,859,855) (12,748,505) (4,996,708)
Equity in net earnings of an associate - - 75,525,743
Other income (expense) - net (Note 24) 19,006,861 (24,228,217) (2,355,705)
104,992,361 34,779,027 141,978,383
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 2,238,144,106 1,440,700,981 407,917,846
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX
(Note 25)
Current 235,892,039 254,329,643 186,833,985
Deferred (413,893) 28,271,202 (2,070,488)
235,478,146 282,600,845 184,763,497
NET INCOME £2,002,665,960 £1,158,100,136 P223,154,349

Net Income Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 1,756,459,152 959,849,646 155,232,754
Non-controlling interests 246,206,808 198,250,490 67,921,595
£2,002,665,960 P1,158,100,136 P223,154,349
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Common Share Attributable to
Equity Holders of the Parent (Note 28) £0.056140 £0.030662 £0.004948

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



PREMIUM LEISURE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31
2017 2016 2015
NET INCOME £2,002,665,960 £1,158,100,136 P223,154,349

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Other comprehensive income (loss) to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Marked-to-market gains (losses) on available-for-sale

financial assets (Note 13) 132,500,049 62,197,638 (252,460,264)
Share in marked-to-market loss on available-for-sale
financial assets of an associate - — (38,258,713)
Realized loss transferred to profit or loss (Note 13) 31,647,929 - -
Other comprehensive income (loss) not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Remeasurement gain (loss) on net retirement benefits - net of
tax 1,248,964 (496,546) 4,582,575
165,396,942 61,701,092 (286,136,402)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) £2,168,062,902 P1,219,801,228 (R62,982,053)
Total Comprehensive Income (Loss) Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent £1,873,300,753  £1,005,380,815 (P105,673,078)
Non-controlling interests 294,762,149 214,420,413 42,691,025
£2,168,062,902 P1,219,801,228 (R62,982,053)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



PREMIUM LEISURE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017, 2016 AND 2015

Other Reserves

Cumulative Share in
Unrealized Other
Cost of Parent Mark-to-Market Comprehensive
Company Gain on Remeasurement Income Total Equity
Additional Shares  Available-for- Losses on  of an Associate Attributable
Paid-in Held by a  Sale Financial Defined Benefit and Other Retained to the Equity Non-controlling
Capital Stock Capital Subsidiary Assets Obligation Reserves Earnings  Holders of the Interest
(Note 20) (Note 20) (Note 20) (Note 13) (Note 19) (Notes 13 and 20) (Note 20) Parent (Note 2) Total
Balance at January 1, 2017 £7,906,827,500 $7,238,721,924  (P438,877,905)  P£180,498,708 (P2,171,796) (P254,319,697) $727,181,016 P15,357,859,750 £830,442,388 £16,188,302,138
Net income - - - - - - 1,756,459,152 1,756,459,152 246,206,808 2,002,665,960
Other comprehensive (income) loss:
Remeasurement gain on net retirement
benefits - net of tax - - - - 625,731 - - 625,731 623,233 1,248,964
Marked-to-market gain on available-for-sale
financial assets - - - 100,360,258 - - - 100,360,258 32,139,791 132,500,049
Realized loss transferred to profit or loss - - - 15,855,612 — — — 15,855,612 15,792,317 31,647,929
Total comprehensive income — - - 116,215,870 625,731 - 1,756,459,152 1,873,300,753 294,762,149 2,168,062,902
Parent Company shares held by a subsidiary
(Note 20) - - (36,549,130) - - - - (36,549,130) - (36,549,130)
Cash dividends (Note 20) - - - - - - (879,527,864) (879,527,864) - (879,527,864)
Cash dividends received by non-controlling
interest (Note 2) — — — — — — — - (162,402,617) (162,402,617)
Purchase of treasury shares - — - - - - — - (211,841,591) (211,841,591)
Balance at December 31,2017 £7,906,827,500 $7,238,721,924  (P475,427,035) 296,714,578 (P1,546,065) (P254,319,697) P1,604,112,304 £16,315,083,509 £750,960,329 £17,066,043,838

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



Other Reserves

Cumulative Share in
Unrealized Other
Cost of Parent Mark-to-Market Comprehensive
Company Gainon Remeasurement Income Total Equity
Additional Shares Available-for- Losseson  ofan Associate Attributable
Paid-in Held by a Sale Financial —Defined Benefit and Other Retained to the Equity  Non-controlling
Capital Stock Capital Subsidiary Assets Obligation Reserves Earnings Holders of the Interest
(Note 20) (Note 20) (Note 20) (Note 13) (Note 19) (Notes 13 and 20) (Note 20) Parent (Note 2) Total
Balance at January 1, 2016 P£7,906,827,500 £7,238,721,924  (P422,210,490)  P134,718,769 (R1,923,026) (P254,319,697)  P440,361,436 P15,042,176,416 P847,081,509 P15,889,257,925
Net income - - - - - - 959,849,646 959,849,646 198,250,490 1,158,100,136
Other comprehensive (income) loss:
Remeasurement loss on net retirement
benefits - net of tax - - - - (248,770) - - (248,770) (247,776) (496,546)
Mark-to-market gain on available-for-sale
financial assets — — — 45,779,939 — — — 45,779,939 16,417,699 62,197,638
Total comprehensive income (loss) - - - 45,779,939 (248,770) - 959,849,646 1,005,380,815 214,420,413 1,219,801,228
Parent Company shares held by a subsidiary
(Note 20) - - (16,667,415) - - - - (16,667,415) - (16,667,415)
Cash dividends (Note 20) - - - - - - (673,030,066) (673,030,066) - (673,030,066)
Cash dividends received by non-controlling
interest (Note 2) - - - - - - - - (174,240,356) (174,240,356)
Purchase of treasury shares — — — — — — — — (56,819,178) (56,819,178)
Balance at December 31,2016 P7,906,827,500 $£7,238,721,924  (P438,877,905)  P180,498,708 (2,171,796)  ($254,319,697)  P727,181,016 P15,357,859,750 P830,442,388 P16,188,302,138

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



Other Reserves

Cumulative Share in
Unrealized Other
Cost of Parent Mark-to-Market Remeasurement Comprehensive
Company Gain on Gains and Income Total Equity
Additional Shares Available-for- (Losses) on  ofan Associate Attributable
Paid-in Subscriptions Held by a Sale Financial —Defined Benefit and Other Retained to the Equity ~ Non-controlling
Capital Receivable Subsidiary Assets Obligation Reserves Earnings Holders of the Interest
(Note 20) (Note 20) (Note 20) (Note 13) (Note 19) (Notes 13 and 20) (Note 20) Parent (Note 2) Total
Balance at January 1,2015  £7,906,827,500 £6,946,201,779  (R185,480,975) P— 397,691,122 P— (P258,309,243)  £980,929,502 215,787,859,685 P— P15,787,859,685
Net income - - - - - - 155,232,754 155,232,754 67,921,595 223,154,349
Other comprehensive
(income) loss:
Remeasurement gain on
net retirement benefits
- net of tax - - - - 2,066,520 - - 2,066,520 2,516,055 4,582,575
Mark-to-market loss on
available-for-sale
financial assets - - - (224,713,640) - - - (224,713,640) (27,746,624) (252,460,264)
Share in mark-to-market
loss on available-for-
sale financial assets of
an associate - - - - - (38,258,713) - (38,258,713) - (38,258,713)
Total comprehensive income
(loss) - - - (224,713,640) 2,066,520 (38,258,713) 155,232,754 (105,673,079) 42,691,026 (62,982,053)
Subscriptions collected, net
of listing fees (Note 20) (4,567,388) 185,480,975 — — — — — 180,913,587 — 180,913,587
Step acquisition (Note 16) 297,087,533 - (286,398,070) (38,258,713) (3,989,546) 42,248,259 - 10,689,463 849,067,497 859,756,960
Parent Company shares held
by a subsidiary (Note 22) — — (135,812,420) — — — — (135,812,420) — (135,812,420)
Cash dividends (Note 20) - - - - - - (695,800,820) (695,800,820) — (695,800,820)
Cash dividends received by
non-controlling interest
(Note 2) - - - - - - - - (44,677,014) (44,677,014)
Balance at
December 31,2015 P7,906,827,500 $£7,238,721,924 P- (P422,210,490)  P134,718,769 (1,923,026)  ($254,319,697)  P440,361,436 P15,042,176,416 P847,081,509 P15,889,257,925

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



PREMIUM LEISURE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
2017 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax £2,238,144,106 P1,440,700,981 £407,917,846
Adjustments for:
Amortization of intangible asset (Note 12) 238,472,484 324,769,436 563,277,634
Depreciation and amortization of property and
equipment (Note 14) 225,559,130 171,262,447 65,301,971
Interest income (Notes 7, 10 and 20) (75,918,013) (47,139,103) (42,034,540)
Write-off of input VAT (Notes 11 and 23) 25,000,000 - -
Dividend income (Note 13) (20,927,342) (24,616,646) (31,770,513)
Marked-to-market loss (gain) of investments held for
trading (Note 24) (2,204,528) 37,137,005 29,331,526
Foreign exchange loss (Note 24) 1,671,684 1,620,149 698,585
Finance charges 10,859,855 12,748,505 4,996,708
Loss (gain) on sale of:
Available-for-sale financial asset (Note 13) 31,647,929 - -
Property and equipment (Note 24) (155,142) (29,997) 446,948
Investments held for trading (Note 24) - - (11,363,516)
Equity in net earnings of an associate - - (75,525,743)
Reversal of allowance for input value-added tax
(Note 24) — — (10,992,915)
Operating income before working capital changes 2,672,150,163 1,916,452,777 900,283,991
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables (107,930,214)  (222,175,303) 146,814,649
Other current assets (47,823,031) (49,725,724) (41,242,223)
Increase (decrease) in:
Trade payables and other current liabilities 876,816,020 177,197,756 65,153,439
Installment payable 5,443,823 - -
Retirement liability 1,797,113 (15,802,310) (5,736,204)
Cash used generated from operations 3,400,453,874 1,805,947,196 1,065,273,652
Income taxes paid (242,991,545) (243,738,958)  (128,269,589)
Interest received 77,453,124 47,139,103 38,173,395
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,234,915,453 1,609,347,341 975,177,458
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of:
Property and equipment (Note 14) (150,351,408) (112,119,120) (223,409,934)
Available-for-sale financial asset (Note 13) (31,653,940) (8,636,271) (14,546,522)
Investments held for trading (Note 8) (17,034,130) (5,683,853) (37,541,840)
Dividends received 20,927,342 24,616,646 62,271,200
Decrease (increase) in:
Other noncurrent assets (772,618) 13,584,604 (9,460,547)
Notes receivable (Note10) (800,000,000) - (1,805,925,000)
Proceeds from sale of:
Property and equipment 1,074,612 6,426,296 1,013,249
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 13) 172,933,901 - -
Disposal of investments held for trading (Note 8) 6,746,030 29,303,324 42,368,432
Net cash acquired from acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 16) 66,444,703 — 179,986,807
Net cash used in investing activities (731,685,508) (52,508,374) (1,805,244,155)

(Forward)



Years Ended December 31
2017 2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (P1,041,930,481) (P847,270,422) (R740,477,834)
Purchase of treasury shares by a subsidiary (211,841,591) (56,819,178) -
Additional cost of parent company shares held by a

subsidiary (Note 20) (36,549,130) (16,667,415)  (135,812,420)
Increase (decrease) in obligations under finance lease (61,777,018) (12,134,493) 20,878,294
Collections of subscription receivable (Note 20) — — 180,913,587
Net cash used in financing activities (1,352,098,220)  (932,891,508)  (674,498,373)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,151,131,725 623,947,459  (1,504,565,070)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,811,503,962  1,187,556,503  2,692,121,573
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

(Note 7) £2,962,635,687 £1,811,503,962 £1,187,556,503

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



PREMIUM LEISURE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General Information

Corporate Information

Premium Leisure Corp., formerly Sinophil Corporation, (“PLC” or “Parent Company”), incorporated
and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as Sinophil
Exploration Co., Inc. on November 26, 1993, was originally organized with oil and gas exploration
and development as its primary purpose and investments and development as among its secondary
purposes. On June 3, 1997, the SEC approved PLC’s application for a change in its primary purpose
from oil and gas exploration and development to investment holding and real estate development. On
September 5, 2014, the SEC approved the change in PLC’s primary purpose to that of engagement
and/or investment in gaming-related businesses.

PLC, a publicly-listed company traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE), is 79.00%
(direct and indirect) owned by Belle Corporation (“Belle”) and the rest by the public as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016.

PLC and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Company”) have investment portfolio
consisting of investment holding, gaming business and lottery equipment leasing, distribution and
others.

The registered office address of the Company is 5th Floor, Tower A, Two E-Com Center,
Palm Coast Avenue, Mall of Asia Complex, Pasay City.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and the following
subsidiaries:

Percentage of Ownership
2017 2016
Direct Indirect  Direct Indirect

Gaming Business

PremiumLeisure and Amusement, Inc. (PLAI) 100.00 - 100.00 -
Real Estate
Foundation Capital Resources, Inc. (FCRI)® 100.00 - 100.00 -
Public Amusement and Recreation
Sinophil Leisure and Resorts Corporation (SLRC)® 100.00 - 100.00 -
Lottery Equipment Leasing, Distribution and Others
Pacific Online Systems Corporation (POSC) 5291 - 50.66 -
Loto Pacific Leisure Corporation (LotoPac) - 100.00 - 100.00
Lucky Circle Corporation (LCC) - 100.00 - 100.00
Athena Ventures, Inc.® - 100.00 - -
Avery Integrated Hub, Inc.® - 100.00 - -
Circle 8 Gaming Ventures, Inc.® - 100.00 - -
Luckydeal Leisure, Inc.® - 100.00 - -
Luckyfortune Business Ventures, Inc.® - 100.00 - -
Luckypick Leisure Club Corp. ® - 100.00 - -
Luckyventures Leisure Corp. ® - 100.00 - -

(Forward)



Percentage of Ownership

2017 2016
Direct Indirect  Direct Indirect
Lucky Games Entertainment Ventures Inc. © - 100.00 - -
Orbis Valley Corporation® - 100.00 - -
Total Gaming Technologies, Inc. (TGTI) - 98.92 - 98.92
Falcon Resources, Inc. (FRI) - 100.00 - 100.00

The principal place of business and country of incorporation of the subsidiaries listed above is in the
Philippines.

@ Non-operating

® Accounted as subsidiaries starting July 1, 2017 (see Note 16).

Authorization for the Issuance of the Consolidated Financial Statements
The accompanying consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the Board of Directors (BOD) on February 23, 2018.

Basis of Preparation and Consolidation and Statement of Compliance

Basis of Preparation

The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for investments held for trading and available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets which have been
measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which
is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. All values are rounded to the nearest peso,
except when otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous
period. In addition, the Company presents additional statement of financial position at the beginning
of the earliest period presented when there is a retrospective application of an accounting policy, a
retrospective restatement, or a reclassification of items in the consolidated financial statements.

Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and
its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 (see Note 1). Specifically, the Company controls
an investee if, and only if, the Company has:

= Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee);

= Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

» The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this
presumption and when the Company has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

* The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

» Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
* The Company’s voting rights and potential voting rights
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The Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses
control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date of the
Company gains control until the date the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity
holders of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Company’s accounting
policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income and expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Company are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent
Company using consistent accounting policies.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Company loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the related assets
(including goodwill), liabilities, non-controlling interest and other components of equity while any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. Any investment retained is recognized at fair
value.

Material Partly-owned Subsidiary
The non-controlling interests of POSC are material to the Company. Non-controlling interest is
47.1% and 49.3% as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The summarized financial information of POSC is provided below. This information is based on
amounts before intercompany eliminations.

Summarized Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

2017 2016
(In thousands)
Total current assets P1,243,786 £1,047,497
Total noncurrent assets 1,390,061 1,388,011
Total current liabilities (575,635) (394,925)
Total noncurrent liabilities (38,137) (79,952)
Total equity £2,020,075 £1,960,631
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent £2,011,987 £1,955,307
Non-controlling interests 8,088 5,324

Total £2,020,075 P£1,960,631




Summarized Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

2017 2016
(In thousands)
Revenues £2,319,993 £1,888,100
Costs and expenses (1,653,254) (1,291,555)
Other income (expense) - net 55,007 (14,087)
Income before income tax 721,746 582,458
Provision for income tax (228,880) (183,093)
Net income 492,866 399,365
Other comprehensive income 120,346 208,310
Total comprehensive income P613,212 £607,675
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent £610,448 £605,298
Non-controlling interests 2,764 2,377
Total P613,212 £607,675
Summarized Cash Flow Information
2017 2016
(In thousands)

Operating £888,920 £496,173
Investing (97,467) (87,272)
Financing (603,564) (413,018)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents P187,889 (P4,117)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests amounted to £162.4 million and £174.2 million in 2017
and 2016, respectively.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except that the
Company has adopted the following new accounting pronouncements starting January 1, 2017.
Adoption of these pronouncements did not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial
position or performance unless otherwise indicated.

Amendments to PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, Clarification of the Scope of
the Standard (Part of Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle). The amendments
clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12, other than those relating to summarized
financial information, apply to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate
(or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associate) that is classified (or included in a
disposal group that is classified) as held for sale.

Adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the Company’s consolidated financial

statements.
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e Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, Disclosure Initiative. The amendments require
entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange
gains or losses).

The Company has provided the required information in Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements. As allowed under the transition provisions of this standard, the Company did not
present comparative information for the year ended December 31, 2016.

e Amendments PAS 12, Income Taxes, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses.
The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of
taxable profits against which it may make deductions upon the reversal of the deductible
temporary difference related to unrealized losses. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances
in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying
amount.

The Company applied the amendments retrospectively. However, their application has no effect
on the Company’s financial position and performance as the Company has no deductible
temporary differences or assets that are in the scope of the amendments.

4. Future Changes in Accounting Policies

The Company will adopt the following standards and interpretations enumerated below when these
become effective. Except as otherwise indicated, the Company does not expect the adoption of these
new and amended PFRS and Philippine Interpretations to have significant impact on its consolidated
financial statements.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2018

e Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions. The amendments to PFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of
vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the
classification of a share-based payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding
tax obligations; and the accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity settled.

On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but
retrospective application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and if other criteria are
met. Early application of the amendments is permitted.

o PFRS 9, Financial Instruments. PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments project
and replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous
versions of PFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. Retrospective application is required but
providing comparative information is not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements
are generally applied prospectively, with some limited exceptions.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.
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Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, with
PFRS 4. The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new
financial instruments standard before implementing the new insurance contracts standard. The
amendments introduce two options for entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporary
exemption from applying PFRS 9 and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption is first
applied for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. An entity may elect the
overlay approach when it first applies PFRS 9 and apply that approach retrospectively to financial
assets designated on transition to PFRS 9. The entity restates comparative information reflecting
the overlay approach if, and only if, the entity restates comparative information when applying
PFRS 9.

The amendments are not applicable to the Company since none of the entities within the
Company have activities that are predominantly connected with insurance or issue insurance
contracts.

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. PFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model
that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under PFRS 15, revenue is
recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in PFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach to measuring and recognizing revenue. The new revenue standard is
applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under
PFRSs. Either a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective application is required
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Early adoption is permitted. The
Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual
Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle). The amendments clarify that an entity that is a
venture capital organization, or other qualifying entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an
investment-by-investment basis, to measure its investments in associates and joint ventures at fair
value through profit or loss. They also clarify that if an entity that is not itself an investment
entity has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, the entity may,
when applying the equity method, elect to retain the fair value measurement applied by that
investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment entity associate’s or joint venture’s
interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment entity associate or
joint venture, at the later of the date on which (a) the investment entity associate or joint venture
is initially recognized; (b) the associate or joint venture becomes an investment entity; and (c) the
investment entity associate or joint venture first becomes a parent. The amendments should be
applied retrospectively, with earlier application permitted. The amendment is not applicable to
the Company since the Company does not have investment in associate or joint venture.

Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Transfers of Investment Property. The
amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions
for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments should
be applied prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. Retrospective application is
only permitted if this is possible without the use of hindsight.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration.
The interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition
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of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date
on which an entity initially recognizes the nonmonetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the
entity must determine a date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance
consideration. Entities may apply the amendments on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively,
an entity may apply the interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its
scope that are initially recognized on or after the beginning of the reporting period in which the
entity first applies the interpretation or the beginning of a prior reporting period presented as
comparative information in the financial statements of the reporting period in which the entity
first applies the interpretation.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2019

e Amendments to PFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation. The amendments
to PFRS 9 allow debt instruments with negative compensation prepayment features to be
measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income. An entity shall
apply these amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.
Earlier application is permitted.

e PFRS 16, Leases. PFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under PAS 17, Leases. The standard
includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of "low-value’ assets (e.g., personal
computers) and short-term leases (i.c., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognize a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the
lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term
(i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognize the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events
(e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognize the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under
PAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in
PAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

PFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under
PAS 17.

Early application is permitted, but not before an entity applies PFRS 15. A lessee can choose to
apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
standard’s transition provisions permit certain reliefs. The Company is currently assessing the
impact of adopting PFRS 16.

e Amendments to PAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures. The amendments
to PAS 28 clarify that entities should account for long-term interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is not applied using PFRS 9. An entity shall apply these
amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. Earlier
application is permitted.
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¢ Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments. The interpretation
addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects
the application of PAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of PAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with
uncertain tax treatments.

The interpretation specifically addresses the following:
*  Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately
*  The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities
* How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates
* How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together
with one or more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution
of the uncertainty should be followed.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this interpretation.
Deferred effectivity

e Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture. The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28
in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or
joint venture. The amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an
associate or joint venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinations. Any
gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that does not constitute a business,
however, is recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint
venture.

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council deferred the original effective
date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) completes its broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may
result in the simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting
for associates and joint ventures.

5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Current versus Noncurrent Classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based
on current or noncurrent classification. An asset is current when it is:

= Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

= Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

= Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or,

= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as noncurrent.



A liability is current when it is:

= Expected to be settled in its normal operating cycle;

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

= Expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or,

* There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less
from the date of acquisition and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Cash in bank
and short-term deposits earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

* in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset of liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. Assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

= Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

» Level 2: valuation techniques for which the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly;

= Level 3: valuation techniques for which the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and
nonrecurring fair value measurements.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

“Day 1” Difference

When the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other observable
current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference between the
transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1” difference) in profit or loss unless it qualifies for
recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where use is made of data which is not observable,
the difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss when
the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the
Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1 difference amount.

Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Date of Recognition of Financial Assets. The Company recognizes financial assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized
on trade date, i.e., the date the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Initial Recognition of Financial Assets. Financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in
the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Categories of Financial Assets and Subsequent Measurement. Financial assets are classified as
financial assets at FVPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS financial
assets or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The
Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates such classification every financial reporting date.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company has no HTM investments.

»  Financial Assets at FVPL. Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading,
derivative financial instruments and those designated upon initial recognition at FVPL.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
accounted for as financial assets at FVPL unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by PAS 39.

Financial assets at FVPL are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair

value with net changes in fair value presented as “Unrealized marked-to-market gain” (positive
net changes in fair value) or “Unrealized marked-to-market loss” (negative net changes in fair
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value) in the profit or loss. Interest earned or incurred is recorded as interest income or expense,
respectively, while dividend income is recorded as other income according to the terms of the
contract, or when the right of payment has been established.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at
fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value through profit
or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in the fair value
recognized in profit or loss. Remeasurement only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of
the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

The Company evaluates its financial assets at FVPL (held for trading) whether the intent to sell
them in the near term is appropriate. When the Company is unable to trade these financial assets
due to inactive markets and management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable future
significantly change, the Company may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare
circumstances. The reclassification to loans and receivables, AFS financial assets or HTM
investments depends on the nature of the asset. This evaluation does not affect any financial
assets designated at FVPL using the fair value option at designation.

The Company’s investments held for trading are classified as financial assets at FVPL. The
Company has no derivatives designated as hedging instruments as at December 31, 2017 and
2016.

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, loans
and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less
any impairment in value. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are not integral part of the EIR. Gains and losses
are recognized in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as
well as through the amortization process.

Loans and receivables are classified as current assets when the Company expects to realize the
asset within 12 months from reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

This category includes the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, receivables (excluding
advances to contractors and suppliers), notes receivable, deposits and guarantee bonds (presented
as part of “Other current assets”).

AFS Financial Assets. AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated
as AFS or do not qualify to be classified as loans and receivables, financial assets at FVPL or
HTM investments. AFS financial assets include equity investments. Equity investments
classified as AFS are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at FVPL. Debt securities in this category
are those that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and may be sold in response
to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealized gains or losses recognized under other comprehensive income until the financial asset
is derecognized or determined to be impaired at which time the accumulated gains or losses
previously reported under other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss. Interest
earned whilst holding AFS financial assets is reported as interest income using effective interest
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rate method. AFS financial assets that are not quoted in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be measured reliably are measured at cost, being the fair value of the consideration paid
for the acquisition of the investment. All transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
are also included in the cost of investment. If a reliable measure ceases to be available, AFS
financial assets are thereafter measured at cost, which is deemed to be the fair value carrying
amount at that date. Assets under this category are classified as current assets if expected to be
realized within 12 months from reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent
assets.

The Company designates financial instruments as AFS if they are purchased and held indefinitely
and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions.

This category includes the Company’s investments in shares of stock.

Financial Liabilities

Date of Recognition of Financial Liabilities. The Company recognizes financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Initial Recognition of Financial Liabilities. Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value
of the consideration received which is determined by reference to the transaction price or other
market prices, and in the case of other financial liabilities, inclusive of any directly attributable
transaction costs. If such market prices are not reliably determinable, the fair value of the
consideration is estimated as the sum of all future cash payments or receipts, discounted using the
prevailing market rates of interest for similar instruments with similar maturities.

Categories of Financial Liabilities and Subsequent Measurement. Financial liabilities are classified
as financial liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities which are measured at amortized cost or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Company
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition and where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates such classification every financial reporting date.

The Company has no financial liabilities at FVPL and derivatives designated as hedging instruments
as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

»  Other Financial Liabilities. This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held for
trading or not designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability where the substance of the
contractual arrangements results in the Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or
another financial asset to the holder, or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with
the holder under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the Company. These include
liabilities arising from operations or borrowings.

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. Gains
and losses are recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the amortization process. Other financial
liabilities are included in current liabilities if maturity is within 12 months from the reporting date
or the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer payment for at least 12 months
from the reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent liabilities.
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The Company’s liabilities arising from operations such as trade payables and other current
liabilities (excluding statutory payables), unearned income, obligations under finance lease and
installment payable are classified under this category.

Classification of Financial Instruments between Liability and Equity
A financial instrument is classified as liability if it provides for a contractual obligation to:

e Deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

o Exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the Company; or

o Satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of own equity shares

If the Company does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial
asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial liability.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and
that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost. For assets carried at amortized cost, the Company first
assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. Ifit is
determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues, to be
recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the financial asset is reduced through use of an allowance account and the amount of the
loss is recognized in profit or loss. Loans and receivables, together with the associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or
has been transferred to the Company. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount based on the effective interest rate of the asset.

The Company provides an allowance for loans and receivables which they deemed to be uncollectible

despite the Company’s continuous effort to collect such balances from the respective clients. The
Company considers those past due receivables as still collectible if they become past due only
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because of a delay on the fulfillment of certain conditions as agreed in the contract and not due to
incapability of the customers to fulfill their obligation.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to other income in the profit or loss. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment
loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income, to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

AFS Financial Assets. For equity investments classified as financial assets, the Company assesses at
each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments
is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as AFS, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. “Significant” is to be evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair value
has been below its original cost. When there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss
(measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the consolidated statement of income) is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through profit or loss. Increases in their
fair value after impairment are recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” required judgment. In making this
judgment, the Company evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value
of an investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS, the impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is
the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the consolidated statement of
income.

Financial Assets Carried at Cost. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an
unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an
unquoted equity instrument has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The Company assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if
the right is not contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of
business, event of default, and event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and all of the
counterparties.
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Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired; or

» the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass through” arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
“pass-through” arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of
a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of income.

Intangible Asset
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of

intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized
development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the year the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method,
as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the expense
category consistent with the function of intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
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annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the
useful life from the indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income when the asset is derecognized.

The Company made upfront payments to purchase a license. The license has been granted for a
period of 18.6 years, renewable for another 25 years, by the relevant government agency. The license
was assessed as having a finite life and is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of the
license; i.e., 43.6 years.

Investment in an Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies. The consideration made in determining significant influence are
similar to those necessary to determine control over subsidiaries. Investment in an associate is
accounted for under the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Company’s share of net assets of the
associate less any dividends declared and impairment loss. Goodwill, if any, relating to an associate
is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortized nor separately tested for
impairment. The consolidated statement of income reflects the Company’s share of the results of
operation of the associate. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the
Company’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the
associate, the Company recognizes its share in any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and changes in equity. Unrealized gains arising
from transactions with associates are eliminated to the extent of the Company’s interests in the
associates.

The share in net earnings of an associate is shown on the face of the consolidated statement of
income. This is the profit attributable to equity holders of the associate and, therefore, is profit after
tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the associate. If the Company’s share of losses
of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Company discontinues recognizing
its share of further losses.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the
Company.

After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether it is necessary to recognize
an additional impairment loss on its investment in its associate. The Company determines at each end
of reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognizes the amount in
the “Equity in net earnings of an associate” in the consolidated statement of income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Company measures and recognizes any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate
upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognized in consolidated statement of income.
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, excluding the cost of day-to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation, amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost
consists of the purchase price and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The
cost of replacing part of the property and equipment is included in the carrying amount when the cost
incurred meets the recognition criteria. When major repairs and maintenance is performed, its cost is
recognized in the carrying amount of the property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged against consolidated
statement of income.

Depreciation and amortization is computed using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives of the assets:

Lottery equipment 4-10 years or term of lease, whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 4 years or term of lease, whichever is shorter
Transportation equipment 4-5 years

Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 3-4 years

The assets’ residual values, useful lives, and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year-end to ensure that the periods and method of
depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from
items of property and equipment.

An item of property and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement income in the year the
asset is derecognized.

Fully depreciated property and equipment are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use
and no further depreciation is charged to current operations.

Noncurrent Asset Held for Sale

Noncurrent asset is classified as held for sale when it is expected that the carrying amount will be
recovered principally through sale rather than from continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset
must be available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such asset and its sale must be highly probable.

For the sale to be highly probable:

» The BOD must be committed to a plan to sell the asset and an active program to locate a buyer
and complete the plan must have been initiated

» The asset must be actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current
fair value

» The sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification.

Noncurrent asset classified as held for sale is measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair

value less costs to sell. Assets classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Asset Acquisition

When property is acquired, through corporate acquisitions or otherwise, management considers the
substance of the assets and activities of the acquired entity in determining whether the acquisition
represents an acquisition of a business.

When such an acquisition is not judged to be an acquisition of a business, it is not treated as a
business combination. Rather, the cost to acquire the entity is allocated between the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the entity based on their relative fair values at the acquisition date.
Accordingly, no goodwill or additional deferred tax arises.

Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method except for business
combinations under common control in which accounting similar to pooling of interest method is
used. Business combinations under common control are those in which all of the combining entities
or businesses are controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the business
combination, and that control is not transitory. Under the acquisition method, the cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date
fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed and included in “General and administrative expenses” account in the consolidated
statement of income.

For accounting similar to pooling of interest method, the assets, liabilities and equity of the acquired
companies for the reporting period in which the common control business combinations occur, and
for any comparative periods presented, are included in the consolidated financial statements of the
Company at their carrying amounts as if the combinations had occurred from the date when the
acquired companies first became under the control of the Company. The excess of the cost of
business combinations over the net carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the acquired
companies is recognized as part of “Additional paid-in capital” account in the equity section of the
consolidated statement of financial position.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is remeasured at
its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. It is then
considered in the determination of goodwill.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of PAS 39 is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized in either profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of PAS 39, it is measured at fair value at each reporting date
with the changes in fair value recognized in the profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is
classified as equity, it should not be remeasured, and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill
Goodwill acquired in business combination is initially measured at cost (being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognized for non-controlling interests and
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any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed). If the fair
value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Company
re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities
assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognized at the acquisition
date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognized in the consolidated statement of
income.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Company measures in its consolidated financial statements
provisional accounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. During the measurement
period, the Company retrospectively adjusts the provisional accounts recognized at the acquisition
date to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date, and, if known, would have affected the measurement of the amounts recognized as
of that date. During the measurement period, the Company also recognizes additional assets or
liabilities if new information is obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date and, if known, would have resulted in the recognition of those assets and liabilities as
of that date. The measurement period ends as soon as the Company receives the information it was
seeking about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date or learns that more
information is not obtainable. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition
date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company’s cash generating units, or group of cash
generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units or groups of units. Each
unit or group of units to which goodwill is allocated:

= represents the lowest level within the Company at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes; and

* is not larger than an operating segment or determined in accordance with PFRS 8, Operating
Segment.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit or group of
cash generating units, to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit or group of cash generating units is less than the carrying amounts, an impairment

loss is recognized. Impairment loss with respect to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which
are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGU to which the goodwill is allocated. These

budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. A long-term growth rate is
calculated and applied to projected future cash flows after the fifth year.

When goodwill forms part of a cash generating unit or group of cash generating units and part of the
operations within the unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of
operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the
operation disposed and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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When business combination involves more than one exchange transaction (occurs in stages), each
exchange transaction is treated separately by the Company, using the cost of transaction and fair
value information at the date of each exchange transaction, to determine the amount of goodwill
associated with that transaction. Any adjustment to fair value relating to the previously held interest
is a revaluation and is accounted for as such.

When subsidiaries are sold, the difference between the selling price and the net assets plus goodwill is
recognized in profit or loss.

Instant Scratch Tickets, Spare Parts and Supplies

Instant scratch tickets, spare parts and supplies are included as part of “Other current assets” account
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Instant scratch tickets are valued at cost less any
impairment loss. Spare parts and supplies are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost, which includes all costs attributable to acquisition, is determined using the first-in, first-out
method. Net realizable value of spare parts and supplies is its current replacement cost.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets (excluding Goodwill)

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that the noncurrent asset
held for sale, intangible asset and property and equipment may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s cash-generating unit’s fair value less cost to sell and its value in
use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pretax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost to sell, recent market transactions are taken
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples and other available fair value indicators. Any
impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of income in the expense
category consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment
loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income.

Equity

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs incurred directly
attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of
tax.

Proceeds and/or fair value of consideration received in excess of par value are recognized as
additional paid-in capital. The additional paid-in capital also includes the excess of the cost of the
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business combination under common control over the net carrying amounts of the assets and
liabilities of the acquired companies.

The consolidated retained earnings includes the earnings of the subsidiaries which are not available
for dividend declaration.

Subscription receivable represents the unpaid portion of subscription of capital shares by the
investors.

Cost of Parent Company Shares Held by a Subsidiary

Cost of Parent Company shares held by subsidiary are accounted for as equity instruments which are
reacquired (treasury shares) and are recognized at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the
consideration, if reissued, is recognized in other reserves.

Non-controlling Interest (NCI)

NClI represents the portion of profit or loss and the net assets not held by the Parent Company and are
presented separately in the consolidated statement of income and within equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position, separately from total equity attributable to owners of the Parent
Company. Any losses applicable to a non-controlling shareholder of a consolidated subsidiary in
excess of the non-controlling shareholder’s equity in the subsidiary are charged against the NCI even
if this results in NCI having a deficit.

NClI represents the equity interest in POSC not held by the Parent Company.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking
into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty.

The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as
principal or agent. Except for the “Commission income,” the Company has concluded that it is acting
as principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the principal obligor in all the revenue
arrangements, has pricing latitude, and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Gaming Revenue Share. Revenue representing monthly payments from Melco Resorts Leisure (PHP)
Corporation (Melco), formerly MCE Leisure (Philippines) Corporation, based on the performance of
gaming operations of City of Dreams Manila integrated resort and casino is recognized when earned
pursuant to the Operating Agreement and is measured at the fair value of the consideration received,
net of PAGCOR license fee.

Interest Income. Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the effective
yield on the asset.

Dividend Income. Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is
established.
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Equipment Rental. Revenue is recognized based on a certain percentage of gross sales of the lessee’s
online lottery operations, as computed by the lessee in accordance with the agreement, or a fixed
annual rental per terminal in commercial operations, whichever is higher.

Commission and Distribution Income. Revenues from the distribution of lottery, sweepstakes and
scratch tickets to customers, including retailers and sub-distributors, representing the Company’s
share from the sales, are recognized upon delivery of the tickets to the customers. Revenue from the
monthly fixed payment from Powerball Gaming and Entertainment Corporation (PGEC) is
recognized monthly in accordance with the Outsourcing Memorandum of Agreement (OMOA).

Equity in Net Earnings of an Associate. The Company recognizes its share in the net income of an
associate proportionate to the equity in the economic shares of such associates, in accordance with the
equity method of accounting.

Other Income. These are recognized when there are incidental economic benefits, other than the
usual business operations, that will flow to the Company and can be measured reliably.

Costs and Expenses Recognition

Costs and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of
outflows or decreases of assets and incurrence of liabilities that result in decrease in equity, other than
those relating to distributions to equity participants. Costs and expenses are recognized in
consolidated statement of income on the basis of systematic and rational allocation procedures when
economic benefits are expected to arise over several accounting periods and the association with
income can only be broadly or indirectly determined; or immediately when expenditure produces no
future economic benefits, or when, and to the extent that, future economic benefits do not qualify,
cease to qualify, for recognition in the consolidated statement of financial position as an asset.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contain, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right
to use the asset or assets, even if that asset is (or those assets are) not explicitly specified in the
arrangement.

Company as Lessee. A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating
lease.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are charged against profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance leases, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease at fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized in
profit or loss.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable

certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.
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Company as Lessor. Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in
the period in which they are earned.

Retirement Costs

The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets adjusted for any
effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is the present value
of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reduction in future
contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

= Service cost
= Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
» Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routine settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized
when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by
independent qualified actuaries.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Net interest
on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in profit or loss.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, difference between interest income and return
on plan assets and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined
benefit liability) are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund. Plan assets are not
available to the creditors of the Company, nor can they be paid directly to the Company. Fair value
of plan assets is based on the market price information. When no market price is available, the fair
value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a different rate that
reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal date of
those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of the related
obligations.) If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the defined benefit
obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the present value of
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions
to the plan.

The Company’s right to be reimbursed if some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined

benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement is
virtually certain.
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Actuarial valuations are made with sufficient regularity that the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements do not differ materially from the amounts that would be determined
in the reporting period.

Foreign Currency-denominated Transactions and Translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded in Philippine peso by applying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the Philippine peso and the foreign currency at
the date of transaction. Monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated using the Philippine peso closing exchange rate at the reporting date. All differences
arising from the settlement or translation are taken to consolidated statement of income with the
exception of differences on foreign currency exchange borrowings that provide a hedge against a net
investment in a foreign entity. These are recorded as part of other comprehensive income and taken
to equity until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognized in net loss in the
consolidated statement of income. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange rate differences
on those borrowings are also dealt with in equity. Non-monetary items that are measured at historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate at the date when the fair value was determined.

Income Taxes

Current Income Tax. Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authority. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Current income tax relating to item recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the
profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred Income Tax. Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary
differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

*  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination that, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and by the parent, venture or investor, respectively, it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT)
over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and carryforward benefits of unused tax credits and unused NOLCO can be
utilized, except:
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» where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and levied
for the same taxation authority.

Value-Added Tax (VAT). Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT
except:

= when the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and

* when receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.

The carrying value of input VAT is included under “Other current assets” account in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net profit for the year attributable to common equity
holders of the parent by the weighted average number of issued and outstanding common shares
during the year, after giving retroactive effect to any stock dividends declared during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net profit or loss for the year attributable to
common equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of issued and outstanding
common shares during the year plus the weighted average number of common shares that would be
issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential common shares into common shares. The
calculation of diluted earnings per share does not assume conversion, exercise or other issue of
potential common shares that would have anti-dilutive effects on earnings per share.

As the Company has no dilutive potential common shares outstanding, basic and diluted earnings per
share are stated at the same amount.
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Business Segments

The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature
of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that
offers different products and services.

Segment Assets and Liabilities. Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and
consist principally of operating cash, receivables, real estate for sale, club shares, other equity shares
and property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment. Segment liabilities
include all operating liabilities and consist principally of accounts payable and other liabilities.
Segment assets and liabilities do not include investments and advances.

Inter-segment Transactions. Segment revenue, segment expenses, and segment performance include
transfers among business segments. Such transfers are eliminated upon consolidation.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; and, a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented as part of profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of income, net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time
value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pretax rate that reflects, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. They are disclosed

in the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial position at
the reporting period (adjusting events), if any, are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial
statements when material.

6. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosures of contingent liabilities, at the
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment in the future to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are to believe to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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Judgments
In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgments,

apart from those involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Business Combinations. At the time of acquisition, the Company considers whether the acquisition
represents an acquisition of a business or a group of assets and liabilities. The Company accounts for
an acquisition as a business combination where an integrated set of business processes is acquired in
addition to the asset acquired. More specifically, consideration is made of the extent to which
significant processes are acquired and, in particular, the extent of services provided by the subsidiary.

When the acquisition of subsidiary does not constitute a business, it is accounted for as an acquisition
of a group of assets and liabilities. The cost of the acquisition is allocated to the assets and liabilities
acquired based upon their relative fair values and no goodwill or deferred tax is recognized.

Please refer to Note 16 for the Company’s most recent business combinations.

Determining Subsidiaries with Material Non-controlling Interests. The Company is required to
disclose certain financial information on its subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests.
There are also qualitative considerations including the nature of relationship between the Company
and the subsidiary and the nature of their businesses.

Management determines material subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests as those with
assets, non-controlling interests, revenues and net income greater than 5% of consolidated assets,
non-controlling interests, revenues and net income.

The Company has determined POSC in 2017 and 2016 as a subsidiary with material non-controlling
interests.

Evaluation of Lease Commitments. The evaluation of whether an arrangement contains a lease is
based on its substance. An arrangement is, or contains a lease when the fulfillment of the
arrangement depends on specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Operating Lease - as a Lessor. POSC and TGTI leases to Philippine Charity Sweepstakes Office
(PCSO) the lottery equipment it uses for its nationwide on-line lottery operations. POSC and TGTI
has determined that it has retained substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the lottery
equipment being leased to PCSO. The ownership of the asset is not transferred to the lessee by the
end of the lease term, the lessee has no option to purchase the asset at a price that is expected to be
sufficiently lower than the fair value at the date the option is exercisable, and, the lease term is not for
the major part of the asset’s economic life. Accordingly, the lease is accounted for as an operating
lease.

Revenue from equipment rental amounted to £1,840.5 million, £1,579.7 million and £630.9 million
in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 27).

Operating Lease - as a Lessee. The Company has entered into various lease agreements as a lessee.
Management has determined that all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of these
properties, which the Company leases under operating lease arrangements, remain with the lessor.
Accordingly, the leases were accounted for as operating leases.

Rent expense amounted to £87.1 million, £46.2 million and £19.2 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively (see Note 27).
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Finance Lease - as a Lessee. POSC entered into various finance lease agreements covering certain
lottery equipment. POSC determined that it bears substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of the said properties under finance lease agreements.

The carrying values of lottery equipment under finance lease arrangements amounted to
£103.7 million and £139.4 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Notes 14
and 27).

Classification of Noncurrent Asset Held for Sale. An asset is classified as held for sale if the asset
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
Management assessed that it met the criteria of a noncurrent asset held for sale following the
requirements of PFRS 5, which include, among others:

*  OnJune 2, 2014, the Company’s BOD approved to sell to Belle its non-gaming related assets,
which includes the undeveloped land located in the City of Tanauan, Province of Batangas. PLC
is committed to sell its land. As at December 31, 2017, PLC and Belle are finalizing the contract
to sell.

= The land is available for immediate sale and can be sold in its current condition.

The carrying values of noncurrent asset held for sale amounted to 285.5 million as at December 31,
2017 and 2016 (see Note 15).

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Determination of Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. PFRS requires certain
financial assets and liabilities to be carried and disclosed at fair value, which requires extensive use of
accounting estimates and judgments. While significant components of fair value measurement were
determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.e., foreign exchange rates, interest rates, volatility
rates), the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Company utilized a different valuation
methodology. Any changes in the assumptions could affect the fair value of these financial assets and
liabilities.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are
disclosed in Note 29.

Determination of Impairment of Receivables and Notes Receivables. The Company maintains
allowance for doubtful accounts at a level considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible
receivables. The level of this allowance is evaluated by the management on the basis of factors that
affect the collectability of the accounts. These factors include, but not limited to, the length of
relationship with the customers and counterparties, the payment behavior and known market factors.

The Company reviews the allowance on a continuous basis. Accounts that are specifically identified
to be potentially uncollectible are provided with adequate allowance through charges to income in the
form of provision for doubtful accounts. Factors considered in individual assessment are payment
history, past due status and term. A provision is also established as a certain percentage of
receivables not provided with specific reserves. This percentage is based on a collective assessment
of historical collection, changes in counterparty payment terms and other factors that may affect the
Company’s ability to collect payments.
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The amount and timing of recorded provision for doubtful accounts for any period would differ if the
Company made different judgments or utilized different estimates. An increase in the Company’s
allowance for doubtful accounts would increase the recorded general and administrative expenses and
decrease its current assets.

Provision for doubtful accounts recognized in 2017, 2016 and 2015 amounted to 7.7 million, nil,
and £8.6 million, respectively (see Notes 9 and 23). Allowance for doubtful accounts amounted to
P434.4 million and P438.5 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The aggregate
carrying values of receivables and notes receivables amounted to £2,306.6 million and

£1,537.7 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Notes 9 and 10).

Estimation of Useful Life of Gaming License. The useful life of the Company’s gaming license
recognized as “Intangible asset” account in the consolidated statement of financial position is
estimated based on the period over which the asset is expected to be available for use. The estimated
useful life of intangible asset is reviewed periodically and updated if expectations differ from
previous estimates. The gaming license runs concurrent with Philippine Amusement and Gaming
Corporation’s (PAGCOR) congressional franchise which is set to expire in 2033, renewable for
another 25 years by the Philippine Congress. The Company started the amortization of the intangible
asset on December 14, 2014, the effectivity of the Notice to Commence Casino Operations granted by
PAGCOR.

There was no change in the estimated useful life of gaming license in 2017. In 2016, as part of the
Company’s annual review process, the Company, starting on April 1, 2016, changed the estimated
useful life of the gaming license to consider the renewal period of another twenty-five (25) years of
the PAGCOR’s congressional franchise upon expiration in 2033 and to consider other industry
developments. The extension of the life of the gaming license decreased the amortization expense in
2016 by £258.7 million and decreased the annual amortization expense by £345.9 million in 2017
and onwards. The carrying value of the Company’s gaming license amounted to £9,668.1 million
and £9,906.5 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 12).

Determination of Impairment of AFS Financial Assets. The Company determines that AFS financial
assets are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its
cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The Company determines that a decline
in fair value of greater than 20% of cost is considered to be a significant decline and a decline for a
period of more than 12 months is considered to be a prolonged decline. This determination of what is
significant or prolonged requires judgment. In making this judgment, the Company evaluates, among
other factors, the normal volatility in share price for quoted equities. In addition, AFS financial assets
are considered impaired when management believes that future cash flows generated from the
investment is expected to decline significantly. The Company’s management makes significant
estimates and assumptions on the future cash flows expected and the appropriate discount rate to
determine if impairment exists. Impairment may also be appropriate when there is evidence of
deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance.

No provision for impairment loss was recognized in 2017, 2016 and 2015. The carrying values of
AFS financial assets amounted to £648.6 million and £657.4 million as at December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively (see Note 13).

Determination of Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets (Except Goodwill). The Company assesses
whether there are any indicators of impairment for all nonfinancial assets at each reporting date.
Nonfinancial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. Determining the value of these nonfinancial assets, which requires the
determination of future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate
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disposition of such assets, requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that can
materially affect the consolidated financial statements. Future events could cause the Company to
conclude that such nonfinancial assets are impaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have a
material adverse impact on the Company’s financial position and performance.

No provision for impairment loss on noncurrent asset held for sale, intangible asset and property and
equipment was recognized in 2017, 2016 and 2015.

The carrying values of nonfinancial assets (excluding goodwill) as at December 31, 2017 and 2016
are as follows:

2017 2016
Noncurrent asset held for sale (see Note 15) £285,510,452 £285,510,452
Intangible asset (see Note 12) 9,668,071,971 9,906,544,455
Property and equipment (see Note 14) 438,063,955 479,088,812

Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax credits and NOLCO to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. Significant management judgment
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Recognized deferred tax assets amounted to £16.5 million and £14.6 million as at December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively. Unrecognized deferred tax assets amounted to £135.3 million and
£137.9 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 25).

Determination and Computation of Retirement Expense. The cost of retirement expense as well as
the present value of the defined benefit obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. The
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions. These include the determination of the
discount rates, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the
underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, defined benefit obligations are highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Retirement expense charged to profit and loss amounted to £12.9 million, £9.4 million and

£5.3 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Remeasurement gain (loss) on retirement benefits
amounted to £2.3 million, (2.1 million) and 6.7 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The
carrying values of retirement asset amounted to £13.4 million and £8.6 million as at December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively. The carrying values of retirement liability amounted to B17.5 million
and £12.5 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 19).

Estimating Impairment of Goodwill. The Company determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
annually. This requires the estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating value in use requires management to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and to choose a suitable discount rate to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

There was no impairment loss of goodwill in 2017 and 2016. The carrying values of goodwill
amounted to £1,832.3 million and £1,828.6 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively
(see Note 17).

Evaluation of Legal Contingencies. The Company recognizes provision for possible claims when it is
determined that an unfavorable outcome is probable and the amount of the claim can be reasonably
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estimated. The determination of reserves required, if any, is based on analysis of such individual
issue, often with the assistance of outside legal counsel (see Note 32).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

2017 2016
Cash on hand and in banks £1,727,313,361 $£1,360,067,806
Cash equivalents 1,235,322,326 451,436,156

P2,962,635,687 P1,811,503,062

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents are made for
varying periods of up to three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Interest income earned from cash in banks and cash equivalents amounted to £21.1 million,
£14.3 million and £12.0 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Investments Held for Trading

This account consists of the Company’s investments in shares of stock of Leisure and Resorts World
Corporation (LRWC), Vantage Equities, Inc., APC Group, Inc. and Philippine Long Distance
Telephone Company.

The movements in this account are as follows:

2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year P£165,990,214 P£226,746,690
Acquisitions 17,034,130 5,683,853
Disposals (6,746,030) (29,303,324)
Marked-to-market gain (loss) (see Note 24) 2,204,528 (37,137,005)
Balance at end of year P178,482,842 £165,990,214

The fair values of these securities are based on the quoted prices on the last market day of the year.
The Company determines the cost of investments sold using specific identification method.

Mark-to-market gain (loss) in 2017, 2016 and 2015 amounting to 2.2 million, (37.1 million) and
(R29.3 million), respectively, were recognized in “Other income (expense) - net” account in the
consolidated statements of income (see Note 24).

Realized gain from sale of investments held for trading in 2015 amounting to £11.4 million was
recognized in “Other income (expenses) - net" account in the consolidated statement of income. The
Company had no realized gain from sale of investments held for trading in 2017 and 2016

(see Note 24).

Dividend income realized from investments held for trading amounted to £5.7 million, 5.2 million
and £4.5 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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9. Receivables
This account consists of:
2017 2016
Trade receivables £676,537,438 682,390,655
Loan assets 422,341,815 422,341,815
Advances to:
Officers and employees 10,019,065 6,374,244
Contractors and suppliers 4,299,449 2,570,555
Customers - 46,849,859
Accrued interest on notes receivable (see Note 26) 654,439 2,189,550
Other receivables (Note 26) 21,245,038 7,541,207
1,135,097,244 1,170,257,885
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 434,440,938 438,497,388
£700,656,306 731,760,497
Trade receivables are generally on a 20 to 60 days credit term. These are mostly receivables arising
from equipment lease agreement with PCSO, receivables from sale of instant scratch ticket and
receivables from Melco for the gaming revenue share in the operations of City of Dreams Manila.
Loan assets pertain to the Parent Company’s receivable from Paxell Investment Limited and
Metroplex Berhad (both Malaysian companies, collectively referred to as “Metroplex”) and Legend
International Resort H.K. Limited (“LIR-HK”) amounting to P422.3 million as a result of the
compensation to parties who were currently in possession of the shares in connection with the
cancellation of the remaining 2,000,000,000 undelivered PLC shares (see Note 31). The loan assets
were fully provided with allowance as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.
Advances to officers, employees, customers and other receivables are noninterest-bearing and
generally collected within the next financial year.
Advances to contractors and suppliers will be applied in future billings.
Refer to Note 26 for the terms and conditions of accrued interest on notes receivable.
Movement in allowance for doubtful accounts is as follows:
2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year P438,497,388 £440,403,474
Additions from acquisition of subsidiaries
(see Note 16) 6,750,000 —
Provision for doubtful accounts (see Note 23) 7,703,713 -
Write-off during the year (18,510,163) (1,906,086)
Balance at end of year P434,440,938 P438,497,388
10. Notes Receivable

Notes receivable, bearing interest rates ranging from 3.25% to 4.05% in 2017 and 3.5% to 4.1% in
2016, amounted to 21,605.9 million and £805.9 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016
(see Note 26).
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Interest income from notes receivable recognized in the consolidated statement of income amounted
to £54.8 million, £32.8 million and £28.8 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 26).

11. Other Current Assets
This account consists of:
2017 2016
Creditable withholding taxes £90,452,593 $27,173,604
Spare parts and supplies - at cost 59,296,701 58,542,848
Prepaid expenses 48,331,195 55,592,985
Input VAT 7,639,695 15,889,512
Deposits (see Note 29) - 7,224,028
Instant scratch tickets - at cost - 66,816
205,720,184 164,489,793
Less allowance for probable loss on input VAT 62,616 62,361
P205,657,568 P164,427,432
Creditable withholding taxes can be applied as tax credits against future income tax payable.
Spare parts and supplies are carried at lower of cost or net realizable value. Prepaid expenses pertain
to various prepayments which will be applied in the next financial year.
Movement of allowance for probable loss on input VAT is as follows:
2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year P62,361 55,387
Provision for probable losses (see Note 23) 255 6,974
Balance at end of year P62,616 P62,361
In 2017, the Company wrote off input VAT amounting to £25.0 million (see Note 23).
12. Intangible Asset

Intangible asset, which was part of the assets acquired from Belle in 2014, pertains to the provisional
license granted by PAGCOR for which PLAI is a co-licensee to operate integrated resorts, including
casinos. On April 29, 2015, PAGCOR granted the Regular Gaming License (“License”), which has
the same terms and conditions of the provisional license. The License runs concurrent with
PAGCOR’s Congressional Franchise, set to expire in 2033, renewable for another 25 years by the
Philippine Congress.

The amortization of the intangible asset started on December 14, 2014, the effectivity of the Notice to
Commence Casino Operations granted by PAGCOR.

As part of the Company’s annual review process, the Company, starting on April 1, 2016 changed the
estimated useful life of the intangible asset to consider the renewal period of another twenty-five (25)
years of the PAGCOR’s congressional franchise upon its expiration in 2033 and to consider other
industry developments.
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Movements in intangible asset are as follows:

2017 2016
Cost
Balance at beginning and end of year £10,843,215,811 £10,843,215,811
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 936,671,356 611,901,920
Amortization 238,472,484 324,769,436
Balance at end of year 1,175,143,840 936,671,356

£9,668,071,971 £9,906,544,455

The unamortized life of the license as at December 31, 2017 is 40.5 years.

13. Available-for-sale Financial Assets

This account consists of the following;:

2017 2016

Quoted shares:
Belle - common shares (see Note 26) £646,216,790 £655,096,702
Golf club shares 2,300,000 2,200,000

648,516,790 657,296,702

Unquoted shares -
Others 81,100 81,100
P648,597,890 P657,377,802

Movements of this account are as follows:

2017 2016
Cost:
Balance at beginning of year P£1,063,126,494 P1,054,490,223
Additions for the year 31,653,940 8,636,271
Disposals for the year (204,581,830) —
Balance at end of year 890,198,604 1,063,126,494
Cumulative unrealized mark-to-market gain
on AFS financial assets:
Balance at beginning of year 169,169,783 106,972,145
Marked-to-market gains during the year 132,500,049 62,197,638
Realized loss transferred to profit or loss
(see Note 24) 31,647,929 —
Balance at end of year 333,317,761 169,169,783
Accumulated impairment loss —
Balance at beginning and end of year (574,918,475) (574,918,475)

P648,597,890 P657,377,802

There are no quoted market prices for the unlisted shares of stock and there are no other reliable
sources of their fair values, therefore, these are carried at cost, net of any impairment loss.

Dividend income earned from AFS financial assets amounted to £15.2 million, B19.4 million and
P£27.3 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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The investment in common shares of Belle is based on the quoted price as at reporting date.

Golf Club Shares

The investment in golf club shares is based on secondary market prices as at reporting date.

14.

Property and Equipment

The movements in this account follow:

2017
Office
Equipment,
Lottery Leasehold Furniture Transportation
Equipment Improvements and Fixtures Equipment Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P1,138,331,261 PR78,896,849 P184,843,030 $81,254,117 P1,483,325,257
Additions from acquisition of subsidiaries _ 10,776,204 66,842,243 _ 77,618,447
(see Note 16)
Additions 116,251,464 3,009,913 22,975,864 14,551,718 156,788,959
Disposals (49,649,164) (238,439)  (32,662,153)  (13,747,473)  (96,297,229)
Balance at end of year 1,204,933,561 92,444,527 241,998,984 82,058,362 1,621,435,434
Accumulated Depreciation and
Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 755,875,479 61,862,142 138,704,464 47,794,360 1,004,236,445
Additions from acquisition of subsidiaries
(see Note 16) - 6,418,308 42,535,355 - 48,953,663
Depreciation and amortization
(see Notes 22 and 23) 174,495,675 11,264,336 26,864,903 12,934,216 225,559,130
Disposals (49,649,164) (238,439)  (32,638,563)  (12,851,593)  (95,377,759)
Balance at end of year 880,721,990 79,306,347 175,466,159 47,876,983 1,183,371,479
Net Book Value P324,211,571 P13,138,180 P66,532,825  P34,181,379 P438,063,955
2016
Office
Equipment,
Lottery Leasehold Furniture Transportation
Equipment Improvements and Fixtures Equipment Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P£1,334,509,282 P73,187,593 £179,059,723 £72,341,207 £1,659,097,805
Additions 58,428,195 5,709,256 26,900,098 21,081,571 112,119,120
Disposals (254,606,216) - (2L,116,791)  (12,168,661) (287,891,668)
Balance at end of year 1,138,331,261 78,896,849 184,843,030 81,254,117 1,483,325,257
Accumulated Depreciation and
Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 873,396,826 54,192,474 139,805,878 47,074,189 1,114,469,367
Depreciation and amortization
(see Notes 22 and 23) 132,143,015 7,669,668 20,014,307 11,435,457 171,262,447
Disposals (249,664,362) — (21,115,721)  (10,715,286) (281,495,369)
Balance at end of year 755,875,479 61,862,142 138,704,464 47,794,360 1,004,236,445
Net Book Value P382,455,782  P£17,034,707  P46,138,566  P33,459,757 P479,088,812

Certain lottery equipment was acquired under finance lease agreements. The carrying amount of the
equipment under finance lease agreements amounted to £103.7 million and £139.4 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 27).
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The cost of fully depreciated property and equipment still in use as at December 31, 2017 and 2016
amounted to £615.7 million and £511.6 million, respectively. There are no temporary idle property
and equipment as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

15. Noncurrent Asset Held for Sale
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, this account pertains to parcels of land amounting to
P285.5 million.
These parcels of land will be sold to Belle in relation to the Investment Plan, as approved by PLC’s
BOD on June 2, 2014. As at December 31, 2017, PLC and Belle are finalizing the contract to sell.
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the sale of parcels of land were not completed due to events and
circumstances beyond the Company’s control, pending the transfer of the parcels of land as a
condition of sale.

16. Business Combination

Acquisition of POSC
The Company’s ownership interest in POSC increased from 34.5% in 2014 to 50.1% in 2015 as a
result of 2015 step acquisition.

Based on management’s judgment, PLC’s investment in POSC gives PLC control over POSC as
evidenced by holding more than 50% voting rights. Thus, starting August 5, 2015, POSC was
accounted for as a subsidiary.

The step acquisition was accounted for as a business combination under common control using
pooling of interest method. As at August 5, 2015, the assets and liabilities of POSC were reflected in
PLC at their carrying amounts. No adjustments were made to reflect the fair values, or to recognize
any new assets or liabilities, at the date of the combination that would otherwise be done under the
acquisition method. The only adjustments made were to align accounting policies of POSC with that
of the Company.

There was no new goodwill recognized as a result of the business combination. The goodwill
recognized is the existing goodwill that was previously recorded in Belle arising from POSC and FRI
with total amount of £1,828.6 million (see Note 17).

The difference between the consideration paid/transferred and the net assets acquired amounting to
P297.1 million was reflected as part of additional paid-in capital in the equity portion of the

consolidated statement of financial position (see Note 20).

Further, there was no restatement of financial information in the consolidated financial statements for
the periods prior to the business combination under common control.
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The carrying values of the assets and liabilities of POSC, total consideration and equity reserve
recognized in the consolidated financial statements as at August 5, 2015 are as follows:

Total assets:
Cash

P£179,986,807

Investments held for trading 249,541,292
Receivables (net of allowance for doubtful
accounts amounting to £6.8 million) 583,875,018
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 104,381,651
Property and equipment 387,596,872
AFS financial assets 334,656,466
Goodwill (see Note 17) 110,933,996
Deferred tax asset 42,351,586
Other noncurrent assets 41,185,707 $2,034,509,395
Less liabilities assumed:
Trade and other current liabilities 220,779,177
Obligations under finance lease 92,853,582
Retirement liability 19,338,567 332,971,326

Carrying value of net assets of POSC as at August 5,
2015
Goodwill in POSC from Belle (see Note 17)

1,701,538,069
1,717,643,956

Total carrying values of net assets acquired

3,419,182,025

Less total consideration:
Carrying value of investment in associate
Cost of additional interest acquired
Cost of PLC shares held by POSC
Non-controlling interest

P1,559,332,581
1,000,092,484

(286,398,070)
849,067,497

3,122,094,492

Additional Paid-in Capital (see Note 20)

P£297,087,533

Acquisition of LCC Subsidiaries

On July 1, 2017, LCC acquired 100% ownership interest in nine entities (see Note 1). Based on
management’s judgment, the acquisition is assessed to be an acquisition of a business. The total
consideration, provisional fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed from the nine
entities and provisional goodwill as at July 1, 2017 are as follows:

Total consideration:

Purchase price of shares £10,250,000
Receivables in the acquired entities 144,613,142
Payables to the acquired entities (60,000,000) £94,863,142
Total assets acquired:
Cash and cash equivalents 76,694,703
Receivables (net of allowance for doubtful
accounts amounting to £6.8 million) 7,113,848
Other current assets 24,873,908
Property and equipment (see Note 14) 28,664,784
Deferred tax assets 1,466,822
Other noncurrent assets 22,025,420 160,839,485

(Forward)
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Less liabilities assumed:

Trade payables and other current liabilities 62,815,883

Retirement liability (see Note 19) 616,120

Income tax payable 6,227,122 69,659,125
Provisional Goodwill £3,682,782

Net cash flows on acquisition is as follows:

Cash acquired from subsidiaries £76,694,703
Cash paid on acquisition (10,250,000)
P66,444,703

The provisional goodwill of £3.7 million represents the value of expected synergies arising from the
business combination (see Note 17).

The initial accounting for the acquisition of these entities has only been provisionally determined
pending the finalization of necessary market valuations and determined based on management’s best
estimate of the likely values. As allowed under the relevant standard, the Company will recognize
any adjustment to those provisional values as an adjustment to goodwill upon determining the final
fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities within 12 months from the acquisition date.

The goodwill represents the fair value of expected synergies arising from the acquisition. None of
the goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

The gross amount and fair value of the trade receivables amounted to B13.9 million and
£7.1 million, respectively. The Company expects to collect an amount equal to the fair value of the
LCC subsidiaries’ receivables as of acquisition date.

From the date of acquisition, LCC subsidiaries contributed £142.2 million of revenue and

£10.1 million net income from continuing operations of the Company. If the combination had taken
place at the beginning of the year, revenue from continuing operations would have been

P276.2 million and net income from continuing operations for the Company would have been

P27.4 million.

17. Goodwill

Goodwill acquired from the business combination as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consists of:

2017 2016
POSC (see Note 16) P1,717,643,956 £1,717,643,956
FRI (see Note 16) 110,933,996 110,933,996
LCC subsidiaries (see Note 16) 3,682,782 —

P1,832,260,734 P1,828,577,952
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Movements in this account are as follow:

2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year P1,828,577,952 P1,828,577,952
Additions (see Note 16) 3,682,782 -
Balance at end of year P1,832,260,734 P1,828,577,952

The goodwill from the acquisition of POSC and FRI have been subjected to the annual impairment
review in 2017 and 2016. The Company did not identify any impairment indicators relating to
POSC’s and FRI’s goodwill as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 as it expects to realize the synergies
from the business combinations.

The recoverable amounts of the operations of POSC and FRI have been determined based on a value
in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management.
The cash flow projections covers five years.

Management assessed that no reasonably possible change in pre-tax discount rates and future cash
inflows would cause the carrying value of goodwill in 2017 and 2016 to materially exceed its
recoverable amount.

Key assumptions used in value in use calculations
The calculation of value in use for the cash-generating units are most sensitive to the following
assumptions explained as follows:

POSC

Discount Rate. Discount rate reflects management’s estimate of the risks specific to the
cash-generating unit. The pre-tax discount rate of 10.61% and 7.78% was used in 2017 and 2016,
respectively, based on the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) of POSC.

Revenue Growth Rate, Long-Term Growth Rate and Terminal Values. An annual increase in revenue
ranging from 2% to 6% and 7% to 10% per annum were applied in the 5-year cash flow projections in
2017 and 2016, respectively, based on historical performance of POSC. The long-term growth rate
used to extrapolate cash flow projections beyond the period covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts is 4% and 5% in 2017 and 2016, respectively. The long-term growth rate used in
the normalization of free cash flows represents the expected growth rate of the economy at the end of
the 5th year and onwards, with reference to growth rates compiled by industry specialist.

FRI

The recoverable amount of goodwill from the acquisition of FRI by TGTI was determined based on
value-in-use calculations using actual past results and observable market data such as growth rates,
operating margins, among others.

Growth rates and operating margins used to estimate future performance are equally based on past
performance and experience of growth rates, operating margins achievable in the relevant industry.
The expected cash flows are discounted by applying a suitable weighted average cost of capital
(WACC). The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 8.7% and 11.5% in 2017 and
2016, respectively. The terminal growth rate is 6.6% and 5.2% in 2017 and 2016, respectively.



- 40 -

18. Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities
This account consists of:
2017 2016
Trade payables £279,006,308 £173,150,323
Accrued expenses and other payables 727,968,788 223,889,107
Unearned income 268,863,737 -
Professional, service and management fees (see Note 26) 65,855,180 67,825,050
Consultancy, software and license fees payable 55,742,294 51,712,222
Communication, rental and utilities 27,265,480 4,274,311
Withholding taxes payable 12,343,677 21,018,280
Current portion of installment payable 2,680,828 -
Others(see Note 26) 3,713,633 2,728,292
P1,443,439,925 £544,597,585
Trade payables are generally on a 30-days credit term.
Accrued expenses and other payables mainly represent accrual for service and professional fees,
general and administrative expenses and provisions. These are payable within 30 days term. The
Company regularly provides for its usual potential liabilities. Provisions represents estimated
probable losses. The information usually required by PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, is not disclosed on the grounds that it can be expected to prejudice the Company’s
position.
Unearned income pertains to the advance payment from Melco, which will be applied as payment of
PLAT’s future gaming revenue share.
Professional, service and management fees, withholding taxes payable and communication, rental and
utilities are normally settled within the next financial year.
Consultancy, software and license fees payable are for consultancy services on gaming operations
and the supply of computer hardware and operating system software for online lottery system
(see Note 31). These are normally settled within the next financial year.
19. Retirement Benefits

Under the existing regulatory framework, Republic Act 7641 requires a provision for retirement pay
to qualified private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity, provided
however that the employee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and other
agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law. The law does not require minimum
funding of the plan.

The following tables summarize the components of net retirement costs recognized in the

consolidated statements of income and consolidated statements of comprehensive income and the
retirement benefits recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position:
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Changes in the retirement benefits of the Company in 2017 are as follows:

Present Value

(Forward)

of Defined
Fair Value Benefit Retirement
of Plan Assets Obligation Benefits
At January 1, 2017 £74,299,987 (#78,218,885) (#3,918,898)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (see Note 16) — (616,120) (616,120)
74,299,987 (78,835,005) (4,535,018)
Net retirement income (costs) in
profit or loss:
Current service cost - (13,001,637) (13,001,637)
Net interest 4,309,150 (4,221,095) 88,055
4,309,150 (17,222,732) (12,913,582)
Benefits paid out of the Company’s fund — 111,486 111,486
Contributions 11,004,983 - 11,004,983
Remeasurement gain (loss) recognized in
OCI:
Actuarial changes due to experience
adjustment - 3,258,765 3,258,765
Actuarial changes arising from
changes in financial assumptions - 3,345,742 3,345,742
Actual return excluding amount
included in net interest cost (3,170,012) - (3,170,012)
Actuarial changes due to changes in
demographic assumptions - (293,990) (293,990)
Effect of asset ceiling (874,184) — (874,184)
(4,044,196) 6,310,517 2,266,321
At December 31, 2017 £85,569,924 (P89,635,734) (P4,065,810)
Changes in the retirement benefits of the Company in 2016 are as follows:
Present Value
of Defined
Fair Value Benefit Retirement
of Plan Assets Obligation Benefits
At January 1, 2016 P55,459,736 (R63,366,085) (R7,906,349)
Net retirement income (costs) in
profit or loss:
Current service cost - (9,268,592) (9,268,592)
Net interest 2,966,858 (3,123,667) (156,809)
2,966,858 (12,392,259) (9,425,401)
Benefits paid (132,873) 132,873 —
Contributions 15,557,284 — 15,557,284
Remeasurement gain (loss) recognized in
OCI:
Actuarial changes due to experience
adjustment - (6,218,556) (6,218,556)
Actuarial changes arising from
changes in financial assumptions - 5,296,547 5,296,547
Actual return excluding amount
included in net interest cost (1,013,343) — (1,013,343)
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Present Value

of Defined
Fair Value Benefit Retirement
of Plan Assets Obligation Benefits
Actuarial changes due to changes in

demographic assumptions - (1,671,405) (1,671,405)

Effect of asset ceiling 1,462,325 - 1,462,325
448,982 (2,593,414) (2,144,432)
At December 31, 2016 74,299,987 (R78,218,885) (P3,918,898)

The retirement benefits are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016
Retirement asset P13,413,273 £8,630,802
Retirement liability (17,479,083) (12,549,700)
Net retirement liability (£4,065,810) (£3,918,898)

The latest actuarial valuation of the Company is as at December 31, 2017.

The following table presents the fair values of the plan assets of the Company as at December 31:

2017 2016
Cash and cash equivalents £8,184,135 P14,981,586
Debt instruments - government bonds 36,250,629 35,867,915
Debt instruments - other bonds 2,792,338 1,770,524
Unit investment trust funds 33,124,533 18,945,018
Others 5,218,289 2,734,944

85,569,924 74,299,987

The Company’s plan assets is administered by a Trustee. The Company and the retirement plan have
no specific matching strategies between the retirement plan assets and define benefit asset or
obligation under the retirement plan.

The principal assumptions used to determine retirement plan assets as at December 31 are as follows:

2017 2016
Discount rate 5.60%-5.70% 4.83%-5.58%
Rate of compensation increase 5.00%-10.00%  5.00%-10.00%

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 assuming
if all other assumptions were held constant:

2017 2016
Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease)
Increase in Defined Benefit Increase in Defined Benefit
(Decrease) Obligation  (Decrease) Obligation
Discount rate 1.00% (P11,248,835) 1.00% (R10,183,764)
(1.00%) 13,962,224 (1.00%) 12,727,906
Salary increase rate 1.00% 12,594,578 1.00% 11,561,131

(1.00%) (10,433,740) (1.00%) (9,531,092)
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The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 14 years to 15.9 years in 2017.

The maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments follows:

20.

2017 2016
Less than 1 year P13,514,581 £9,349,032
More than 1 year to 5 years 13,471,690 18,391,952
More than 5 years to 10 years 28,627,278 9,839,892
Equity
Preferred Stock

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, PLC has not issued any preferred stock out of the authorized
6,000,000,000 shares with par value of £0.25. Under the provision of the Parent Company’s articles
of incorporation, the rights and features of the preferred stocks shall be determined through a
resolution of the BOD prior to issuance.

Common Stock

Number of Shares

2017 2016

Authorized - £0.25 par value per share 37,630,000,000 37,630,000,000
Issued and Subscribed -

Balance at beginning and end of year 31,627,310,000 31,627,310,000

The following summarizes the information on the Parent Company’s registration of securities under
the Securities Regulation Code:

Authorized Number of Issue/
Date of SEC Approval Shares Shares Issued Offer Price
Common stock
1995 100,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 0.01
September 30, 1996 100,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 0.01
1997 (198,000,000,000) — —
1997 12,000,000,000 8,797,310,000 1.00
March 28, 2006 (1,870,000,000) (1,870,000,000) 1.00
June 24, 2008 (1,000,000,000) (1,000,000,000) 1.00
July 9, 2009 (1,000,000,000) (1,000,000,000) 1.00
September 5, 2014 27,500,000,000 24,700,000,000 0.25
Total — Common stock 37,630,000,000 31,627,310,000
Preferred stock
1997 6,000,000,000 - 1.00%*
Total — Preferred stock 6,000,000,000 -

*On May 29, 2014, SEC approved the reduction of par value of preferred shares to B0.25 from £1.00 per share.
y ipp

In 1995, 25,000,000 primary shares of the Company’s capital stock were offered and sold to the
public at par value. On August 28, 1995, the Company's shares of stock were formally listed in the
small board of the PSE.
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On September 30, 1996, the SEC approved the increase in the Company’s authorized capital stock
from £1,000.0 million, divided into 100,000,000,000 shares at 0.01 par value, to £2,000.0 million,
divided into 200,000,000,000 shares with the same par value.

On March 10, 1997, the stockholders approved the increase in the Company’s authorized capital
stock from £2,000.0 million, divided into 200,000,000,000 shares at 0.01 par value a share,

to £20,000.0 million, divided into 14,000,000,000 common shares and 6,000,000,000 preferred shares
both with par value of £1.

On February 18, 2002, the stockholders approved the cancellation of 3,870,000,000 shares held by
one of the Parent Company's shareholders, of these shares a total of 2,870,000,000 shares have been
cancelled and delisted in 2006 and 2008 (see Note 31).

On March 28, 2006, the SEC approved the reduction of the Company’s authorized capital stock by
1,870,000,000 shares to 18,130,000,000 shares divided into 12,130,000,000 common shares and
6,000,000,000 preferred shares (see Note 31).

On June 24, 2008, the SEC formally approved the Company’s application for further reduction and
cancellation of authorized capital stock by 1,000,000,000 shares resulting in total authorized capital
stock of 17,130,000,000 shares divided into 11,130,000,000 common shares and 6,000,000,000
preferred shares (see Note 31).

On July 9, 2009, the SEC approved the Company’s application for further reduction of authorized
capital stock by 1,000,000,000 shares resulting in total authorized capital stock of 16,130,000,000
shares, divided into 10,130,000,000 common shares and 6,000,000,000 preferred shares

(see Note 31).

As discussed in Note 31, on April 22, 2014, PLC filed with the SEC a Notice of Withdrawal of the
Memorandum of Appeal filed on June 20, 2013 and proceeded to effect the cancellation of the
remaining 1,000,000,000 shares to fully implement the MOA rescinding the Swap Agreement with
Metroplex and LIR-HK.

On May 29, 2014, the SEC approved the PLC’s application for equity restructuring which included
the following:

e Reduction in par value per share in par value per share from £16,130.0 million, divided into
10,130,000,000 common shares and 6,000,000,000 preferred shares both with the par value of
£1.00 per share, to £4,032.5 million, divided into 10,130,000,000 common shares and
6,000,000,000 preferred shares both with a par value of 0.25 per share.

e Application of the resulting additional paid-in capital amounting to £2,614.5 million to partially
wipe out the Parent Company’s deficit of £3,543.4 million as at December 31, 2013.

On July 18, 2014, PLC’s BOD and stockholders unanimously approved the amendment to the articles
of incorporation for the increase in authorized capital stock from £4,032,500,000, divided into
10,130,000,000,000 common shares with par value of £0.25 per share and 6,000,000,000 preferred
shares with par value of £0.25 per share, to £10,907,500,000, divided into 37,630,000,000 common
shares with par value of £0.25 per share and 6,000,000,000 preferred shares with par value of

P0.25 per share. The application for the increase in authorized capital stock was approved by the
SEC on September 5, 2014.
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Additional Paid-in Capital
Additional paid-in capital as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consists of the following:

2017 2016
Subscription and/or issuance of shares £6,941,634,391 $£6,941,634,391
Business combination (see Note 16) 297,087,533 297,087,533

P7,238,721,924 P$7,238,721,924

Additional paid-in capital arising from business combination pertains to the excess of consideration
from the carrying values of net assets acquired from the business combination under common control
using pooling of interest method (see Note 16).

Subscription Receivable

On October 27, 2014, the BOD of the Company approved the call for the payment in full of the
unpaid subscription of its capital stock on or before December 11, 2014. The Company was able to
collect £4,777.1 million for 4,643,573,915 common shares. The BOD also approved that unpaid
subscription after December 11, 2014 shall be subject to interest of 12% per annum.

Interest income in 2015 arising from delinquent shares amounted to 1.2 million.

On January 13, 2015, the BOD approved that under Section 67 of the Corporation Code, all common
shares subscribed which shall remain unpaid after 30 days (January 10, 2015) shall become
automatically delinquent and shall be made subject of a delinquency sale. Delinquency sale was
scheduled in accordance with Section 68 of the Corporation Code on March 2, 2015 unless the
delinquent shareholders shall pay the full amount due from their subscriptions, plus interest and their
proportionate share in the cost of the sale. On March 2, 2015, all delinquent shares have been sold.

In 2015, the additional proceeds received from the sale of delinquent shares was recognized as part of
“additional paid-in capital” account amounting to £6.2 million.

Further, listing fees pertaining to the 2015 issuance of shares were charged to “Additional paid-in
capital” account amounting to £10.7 million.

Parent Company Shares Held by a Subsidiary

POSC holds common shares of the Parent Company totaling 347,951,000 shares and 323,586,000
shares as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, with a cost of £475.4 million and

P438.9 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. These are presented as “Cost of
Parent Company shares held by a subsidiary” and are treated as a reduction in equity.

Retained Earnings

On February 23, 2017, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends of
£0.0281 per share amounting to £879.5 million to shareholders of record as at March 10, 2017. Total
dividends above are inclusive of dividends paid to related party shareholders amounting to

£9.2 million.

On February 23, 2016, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends of
£0.0215 per share amounting to £680.0 million to shareholders of record as at March 10, 2016.
Dividend attributed to Parent Company shares held by a subsidiary, which was eliminated in the
consolidated financial statements, amounted to 7.0 million.

On March 5, 2015, the BOD approved declaration of cash dividends amounting to £695.8 million or
P0.022 per share in favor of stockholders as at March 20, 2015.



- 46 -

The Parent Company’s retained earnings available for dividend declaration, computed based on the
regulatory requirements of SEC amounted to £1,708.2 million and 1,099.9 million as at

December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

21. Gaming Revenue Share
PLATI’s gaming revenue share is determined in accordance with PLAI’s operating agreement with
Melco as follows:
2017 2016 2015
Gaming revenue share - gross £6,119,060,974 $P2,171,573,454 $£1,008,317,252
Less PAGCOR license fee paid by Melco 3,509,708,335 528,597,089 252,079,313
Gaming revenue share - net £2,609,352,639 £1,642,976,365 £756,237,939
22. Cost of Services
This account consists of:
2017 2016 2015
Service fees (see Notes 26 and 31) £260,564,461 £269,814,397 £89,442,902
Operating supplies 205,296,501 183,151,089 7,956,521
Depreciation and amortization
(see Note 14) 194,986,126 138,892,148 52,022,388
Software and license fees (see Note 31) 191,656,399 186,644,134 90,412,003
Online lottery system expenses 193,378,115 122,887,521 33,920,408
Payroll and related expenses 145,220,203 65,583,792 28,278,288
Consultancy fees (see Note 31) 136,634,323 122,801,401 24,623,420
Communication 113,335,408 95,691,927 34,506,867
Rental and utilities (see Note 27) 62,975,691 23,799,546 9,108,326
Others 34,991,182 29,587,237 18,676,783
P1,539,038,409 £1,238,853,192 £388,947,906
23. General and Administrative Expenses
This account consists of:
2017 2016 2015
Salaries, wages and benefits £121,420,783 P104,449,785 £76,085,380
Transportation and travel 91,941,841 62,194,960 32,604,814
Representation and entertainment 49,978,597 26,763,840 12,536,329
Professional, service and management
fees (see Notes 26 and 31) 48,215,605 45,687,390 34,440,914
Rental and utilities (see Note 27) 37,718,135 36,657,677 23,511,417
Taxes and licenses 30,632,398 34,247,590 19,944,895
Depreciation and amortization
(see Note 14) 30,573,004 32,370,299 13,279,583
Write-off of input VAT (see Note 11) 25,000,000 - -

(Forward)
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2017 2016 2015
Outside services £12,999,222 P12,124,621 £2,041,066
Repairs and maintenance 12,428,642 11,166,018 5,835,795
Communication 7,826,803 17,076,146 11,233,857
Provision for doubtful accounts and
probable loss on input VAT
(see Notes 9 and 11) 7,703,968 6,974 8,645,486
Placement and listing fee 2,404,625 2,005,662 1,750,056
Marketing, advertising and promotion 1,981,220 3,120,168 6,041,838
Insurance 1,384,637 1,025,956 755,601
Miscellaneous (see Note 18) 536,473,897 172,634,165 8,692,831

P£1,018,683,377 P561,531,251 P257,399,862

Miscellaneous expense includes regular provisions of the Company.

24. Other Income (Expense) - net

This account consists of:

2017 2016 2015

Loss on sale of AFS financial assets (see Note 13)  (31,647,929) P- B-
Marked-to-market gain (loss) on investments held

for trading (see Note 8) 2,204,528 (37,137,005) (29,331,526)
Foreign exchange loss (1,671,684) (1,620,149) (698,585)
Gain (loss) on sale of property and equipment 155,142 29,997 (446,948)
Gain on sale of investments held for trading

(see Note 8) - - 11,363,516
Reversal of allowance for probable loss on input

VAT - - 10,992,915
Other income 49,966,804 14,498,940 5,764,923

P19,006,861 (P24228217) (P2,355,705)

25. Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 are
as follows:

2017 2016 2015
Current income tax £235,892,039 254,329,643 P186,833,985
Deferred income tax relating to
origination and reversal of
temporary difference (413,893) 28,271,202 (2,070,488)
P235,478,146 P£282,600,845 P184,763,497

PLC and its subsidiaries are using itemized deduction in computing their taxable income, except for
PLAI, who elected to use Optional Standard Deduction (OSD) until third quarter of 2016.
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The components of the Company’s deferred tax assets as at December 31 are as follows:

2017 2016
Deferred tax assets:

Accrued expenses P2,788,503 £2,914,550
Unamortized past service costs 7,726,070 6,379,982
Allowance for doubtful accounts on receivables 4,045,557 3,241,935
Unrealized foreign exchange gain 476,920 1,139,376
NOLCO 1,466,822 -
Retirement liability - 900,484
16,503,872 14,576,327

Deferred tax liabilities:
Retirement asset 753,636 -
Others 310,551 —
1,064,187 -
Deferred tax assets - net P15,439,685 P14,576,327

The components of the Company’s temporary differences and carryforward benefits of NOLCO and

MCIT for which no deferred tax assets were recognized are as follows:

2017 2016

Allowance for doubtful accounts on receivables
and others £427,690,938 P427,690,938

Allowance for deferred oil exploration and

development costs 18,377,841 18,377,841
Allowance for impairment of AFS investments 2,000,000 2,000,000
Excess MCIT over regular corporate income tax 1,257,329 1,257,329
NOLCO 160,955 8,661,197
£449,487,063 P457,987,305

Deferred tax assets amounting to £135.3 million and £137.9 million as at December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively, were not recognized since management believes that it has no sufficient taxable
income against which the deductible temporary differences and the carryforward benefits of these

assets can be utilized in the future.

As at December 31, 2017, the carryforward benefits of NOLCO and MCIT that can be claimed as
deductions from regular taxable income and regular corporate income tax due, respectively, are as

follows:
Year Incurred/Paid Expiry Date NOLCO MCIT
2015 December 31, 2018 £100,304 £600,723
2016 December 31, 2019 46,665 656,606
2017 December 31, 2020 4,903,393 -
£5,050,362 P1,257,329
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The movements in NOLCO follow:

2017 2016
NOLCO:
Balance at beginning of year P£8,661,197 £24,860,713
Additions 4,903,393 46,665
Applications (8,437,299) (16,110,881)
Expirations (76,929) (135,300)
Balance at end of year P5,050,362 £8,661,197
The movements in MCIT follow:
2017 2016
MCIT:
Balance at beginning of year P1,257,329 £600,723
Additions - 656,606
Balance at end of year P1,257,329 P1,257,329

The reconciliation of the provision for income tax computed at statutory income tax rate on income
before income tax to the provision for income tax as shown in the consolidated statements of income
is as follows:

2017 2016 2015
Income tax computed at statutory tax rate ~ P671,443,231 £432,210,294 £122,375,354
Income tax effect of:

Income not subject to income tax (785,764,413) (289,972,725)  (16,238,084)
Nondeductible expenses 357,133,868 212,640,574 182,338,123
Change in unrecognized deferred

tax assets (8,505,413) (4,203,247) (4,911,407)
Interest income subject to final tax (2,059,579) (4,275,333) (3,599,515)
Expired NOLCO 76,929 40,590 23,962
Excess of itemized deduction

over OSD - (65,900,842)  (72,567,213)
Equity share in net earnings of an

associate - - (22,657,723)
Others 3,153,523 2,061,534 -

P235,478,146 282,600,845 £184,763,497

26. Related Party Disclosures

Related parties are enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, or under common control with the Company, including
holding companies, and subsidiaries. Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an
interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them significant influence over the enterprise,
key management personnel, including directors and officers of the Company and close members of
the family of these individuals and companies associated with these individuals also constitute related
entities.

In considering each possible related entity relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationship, and not merely the legal form.
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Transactions with Related Parties

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has transactions with related parties which consist
mainly of extension or availment of noninterest-bearing advances. The outstanding balances at year-
end are due on demand. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party
receivables or payables and settlements occur in cash.

The amounts included in these transactions are as follows:

Outstanding
Balance
Transaction Assets
Related Party  Relationship Transaction Amounts (Liabilities) Terms Condition
Belle Parent Advances 2017 P985,341 (#3,713,633) Noninterest- Unsecured,
(see Note 18) 2016 754,616 (2,728,292) bearing, due and no impairment
2015 6,261,135 6,981,116 demandable
Notes receivable 2017 800,000,000 1,605,925,000 3.25%to 4.10% Unsecured, no
(see Note 10) 2016 - 805,925,000 interest-bearing, due  impairment
2015 1,805,925,000 805,925,000 on demand
Available-for-sale 2017 31,653,940 646,216,790  Noninterest-bearing Unsecured, with
financial assets 2016 8,636,271 655,096,702 allowance for
(see Note 13) 2015 387,461,701 584,562,793 impairment
amounting to
P569.9 million as at
December 31, 2017
and 2016
Interest income 2017 54,759,963 654,439  Noninterest-bearing,  Unsecured, no
(see Notes 9 2016 32,830,279 2,189,550 30 days impairment
and 10) 2015 28,776,131 2,406,953
Service and 2017 60,480,000 — Noninterest-bearing, ~ Unsecured
management 2016 60,480,000 - 30 days
fee (see Notes 2015 20,160,000 (1,585,000)
22 and 23)
Others 2017 12,543,618 12,543,618 Noninterest-bearing, Unsecured
2016 - - due on demand
2015 - -
Belle Grande  Affiliate Service fees 2017 133,800,340 (35,157,662) Noninterest- Unsecured
(see Notes 18 2016 - - bearing, 30 days
and 22) 2015 - -
SM Arena Affiliate Others 2017 20,701,935 —  Noninterest-bearing, ~ Unsecured
Complex (see Notes 18 2016 20,160,000 (1,680,000) 30 days
Corporation and 22) 2015 11,760,000 (525,000)
SM Prime Affiliate Rental expense 2017 12,610,120 — Noninterest-bearing, ~ Unsecured
Holdings, (see Note 22) 2016 12,384,984 - 30 days
Inc. 2015 12,280,279 -
Officers Key management Salaries and 2017 £29,708,516
personnel wages 2016 35,086,786
2015 13,207,004

On September 15, 2014, PLAI and Belle entered into a Service Agreement wherein the latter shall
provide services to support the operations of the casino license from PAGCOR. Belle shall likewise
provide sufficient personnel and other resources for accounting and administrative functions.
Management and service fees amounting to 60.5 million, £60.5 million and £20.2 million in 2017,
2016 and 2015, respectively, were presented as part of “Services fees” included under costs of
services and “Professional, service and management fees” under general and administrative expenses
in the consolidated statements of income (see Notes 22 and 23).
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27. Leases

a.

Finance Lease

Lottery Equipment. The contracts for the supply of online lottery system entered into by POSC
with Scientific Games and Intralot and by TGTI with Intralot contain a lease which is classified
as finance lease. These related equipment are included as part of Lottery equipment under
“Property and Equipment” in the consolidated statements of financial position.

Future minimum lease payments under these finance leases together with present value of the
minimum lease payments are as follows:

2017 2016
Within one year P45,340,826 P58,312,747
After one year but not more than five years 38,944,375 80,957,984
Total future minimum lease payments 84,285,201 139,270,731
Less amount representing interest 9,422,217 19,928,135
Present value of lease payments 74,862,984 119,342,596
Less current portion of obligations under finance
lease 39,488,510 47,698,388
Noncurrent portion of obligations under finance
lease P35,374,474 71,644,208

The contracts of POSC remain effective until July 31, 2018, the expiration of Equipment Lease
Agreement (ELA). Payment to Scientific Games is based on a pre-agreed percentage of POSC’s
revenue from PCSO’s conduct of online lottery games running under the system provided by
Scientific Games. Payment to Intralot is based on pre-agreed percentage of the revenue generated
by the terminals from PCSO’s conduct of online lottery operations or a fixed amount of US$110
per terminal per month, whichever is higher. Payments to Scientific Games and Intralot include
the non-lease elements which are presented as “Software and license fees” under “Cost and
expenses” in the consolidated statements of income (see Note 22).

The contract of TGTI with Intralot commenced upon the commercial operation of 200 outlets and
remains effective for 10 years until September 30, 2020. Payment to Intralot is based on a
percentage of the gross receipts of PCSO from its “Online KENO” game or a fixed amount of
US$60 per terminal per month, whichever is higher.

The Company initially recognized the finance lease liability based on the fair value of the
equipment or the sales price since the minimum lease payments cannot be established, as the
monthly payment varies depending on the revenue generated by the leased equipment.

Operating Lease

As Lessor

POSC leases online lotto equipment and accessories to PCSO for a period of 3 years until

July 31, 2018 as provided in the 2015 Amended ELA (see Note 31). Rental payments is based on
a percentage of gross amount of lotto ticket sales from the operation of all PCSO’s lotto terminals
or a fixed annual rental of 35,000 per terminal in commercial operation, whichever is higher.
Rental income recognized in the consolidated statement of income amounted to 21,036.9 million,
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£931.8 million and £395.5 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Future minimum rental
income as at December 31 for the remaining lease term is as follows:

2017 2016
Within one year P85,852,083 £145,495,000
After one year but not more than five years - 84,872,083

85,852,083 P£230,367,083

TGTI leases “Online KENO” equipment and accessories to PCSO for a period of 10 years from
the time the ELA will run in commercial operations. Rental payment by PCSO is based on
certain percentage of gross amount of “Online KENO” games from the operation of all PCSO’s
terminal or a fixed annual rental of 40,000 per terminal in commercial operation, whichever is
higher. Rental income recognized in the consolidated statement of income amounted to

£803.6 million, 647.9 million and £235.4 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Future
minimum rental income for the remaining lease terms is as follows:

2017 2016
Within one year £96,400,000 £80,800,000
After one year but not more than five years 141,400,000 222,200,000

£237,800,000 £303,000,000

As Lessee

a. POSC leases certain office spaces for periods of one to three years up to 2019. The lease
agreements provide for minimum rental commitments with annual rental escalation rate of
5% to 10%. Rent expense recognized in the consolidated statement of income amounted to
£16.2 million, £11.0 million and £6.2 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

b. LotoPac, LCC and FRI lease certain properties that are renewed annually at the option of
both companies. Rent expense recognized in the consolidated statement of income amounted
to £62.9 million, £29.2 million and 11.4 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

c. TGTI entered into lease contracts with the following: (1) Keewswen Development Corp. for
the lease of its office space for a period of five years which commenced on February 1, 2011
expired on January 31, 2016 which was renewed for a period of two years which commenced
on February 1, 2016 to January 31, 2018, (2) MBH Trading & Manufacturing Corporation
for the lease of its warehouse for a period of seven years commencing on August 1, 2010 and
expired on July 31, 2017 which was also renewed up to July 2020, and (3) George W.G
Angel for a parking space for a period of one year, renewable upon mutual consent of the
parties. Rent expense recognized in the consolidated statement of income amounted to
£8.0 million, £6.0 million and £1.6 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The above operating leases have no restrictions and contingent rental provisions.

Future minimum rental expense for the remaining lease terms are as follows:

2017 2016
Within one year P87,722,459 P14,263,568
After one year but not more than five years 42,104,342 10,751,584

P129,826,801 P25,015,152
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28. Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Common Share

As at December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, basic/diluted earnings per share were computed as follows:

2017 2016 2015
Net income attributable to the equity holders
of the Parent (a) P1,756,459,152  £959,849,646  £155,232,754
Weighted average common shares,
beginning 31,627,310,000 31,627,310,000 31,440,564,700

Number of parent company common shares
held by subsidiaries - basic, at
beginning of year (323,586,000)  (290,660,000) -
- - 155,621,083

Issuance of common shares
Acquisition of entities holding

parent common shares (16,323,279) (32,130,230)  (222,279,833)
Weighted average common shares, end (b)  31,287,400,721 31,304,519,770 31,373,905,950
Earnings per common share (a/b) £0.056140 P£0.030662 £0.004948

29. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies and Capital Management

The Company’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
and obligations under finance lease. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
financing for the Company’s operations and capital expenditures. The Company has other financial
assets and liabilities such as investments held for trading, AFS financial assets, trade and other
receivables and trade and other current liabilities which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, equity
price risk and foreign currency risk. The BOD and management review and approve the policies for
managing credit, liquidity, equity price and foreign currency risks and they are summarized below:

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its counterparties failed
to discharge their contractual obligations. Credit risk arises from the Company’s financial assets
which are composed of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and others and AFS financial
assets.

The Company’s credit risk is concentrated on a few companies with which it transacts business. One
of which is the PCSO, through its subsidiary, POSC. POSC'’s trade receivable arises from equipment
lease agreement with PCSO, POSC’s sole customer. It is part of the Company policy that all the
terms specified in the ELA with PCSO are complied with and ensure that payment terms are met.
Another major customer is Melco, from whom gaming revenue share is collected. Belle, a major
stockholder, also has outstanding loans payable to the Company. The Company keeps close
coordination with Melco and Belle and ensures that contract and agreement terms and conditions are
met.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets which are composed of cash and
cash equivalents, other receivables, investments held for trading and AFS financial assets, the
Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.
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The table below shows the aging analysis of the Company’s financial assets.

2017
Past Due but not Impaired

Neither Past Over 1

Due nor Less than 31 Days Year up to
Impaired 30 days to 1 Year 3 Years  Over3 Years Impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents* £2,956,671,884 P- P- P- P- P- P2,956,671,884
Investment held for trading 178,482,842 - - - - - 178,482,842
Receivables** 696,108,833 - - - 248,024 434,440,938  1,130,797,795
Notes receivable 1,605,925,000 - - - - - 1,605,925,000
AFS financial assets 648,597,890 - - - - 574,918,475 1,223,516,365
Guarantee bonds*** 35,000,000 — — — — — 35,000,000
$£6,120,786,449 P P P £248,024 £1,009,359,413 £7,130,393,886

*Excluding cash on hand amounting to £6.0 million.
**Excluding advances to contractors and suppliers amounting to £4.3 million.
***Included as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position

2016
Past Due but not Impaired

Neither Past Over 1

Due nor Less than 31 Days Year up to
Impaired 30 days to | Year 3Years  Over 3 Years Impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents* £1,804,213,982 P P P P P- P1,804,213,982
Investment held for trading 165,990,214 - - - - - 165,990,214
Receivables** 729,102,862 3,191 - 83,889 - 438,497,388  1,167,687,330
Notes receivable 805,925,000 - - - - - 805,925,000
Deposits*** 7,224,028 - - - - - 7,224,028
AFS financial assets 657,377,802 - - - - 574,918,475  1,232,296,277
Guarantee bonds**** 35,000,000 — — — — — 35,000,000
P4,204,833,888 P3,191 P P83,889 P- P1,013,415,863 P5218336,831

*Excluding cash on hand amounting to £7.3 million.
**Excluding advances to contractors and suppliers amounting to 2.6 million.
***Included as part of “Other current assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position
****Included as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position

The table below shows the credit quality of the Company’s financial assets that are neither past due
nor impaired based on historical experience with the corresponding third parties.

2017
High Grade = Medium Grade Total
Cash and cash equivalents* £2,956,671,884 P- £2,956,671,884
Investment held for trading 178,482,842 - 178,482,842
Receivables** 696,108,833 - 696,108,833
Notes receivable 1,605,925,000 - 1,605,925,000
AFS financial assets 646,216,790 2,381,100 648,597,890
Guarantee bonds™*** 35,000,000 - 35,000,000
P6,118,405,349 £2,381,100 $6,120,786,449
*Excluding cash on hand amounting to £6.0 million.
**Excluding advances to contractors and suppliers amounting to 4.3 million.
***Included as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position
2016

High Grade Medium Grade Total
Cash and cash equivalents* P£1,804,213,982 P P£1,804,213,982
Investment held for trading 165,990,214 - 165,990,214
Receivables** 729,102,862 - 729,102,862
Notes receivable 805,925,000 - 805,925,000
Deposits*** 7,224,028 - 7,224,028
AFS financial assets 655,096,702 2,281,100 657,377,802
Guarantee bonds**** 35,000,000 - 35,000,000
P4,202,552,788 £2,281,100 P4,204,833,888

*Excluding cash on hand amounting to £7.3 million.
**Excluding advances to contractors and suppliers amounting to 2.6 million.
***Included as part of “Other current assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position
****Included as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position
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High grade financial assets pertain to those receivables from related parties or customers that
consistently pay on or before the maturity date while medium grade includes those financial assets
being collected on due dates with an effort of collection.

The Company assessed its cash in bank and cash equivalents as high grade since this is deposited
with reputable banks.

Liquidity Risk. Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or other financial
asset.

The Company seeks to manage its liquidity profile to be able to finance its investments and pay its
outstanding liabilities. To limit this risk, the Company closely monitors its cash flows and ensures
that credit facilities are available to meet its obligations as and when they fall due. To cover its
financing requirements, the Company uses internally generated funds as well as a committed line of
credit that it can access to meet liquidity needs.

The Company maintains sufficient cash to finance its operations. Any excess cash is invested in
short-term money market placements. These placements are maintained to meet the requirements for
additional capital expenditures, maturing obligations and cash dividends. Liquidity risk is minimal as
at December 31, 2017 and 2016 as the total current assets can cover the total current liabilities as they
fall due.

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities follow:

2017
Over 60 Days
but less than

On Demand 1 to 60 Days 1year  Over 1 year Total
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents® £2,956,671,884 - - B- P2,956,671,884
Investments held for trading 178,482,842 - - - 178,482,842
Receivables® 434,688,962 696,108,833 - - 1,130,797,795
Notes receivable 1,605,925,000 - - - 1,605,925,000
AFS financial assets - - - 1,223,516,365 1,223,516,365
Guarantee bonds® - - - 35,000,000 35,000,000
P5,175,768,688 P696,108,833 P- P1,258,516,365 $£7,130,393,886
2017
Over 60 Days
but less than
On Demand 1 to 60 Days 1year  Over 1 year Total
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables and other current
liabilities@ P51,679,679 $487,620,086 B- - £539,299,765
Obligations under finance lease® - 9,476,305 35,864,521 38,944,375 84,285,201
Installment payable - 670,207 2,010,621 2,762,995 5,443,823
P51,679,679 P497,766,598 £37,875,142  £41,707,370 P£629,028,789

(a)Excluding cash on hand amounting to £6.0 million.
(b)Excluding advances to contractors and suppliers amounting to 4.3 million.
(c)Included as part of ““Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position
(d)Excluding statutory liabilities, provisions, unearned income and current portion of installment payable amounting to £904.4 million

(e)Based on undiscounted future payments

() Including current portion
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2016

Over 60 Days
but less than

On Demand 1 to 60 Days 1 year Over 1 year Total
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents® P£1,804,213,982 P P P- P1,804,213,982
Investments held for trading 165,990,214 - - - 165,990,214
Receivables® 438,584,468 729,102,862 - 1,167,687,330
Notes receivable - 250,000,000 555,925,000 - 805,925,000
Deposits® - - 7,224,028 - 7,224,028
AFS financial assets - - 1,232,296,277 1,232,296,277
Guarantee bonds¥ — — — 35,000,000 35,000,000

P2,408,788,664

£979,102,862

P£563,149,028

P1,267,296,277 P5,218,336,831

Financial Liabilities
Trade payables and other current

liabilities® P58,794,627 $£323,130,628 P P-  P381,925,255
Obligations under finance lease? — 9,593,882 48,718,865 80,957,984 139,270,731
P58,794,627 $332,724,510  £48,718,865 280,957,984 $£521,195,986

(a)Excluding cash on hand amounting to 7.3 million.
(b)Excluding advances to contractors and suppliers amounting to 2.6 million.
(c)Included as part of ““Other current assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position

(d)Included as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position
(e)Excluding statutory liabilities and provisions amounting to B162.7 million

(f)Based on undiscounted future payments.

Equity Price Risk. Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of quoted investment held for
trading and AFS financial assets decrease as the result of changes in the value of individual stocks.

The Company’s exposure to equity price risk primarily to the Company’s quoted investments held for

trading and AFS financial assets. The Company monitors the equity investments based on market
expectations. Significant movements within the portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all
buy and sell decisions are approved by the BOD.

AFS financial assets

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in equity price, with
all other variables held constant, of the Company’s equity. The impact on the Company’s equity
already excludes the impact on transactions affecting the consolidated profit or loss before income

tax.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in equity price, with
all other variables held constant, of the Company’s consolidated income before income tax.

Available-for-sale financial assets

2017 2016
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
in Equity in Equity in Equity in Equity
Price Price Price Price
Percentage increase (decrease)
in equity price 1% (1%) 1% (1%)
Effect on equity £1,641,680 (P1,641,680) 5,196,681  (P5,196,681)
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Investments held for trading

2017 2016
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
in Equity in Equity in Equity in Equity
Price Price Price Price
Percentage increase (decrease)
in equity price 5% 5% 5% (5%)
Effect on profit or loss £8,924,142 (£8,924,142) P8,291,536  (P8,291,536)

Foreign Currency Risk. The Company, through POSC, has foreign currency exposures. Such
exposure arises from cash and cash equivalents and payables to certain suppliers which are
denominated in U.S. dollar (US$). The Company’s financial instruments which are denominated in
foreign currency include cash and cash equivalents and consultancy and software license fees
payable. The Company maintains a US$ account to match its foreign currency requirements.

In translating foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities into peso amounts, the
exchange rates used was £49.92 and £49.77 to US$1, the Php to US$ exchange rates as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the Php-US$
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s consolidated income before
income tax in 2017. There is no other impact on the Company’s equity other than those already
affecting profit or loss.

Effect on
Increase (Decrease) in Income before Effect on
USS$ Exchange Rate Income Tax Equity
2017 5% B754,779) (B528,345)
(5%) 754,779 528,345
2016 5% (R920,229) (R644,160)
(5%) 920,229 644,160

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to safeguard its ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns to shareholders and benefits to other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. There were no
changes made in the objectives, policies or processes in 2017 and 2016.

The Company considers the total equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent as its capital

amounting to £16,315.1 million and £15,357.9 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.
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Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the financial instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s-length transaction, other than in a
forced liquidation or sale. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices, discounted cash flow
models and option pricing models, as appropriate.

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, deposits and trade payables and other
current liabilities (excluding statutory liabilities) approximate their fair values due to the short-term
nature of the transactions.

The fair values of AFS financial assets in quoted equity shares are based on quoted prices in the PSE
or those shares whose prices are readily available from brokers or other regulatory agency as at
reporting date. There are no quoted market prices for the unlisted shares of stock and there are no
other reliable sources of their fair values, therefore, these are carried at cost, net of any impairment
loss.

The estimated fair value of obligations under finance lease was calculated using the discounted cash
flow methodology, using PDST-R2 rates ranging from 2.4% to 4.3% and 1.8% to 3.9% in 2017 and
2016, respectively.

The carrying value of guarantee bonds approximates fair value as at December 31, 2017 and 2016
due to unavailability of information as to the repayment date that would provide reasonable basis for
the fair value measurement.

The following table provides the quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy of the
Company’s assets and liabilities, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable
approximation of fair value, as at December 31, 2017 and 2016:

2017
Quoted
(Unadjusted) Significant Significant
Prices in Observable Unobservable
Date of Active Markets Inputs Inputs
Valuation (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets
Assets measured at fair value:
Investments held for trading December 31,2017 P178,482,842 P- P- P178,482,842
AFS financial assets - quoted shares December 31, 2017 646,216,790 2,300,001 - 648,516,790
Liabilities
Liabilities for which fair value
is disclosed -
Obligations under finance lease December 31,2017 - - 84,285,201 84,285,201
Installment payable December 31,2017 - - 5,210,804 5,210,804
2016
Quoted
(Unadjusted) Significant Significant
Prices in Observable  Unobservable
Date of Active Markets Inputs Inputs
Valuation (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets
Assets measured at fair value:
Investments held for trading December 31,2016 £165,990,214 P B~ PR165,990,214
AFS financial assets - quoted shares  December 31,2016 655,096,702 2,200,000 - 657,296,702
Liabilities

Liabilities for which fair value
is disclosed -
Obligations under finance lease December 31, 2016 - - 132,578,191 132,578,191
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There were no transfers between fair value measurements in 2017 and 2016.

30.

Segment Information

The primary segment reporting format is presented based on business segments in which the
Company’s risks and rates of return are affected predominantly by differences in the products and
services provided. Thus, the operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to
the nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business
unit that offers different products and serves different markets.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company is organized into five business segments, namely:

investment holding, real estate, public amusement recreation, gaming business and lottery equipment
leasing, distribution and others.



Financial information about the Company’s business segments are shown below:

- 60 -

2017
Public Lottery equipment
Investment Amusement leasing, distribution Eliminations/
Holding Real Estate and Recreation  Gaming Business and others Adjustments Consolidated

Earnings Information
Revenue:

External P— P— P— £2,609,352,639 £2,319,993,376 P- £4,929,346,015

Internal 1,467,423,869 - - - - (1,467,423,869) -
Cost and expenses (25,707,204) (15,162) (14,472) (878,730,409) (1,653,254,539) (238,472,484) (2,796,194,270)
Interest income 61,625,227 1,603 - 13,471,123 820,060 - 75,918,013
Finance charges - - - - (10,859,855) - (10,859,855)
Dividend income 299,287 - - - 20,628,055 - 20,927,342
Depreciation and amortization (6,852) - - (238,580,484) (225,444,278) - (464,031,614)
Provision for income tax (6,597,772) - - - (228,880,374) - (235,478,146)
Net income (loss) for the year 1,497,043,406 (13,559) (14,472) 1,750,328,829 492,865,988 (1,737,544,233) 2,002,665,960
Other Information
Investments held for trading and

AFS financial assets 390,333,450 - - - 727,998,290 (469,733 850) 648,597,890
Segment assets 16,649,433,414 800,900 29,719,519 1,594,561,087 1,917,904,792 (2,206,994,332) 17,985,425,379
Segment liabilities 184,834,510 260,406,147 5,000 932,951,374 613,772,207 (436,045,809) 1,555,923,429
Consolidated total assets 17,039,766,864 800,900 29,719,518 1,594,561,087 2,645,903,082 (2,676,728,182) 18,634,023,269
Consolidated total liabilities 184,834,510 260,406,147 5,000 932,951,374 613,772,207 (436,045,809) 1,555,923,429
Capital expenditure - - - 8,932 156,780,026 - 156,788,958
Goodwill - - - - 1,832,260,734 - 1,832,260,734
Earnings before interest taxes,

depreciation and amortization

(EBITDA) - - - - - - 2,597,183,359
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2016
Public Lottery equipment
Investment Amusement leasing, distribution Eliminations/
Holding Real Estate and Recreation  Gaming Business and others Adjustments Consolidated

Earnings Information
Revenue:

External P P P P1,642,976,365 P1,888,099,468 P P3,531,075,833

Internal 1,069,895,814 - - - - (1,069,895,814 -
Cost and expenses (16,719,400) (23,852) (22,812) (492,062,964) (1,291,555,415) (324,769,436) (2,125,153,879)
Interest income 40,021,895 1,800 - 6,300,329 815,079 - 47,139,103
Finance charges - - - - (12,748,505) - (12,748,505)
Dividend income 2,541,734 - - - 22,074,912 - 24,616,646
Depreciation and amortization (3,760) - - (90,060) (171,168,627) (324,769,436) (496,031,883)
Provision for income tax 656,606 - - 98,851,263 183,092,976 - 282,600,845
Net income for the year 1,095,083,437 (22,052) (22,812) 1,058,362,466 399,364,344 (1,394,665,247) 1,158,100,136
Other Information
Investments held for trading and 322,241,801 - - - 879,721,834 (378,595,619) 823,368,016

AFS financial assets
Segment assets 16,042,019,466 813,959 29,733,991 379,751,120 1,555,785,960 (1,923,679,740) 16,084,424,756
Segment liabilities 185,736,557 260,405,647 5,000 189,670,237 474,876,890 (391,203,697) 719,490,634
Consolidated total assets 16,364,261,267 813,959 29,733,991 379,751,120 2,435,507,794 (2,302,275,359) 16,907,792,772
Consolidated total liabilities 185,736,557 260,405,647 5,000 189,670,237 474,876,890 (391,203,697) 719,490,634
Capital expenditure 20,556 - - 158,391 111,940,173 - 112,119,120

Goodwill
EBITDA

- 1,828,577,952

1,828,577,952
1,901,953,837
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2015

Public Lottery equipment
Investment Amusement leasing, distribution Eliminations/
Holding Real Estate and Recreation Gaming Business and others Adjustments Consolidated

Earnings Information
Revenue:

External P P P P756,237,939 P£719,326,926 P P1,475,564,865

Internal 575,356,767 - - - - (575,356,767) -
Cost and expenses (13,009,757) (62,926) (37,378) (130,355,416) (502,882,291) (563,277,634) (1,209,625,402)
Interest income 40,704,963 38,788 - 760,585 530,204 - 42,034,540
Finance charges - - - - (4,996,708) - (4,996,708)
Dividend income 27,496,623 - - - 4,273,890 - 31,770,513
Equity in net earnings of an

associate - - - - - 75,525,743 75,525,743
Depreciation and amortization - - - (341,660) (64,960,311) (563,277,634) (628,579,605)
Provision for income tax 600,723 - - 115,197,543 68,965,231 - 184,763,497
Net income for the year 640,940,787 (24,138) (37,378) 511,445,565 133,938,171 (1,063,108,658) 223,154,349
Other Information
Investments held for trading and

AFS financial assets 292,945,362 - - - 706,367,720 (186,022,499) 813,290,583
Segment assets 15,608,466,624 856,011 30,820,792 317,468,350 1,515,226,053 (1,844,130,610) 15,628,707,220
Segment liabilities 167,279,987 260,425,647 1,068,988 297,749,933 462,639,425 (636,424,102) 552,739,878
Consolidated total assets 15,901,411,986 856,011 30,820,792 317,468,350 2,221,593,773 (2,030,153,109) 16,441,997,803
Consolidated total liabilities 167,279,987 260,425,647 1,068,988 297,749,933 462,639,425 (636,424,102) 552,739,878
Capital expenditure - - - 65,480 223,344,454 - 223,409,934

Goodwill
EBITDA

1,828,577,952

1,828,577,952
894,519,067
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EBITDA pertains to the Company’s income before tax, excluding other income (expense) and before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization.

Revenue from gaming business segment amounting to £2,609.4 million, £1,643.0 million and
£756.2 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, are solely collectible from Melco and revenue
from lottery equipment leasing, distribution and others business segment amounting to

$£2,320.0 million and £1,888.1 million and £719.3 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, are
solely collectible from PCSO.

The following illustrate the reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, net profit, assets and
liabilities to the Company’s corresponding amounts:

2017 2016 2015
Net Profit for the Year
Total profit for reportable segments £3,740,210,193 P2,552,765,383 P£1,286,263,007
Elimination for intercompany profits (1,737,544,233) (1,394,665,247) (1,063,108,658)
Consolidated net profit £2,002,665,960 £1,158,100,136 £223,154,349
Assets
Total assets for reportable segments P17,985,425,379 R16,084,424,756  $15,628,707,220
Investments and advances 648,597,890 823,368,016 813,290,583
Consolidated assets P18,634,023,269 P£16,907,792,772 £16,441,997,803

Disclosure of the geographical information regarding the Company’s revenues from external
customers and total assets have not been provided since all of the Company’s consolidated revenues
are derived from operations within the Philippines.

The BOD (Chief Operating Decision Maker) monitors the operating results of its business units
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance

assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on net income or loss and is measured
consistently with net income or loss in the consolidated financial statements. However, financing
(including interest expense and interest income) and income taxes are managed as a whole and are not
allocated to operating segments.

31.

Significant Contracts and Commitments

Investment Commitment with PAGCOR

The Company and its casino operator is required to have an “Investment Commitment” based on
PAGCOR guidelines of US$1.0 billion, of which US$650.0 million shall be invested upon the
opening of the casino and the other US$350.0 million shall be invested within a period of three (3)
years from the commencement of the casino operations. The Investment Commitment should
comprise of the value of land used for the projects and the construction costs of various facilities and
infrastructure within the site of the project.

The other salient provisions of the License are: (i) creation of an escrow account of at least US$100.0
million to be used exclusively for the project, with a maintaining balance of US$50.0 million; (ii)
issuance of performance bond of US$100.0 million to guarantee the completion of the project; and
(iii) issuance of surety bond of US$100.0 million to guarantee the payment to PAGCOR of all fees
payable under the license granted.

In May 2013, the Escrow was terminated as Melco deposited its own Escrow Fund to replace that of
the Company.
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Operating Agreement with Melco

On March 13, 2013, Belle, together with PLAL entered into an Operating Agreement with MPHIL
Holdings No. 2 Corporation, MPHIL Holdings No. 1 Corporation and Melco. Under the terms of the
Operating Agreement, Melco was appointed as the sole and exclusive operator and manager of the
casino development project.

The Operating Agreement shall be in full force and effect for the period of the PAGCOR License,
unless terminated earlier in accordance with the agreements among the parties.

Pursuant to this agreement, PLAI shares from the performance of the casino gaming operations.
Gaming revenue share in 2017, 2016 and 2015 amounted to £2,609.4 million, £1,643.0 million, and
P756.2 million respectively (see Note 21).

Advisory Services by AB Leisure Global, Inc. (ABLGI) and Belle Grande
ABLGI agreed to act in an advisory capacity to Belle and PLAI subject to certain limitations for a
consideration equivalent to percentage of PLAI’s income from gaming revenue share.

Effective 2017, ABLGI, Belle and PLAI entered into an agreement to assign the ABLGI’s advisory
and consulting services to Belle Grande.

Professional fee amounted to £206.8 million, £216.1 million and 276.0 million in 2017, 2016 and
2015, respectively, presented as part of “Service fees” account under cost of services expenses in the
consolidated statements of income (see Note 22).

Share Swap Agreement

In 1997, PLC (then Sinophil Corporation), together with Belle (then a 32% shareholder) entered into
a Swap Agreement with Metroplex whereby PLC issued 3,870,000,000 of its common shares in
exchange for 46,381,600 shares of LIR-HK, a Hong Kong-based company, which is a subsidiary of
Metroplex.

On August 23, 2001, a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) was entered into by and among Belle,
PLC, Metroplex and LIR-HK rescinding the Swap Agreement and cancelling all obligations stated
therein and reversing all the transactions as well as returning all the objects thereof in the following
manner:

a. Metroplex shall surrender the certificates of PLC shares held by them in relation to the Swap
Agreement. Belle shall then cause the reduction of the capital stock of PLC to the extent
constituting the PLC shares of stock surrendered by Metroplex and the cancellation and delisting
of such shares from the PSE.

b. PLC shall surrender the LIR-HK shares back to Metroplex.

In view of such definite plan to rescind the Swap Agreement through the MOA or other means, PLC
discontinued using the equity method in accounting for its investment in LIR-HK starting from LIR-
HK’s fiscal year beginning February 1, 1999.

On February 18, 2002, PLC’s stockholders approved the cancellation of 3,870,000,000 shares held by
Metroplex. However, Metroplex failed to deliver the stock certificates for cancellation covering the
2,000,000,000 shares of their total shareholdings. PLC again presented to its stockholders the
reduction of its authorized capital stock to the extent of 1,870,000,000 shares, which were already
delivered by Metroplex. On June 3, 2005, the stockholders approved the cancellation and delisting of
the 1,870,000,000 shares. On March 28, 2006, the SEC formally approved PLC’s application for the
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capital reduction and cancellation of the 1,870,000,000 PLC shares. The application to delist the said
shares was also approved by the PSE.

As aresult of the cancellation of the shares, investment in LIR-HK was reduced by £2,807.8 million
in 2006. The corresponding decrease in capital stock, additional paid-in capital, and share in
cumulative translation adjustments of an associate amounted to £1,870.0 million, £1,046.9 million
and £109.1 million, respectively.

In 2007, PLC acquired LIR-HK’s loan from Union Bank of the Philippines which was secured by the
1,000,000,000 shares of PLC held by Metroplex for a total consideration of £81.6 million

(see Note 9). Upon acquisition, an application for capital reduction and cancellation of 1,000,000,000
PLC shares was filed with the SEC after obtaining stockholders’ approval.

On June 24, 2008, upon obtaining the approval of the SEC, the 1,000,000,000 PLC shares in the
name of Metroplex were cancelled. As a result, investment in LIR-HK was reduced by

P1,501.5 million in 2008. The corresponding decrease in capital stock, additional paid-in capital and
share in cumulative translation adjustments of an associate amounted to £1,000.0 million,

P559.8 million and £58.3 million, respectively. In 2009, PLC applied with the SEC for further
decrease of its authorized capital stock for 1,000,000,000 shares. This application was approved on
July 9, 2009 by the SEC. However, PLC did not effect such decrease in authorized capital stock as
these cannot be surrendered for cancellation (see Note 20).

In 2009, Metroplex filed before the Court of Appeals (CA) to review the Order of the SEC denying
their petition to nullify the approval of the reduction of the capital stock of the Parent Company.
Petition was elevated to the Supreme Court (SC) after the CA sustained the SEC ruling (see Note 32).
The deal was scuttled when the remaining 1,000,000,000 undelivered PLC shares (hereinafter
referred to as the “Shares”) are being held by another creditor, Evanston Asset Holdings Pte. Ltd
(“Evanston”™), as collateral for loans obtained by Metroplex. Metroplex was previously negotiating
for the release of such pledge to be able to carry out the terms of the MOA.

However, during 2012, PLC was informed by Evanston that they had undertaken foreclosure
proceedings on the Shares. While Evanston has stated willingness to negotiate with PLC towards the
transfer of the Shares, there is no assurance that PLC will be able to acquire the Shares from
Evanston. Thus, PLC recognized full impairment loss on its investment in LIR-HK in view of the
then uncertainty of implementing the MOA rescinding the Swap Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, cognizant of the fact that whoever had possession of the Shares would
be dispossessed of its property by reason of the approval of the decrease in capital which implies the
cancellation of said shares, PLC exerted earnest efforts to have the SEC revoke its approval of the
third decrease in capital. However, SEC continued to deny any petition on the following grounds:

(1) the documents submitted by appellant in support of its application for the decrease of capital stock,
were all complete and regular on its face;

(i1) there was no allegation of fraud, actual or constructive, nor misrepresentation in its application
for decrease of authorized capital stock.

On June 20, 2013, PLC filed a Memorandum of Appeal with the SEC to appeal the denial of the
petition.

On April 22, 2014, PLC filed with the SEC a Notice of Withdrawal of the Memorandum of Appeal
filed on June 20, 2013 and proceeded to effect the cancellation of the shares and compensated the
parties who were in possession of the remaining 1,000,000,000 PLC shares. As a result, investment
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in LIR-HK was reduced by £1,501.5 million in 2014. The corresponding decrease in capital stock,
additional paid-in capital and share in cumulative translation adjustments of an associate amounted to
£1,000.0 million, £559.8 million and £58.3 million, respectively.

Correspondingly, PLC recognized a receivable from Metroplex for £340.7 million which was the cost
of implementing the MOA rescinding the Swap Agreement and the cancellation of the said Shares
(see Notes 9 and 20).

Equipment Lease Agreement (ELA) between POSC and PCSO

ELA. POSC has an ELA with PCSO for the lease of not less than 800 lotto terminals, which includes
central computer, communications equipment and the right to use the application software and
manuals for the central computer system and draw equipment of PCSO for its Visayas-Mindanao
(VISMIN) operations for a period of eight years from April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2013.

PCSO is the principal government agency for raising and providing funds for health programs,
medical assistance and services, and charities of national character through holding and conducting
charity sweepstakes, races, and lotteries.

2012 Amended ELA. On May 22, 2012, the POSC and PCSO amended some provisions of the ELA
which reduced the rental fee for the VISMIN operations and included the lease of lotto terminals and
supply of betting slips and ticket paper rolls in some of PCSO’s Luzon operations for additional lease
fee effective June 1, 2012 until March 31, 2013, which is concurrent with the ELA expiry. The
amendment also incorporated the fee for maintenance and repair services as part of the rental fee and
provided PCSO an option to purchase the equipment related to its VISMIN operations at the end of
the lease period for £15.0 million.

2013 Amended ELA. On March 26, 2013, the POSC and PCSO further amended some provisions of
the ELA which extended it from March 31, 2013 to July 31, 2015. In lieu of the PCSO option to
purchase the equipment related to its VISMIN operations, POSC agreed to reduce the rental fee on
the lotto terminals for the VISMIN operations and shoulder the cost of betting slips and ticket paper
rolls for the PCSO’s Luzon and VISMIN operations. The amendment also incorporated the fee for
the supply of betting slips and ticket paper rolls for the PCSO’s Luzon operations as part of the rental
fee.

2015 Amended ELA. In 2015, the POSC and PCSO further amended some provisions of the ELA
which extended it from August 1, 2015 to July 31, 2018 (see Note 27). The amendment also required
POSC to deposit an additional £5.0 million cash bond to guarantee the unhampered use and operation
of the lottery system, including equipment, servers, network communication and terminals. The
additional cash bond is included under “Other noncurrent assets” in the consolidated statements of
financial position.

The rental fee, presented as “Equipment rental” in the consolidated statements of income, is based on
a percentage of gross sales of lotto tickets from PCSO’s VISMIN and Luzon operations or a fixed
annual rental of 35,000 per terminal in commercial operation, whichever is higher. This covers the
equipment rental of lotto terminals, central computer and communications equipment including the
accessories and right to use the application software and manuals for the central computer system and
terminals and draw equipment, as well as the supply of betting slips and ticket paper rolls, and
maintenance and repair services. The number of installed lotto terminals totaled 4,205 and 4,157 as
at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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Instant Scratch Tickets. On March 25, 2009, POSC entered into a non-exclusive Memorandum of
Agreement (MOA) with PCSO for the printing, distribution and sale of scratch tickets effective
December 1, 2009. The share of PCSO is guaranteed for every 500 million tickets sold for a period
of seven years from the date of the MOA’s effectivity. The MOA requires a cash bond to be
deposited in an interest-bearing bank account designated by PCSO to guarantee the payment of all
prizes for each series of tickets distributed, subject to review by PCSO, which was paid in January
2010, for a period of seven years from the date of initial launch of the instant tickets and shall be
maintained co-terminus with this MOA. The £10.0 million cash bond is recognized under “Other
noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position.

On March 31, 2015, POSC entered into an OMOA with PGEC for the authorization of PGEC as the
exclusive marketing, distribution, selling and collecting agent of POSC throughout the Philippines.
The agreement took effect on April 1, 2015 and shall remain effective as long as the MOA with
PCSO or any extension thereof shall be effective.

PGEC agreed to assume POSC’s commitment to PCSO to solely shoulder the project cost for the
Instant Scratch Ticket program, which consists of the costs of production, distribution, warehousing,
printing, handling, software and hardware maintenance, advertising, marketing, selling and other
related expenses necessary to totally dispose of all instant tickets. PGEC is entitled to all the
revenues, sums and proceeds from the Instant Scratch Tickets beginning April 1, 2015, and shall be
obligated to shoulder the pay-outs for all winnings from said tickets sold beginning April 1, 2015. In
consideration for the OMOA, PGEC agreed to pay POSC a guaranteed fixed monthly fee of

P4.0 million starting April 2015. This fee is included as part of “Commission and distribution
income” under “Revenues” in the consolidated statements of income.

POSC shall continue to pay the share of PCSO and the cash bond pursuant to the MOA, however,
PGEC agreed to guarantee payment of the share of PCSO to POSC beginning April 2015. An
existing consultancy agreement between POSC and PGEC for the scratch ticket operations was
immediately terminated upon execution of the OMOA.

The MOA with POSC expired on November 30, 2016 and the OMOA with PGEC also expired
accordingly. All tickets distributed to the retailers and agents, shall be allowed to be marketed

continuously until fully sold and the corresponding winnings thereof shall be honored and paid even
after the period of the MOA with PCSO.

TGTI Equipment Rental

TGTTI has an ELA with PCSO which provides for the lease of the equipment for PCSO’s “Online
KENO” games. The lease is for a period of ten (10) years commencing on October 1, 2010, the date
of actual operation of at least 150 “Online KENO” outlets. The rental fee, presented as “Equipment
rental” in the consolidated statements of income, is based on a percentage of the gross sales of the
“Online KENO” terminals or a fixed annual rental of 40,000 per terminal in commercial operation,
whichever is higher. The ELA may be extended and/or renewed upon the mutual consent of the
parties.

On July 15, 2008, TGTI and PCSO agreed on some amendments to the ELA. Under the terms of the
Amended ELA, TGTI shall provide the services of telecommunications integrator and procure
supplies for the “Online KENO” operations of PCSO in Luzon and VISMIN areas. In consideration
for such services, PCSO shall pay additional fee based on a certain percentage of the gross sales from
all “Online KENO” terminals in operation in Luzon and VISMIN areas computed by PCSO and
payable bi-weekly. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, there are 2,400 and 2,020 “Online KENO”
terminals in operation, respectively.
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POSC’s Consultancy Agreements, Scientific Games, Intralot, Management Agreement

a.

Consultancy Agreements

POSC and its subsidiaries hired the services of several consultants for its gaming operations.
Consultancy fees are based on a certain percentage of the gross amount of ticket sales of certain
variants of lottery operations of PCSO.

Scientific Games

On February 15, 2005, POSC entered into a contract with Scientific Games, a company
incorporated under the laws of the Republic of Ireland, for the supply of computer hardware and
operating system software. Under the terms of the “Contract for the Supply of the Visayas-
Mindanao Online Lottery System (CVMOLS),” Scientific Games provided 900 online lottery
terminals and terminal software necessary for POSC’s leasing operations. In consideration,
POSC shall pay Scientific Games a pre-agreed percentage of its revenue from PCSO’s conduct of
online lottery games using the computer hardware and operating system provided by Scientific
Games. The Contract shall continue as long as POSC’s ELA with PCSO is in effect.

On October 2, 2012, POSC and Scientific Games amended the contract to extend the period from
April 1, 2013 until August 31, 2015, and for the supply of additional terminals for the 2012
Amended ELA.

On November 20, 2015, POSC and Scientific Games further amended the contract to extend the
period from September 1, 2015 until July 31, 2018 and for Scientific Games to supply 1,500
brand new terminals to POSC. The amended contract also removed the provision for the Inactive
Terminal Fee of US$25.00 per terminal per month for any additional terminals not connected to
the software provided by Scientific Games.

Intralot

i)  On March 13, 2006, POSC entered into a contract with Intralot, a company incorporated
under the laws of Greece, for the supply of online lottery system necessary for the operation
of a new online lottery system effective December 8, 2006. Under the terms of the
CVMOLS, Intralot provided POSC the hardware, operating system software and terminals
and the required training. In consideration, POSC shall pay Intralot a pre-agreed percentage
of the revenue generated by the terminals from PCSO’s conduct of online lottery operation or
a fixed amount of US$110 per terminal per month, whichever is higher. The contract shall
continue as long as POSC’s ELA with PCSO is in effect.

On July 10, 2006, Intralot entered into an agreement with Intralot Inc., a subsidiary domiciled
in Atlanta, Georgia, wherein Intralot assigned to Intralot, Inc. the whole of its contract with
POSC, including all its rights and obligations arising from it.

On August 16, 2012, POSC and Intralot further agreed to amend the supply agreement for the
latter to supply reconditioned or refurbished lotto terminals to the former. These additional
terminals are ordered to enable POSC to serve the requirements of PCSO in the 2012
Amended ELA. However, POSC has the option to order from Intralot brand new lotto
terminals at a higher price per unit. POSC paid Intralot a pre-agreed percentage of the
revenue generated by the terminals from PCSO’s online lottery operations in Luzon or
US$110.00 per terminal, whichever is higher.
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On September 6, 2013, POSC and Intralot further agreed to amend the supply agreement for
the latter to provide for additional terminals to enable POSC to expand its online lottery
operations. Furthermore, effective April 1, 2013, POSC and Intralot agreed to lower the
percentage of revenues paid by the former to the latter.

In April 2016, POSC and Intralot again amended the contract for Intralot to supply additional
reconditioned or refurbished lotto terminals to POSC and extend the term of the contract until
August 31, 2018.

ii)  TGTI has a contract with Intralot effective until September 30, 2020 for the supply of online
lottery system (lottery equipment) accounted for as a finance lease. TGTI is being charged a
certain percentage of equipment rental from the revenue from PCSO. On July 15, 2008, the
Lease Contract between TGTI and Intralot was modified such that instead of receiving
monthly remuneration calculated on a percentage basis of the gross receipts of TGTI from its
ELA, Intralot now receive monthly remuneration calculated on a percentage basis of the
gross receipts of PCSO from its “Online KENO” games. On March 22, 2011, the Lease
Contract between or US$60 per terminal per month, whichever is higher and Intralot was
further modified to reduce the percentage charged by Intralot to TGTI and that TGTI
undertakes a letter of guarantee amounting to £20.0 million not later than March 28, 2011 in
order for TGTI to secure the payment of Intralot’s remuneration. The said guarantee bond is
recognized under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of
financial position.

d. Management Agreement

POSC and TGTI entered into a Management Agreement with AB Gaming and Leisure Exponent
Specialist, Inc. for the latter to provide investment and management counsel and to act as
manager and overseer of its operations. In consideration of the Manager’s services, POSC shall
pay a monthly fee of 0.1 million and an amount equivalent to ten percent (10%) of the annual
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization (EBITDA) while TGTI will pay a
certain percentage of its EBITDA.

Software and license fee recognized as part of “Cost of services” arising from Scientific Games
contract and Intralot contracts above amounted to B191.7 million, 186.6 million and £90.4 million
in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 22).

Consultancy and management fees recognized under “Consultancy fees” as part of “Cost of services”
amounted to £136.6 million, 122.8 million and £24.6 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively
(see Note 22). Consultancy fees recognized under “Professional, service and management fees™ as
part of “General and Administrative Expenses” amounted to nil, £20.5 million, and nil in 2017, 2016
and 2015, respectively (see Note 23).

32.

Contingencies

a) The Parent Company is a party to a civil case filed by Metroplex before the Court of Appeals
(CA) to review the February 26, 2009 Order of the SEC denying the Metroplex petition to nullify
the approval of the reduction of the capital stock of the Parent Company (see Note 31). On
July 17, 2013, CA sustained the ruling of the SEC, thus Metroplex filed a petition for review with
the Supreme Court on September 4, 2014. As at February 23, 2018, the Supreme Court has yet to
resolve this petition. However, as discussed in Note 31, the cancellation of the Swap Agreement
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was implemented following the Parent Company’s filing with the SEC of a Notice of Withdrawal
of the Memorandum of Appeal filed on June 20, 2013.

b) The management is still assessing the possible impact of the on-going litigation between
Philippine Gaming Management Corporation (PGMC) and PCSO that, if resolved in favor of
PGMC, would have the effect of cancelling the existing terminals currently operating in Luzon,
as leased by POSC to PCSO.

On September 5, 2012, a Writ of Preliminary Injunction (Injunction) was issued by Branch 143 of
the Regional Trial Court (RTC) of Makati. The Injunction orders PCSO to refrain from: 1)
implementing, enforcing or exercising any right arising from the 2012 ELA between the POSC
and PCSO; 2) ordering or allowing POSC, or any third party, to install or operate any equipment,
computer or terminal relating to on-line lottery operations in Luzon; and 3) committing any act
that in any way violates or otherwise interferes with the ELA between PGMC and PCSO. POSC
has filed a case with the Supreme Court to nullify the Injunction.

On July 17, 2013, the Supreme Court decided on the case brought forth by POSC that it be
consolidated with the case between PGMC and PCSO, thus making POSC a party to the case
which is now pending before the CA. Meanwhile, PGMC and PCSO have entered into an
Interim Settlement whereby they agreed, among others, to maintain the status quo insofar as the
POSC terminals already installed in Luzon are concerned. POSC’s Request for Arbitration dated
May 12, 2014 was denied by the International Court of Arbitration on July 17, 2014, due to
PCSO’s opposition. An Urgent Motion to Resolve was filed by POSC with the CA to compel the
court to issue an order to PGMC and PCSO to include the POSC in the negotiations.

On January 29, 2016, PCSO filed a Manifestation with Motion to Dismiss dated January 12,
2016, stating that the presiding Judge approved PGMC and PCSO's "Interim Settlement" dated
December 11, 2013 wherein it was agreed that the case will be archived pending arbitration.
PCSO also averred that, on December 13, 2015, PGMC and PCSO executed a "Supplemental and
Status Quo Agreement" wherein the parties agreed to dismiss all pending judicial and civil
actions between them but shall continue with the arbitration proceedings. Thus, pursuant to the
agreement, PCSO prayed for the dismissal of this case which was eventually dismissed by virtue
of the Resolution dated March 1, 2016.

On September 13, 2016, POSC filed a Memorandum with the CA. The case is now submitted for
the resolution. As at February 23, 2018, the case is still pending with the Court of Appeals.

33. Events after the Reporting Period
On February 23, 2018, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends of

£0.04391 per share amounting to approximately £1,388.8 million to shareholders of record as at
March 10, 2018. Payments will be made on March 23, 2018.
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34. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Changes in Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

December 31,

January 1, 2017 Additions Cash flows Finance charges 2017

Dividends payable P- P1,041,930,481 (P1,041,930,481) P P
Obligations under

finance lease 119,342,596 6,437,551 (61,777,018) 10,859,855 74,862,984

Total liabilities from
financing activities P119,342,596 £1,048,368,032 (R1,103,707,499) 210,859,855 P74,862,984

Finance charges pertains to accretion of obligations under finance lease.

Noncash Activities

The following are the noncash activities in 2017:

a. Additions to property and equipment amounting to 6.4 million from lease of lottery equipment
accounted for as finance lease.

b. Net assets from the acquisition of LCC subsidiaries (see Note 16).

The following are the noncash activities in 2015:

a. Application of notes receivable principal amount of £1,000.0 million as partial payment of PLC
on its purchase of POSC shares from Belle.

b. Net assets acquired from step acquisition of POSC (see Note 16).

The Company has no significant noncash activity in 2016.
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PREMIUM LEISURE CORP.

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings

Available for Dividend Declaration
As at December 31, 2017

Unappropriated retained earnings, as adjusted to available for
dividend distribution, at December 31, 2016
Net income during the year closed to retained earnings

Less: Dividend declarations during the year

SCHEDULE I

P1,099,931,067
1,497,043,406

(888,727,411)

Total retained earnings as at December 31, 2017 available for dividend declaration

P1,708,247,062




SCHEDULE I1

PREMIUM LEISURE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
List of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs) and
Interpretations Effective as at December 31, 2017

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS Adopted
Effective as of December 31, 2017

Not Not
Adopted | Applicable

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements v
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative
characteristics

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary v

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting v
(Revised) Standards

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or v
Associate

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time 4
Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters

\

Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans

Amendments to PFRS 1: Borrowing Costs
Amendment to PFRS 1: Meaning of Effective PFRSs

N INIENEN

PFRS 2 Share-based Payment

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-
based Payment Transactions

\

Amendment to PFRS 2: Definition of Vesting
Condition

Amendments to PFRS 2: Share-based Payment,
Classification and Measurement of Share-based Not Early Adopted
Payment Transactions*

PFRS 3 Business Combinations v
(Revised)

Amendment to PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent v
Consideration in a Business Combination

Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions for Joint v
Arrangements
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS
Effective as of December 31, 2017

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not

Applicable

PFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

v

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guarantee Contracts

v

Amendments to PFRS 4: Applying PFRS 9 with
PFRS 4*

Not Early Adopted

PFRS 5

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

Amendments to PFRS 5: Changes in Methods of
Disposals

PFRS 6

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

PFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification
of Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification
of Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Servicing
Contracts

Amendments to PFRS 7:
Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to
Condensed Interim Financial Statements

PFRS 8

Operating Segments

Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation of Operating
Segments and Reconciliation of the Total of the
Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets

PFRS 9

Financial Instruments*

Not Early Adopted

Amendments to PFRS 9: Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation*

Not Early Adopted
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS Adopted
Effective as of December 31, 2017

Not Not
Adopted | Applicable

PFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements v

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27:
Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28:
Applying the Consolidation Exception

PFRS 11 Joint Arrangements v

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions v
of Interests in Joint Operations

PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities v

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27:
Investment Entities

Amendment to PFRS 12: Clarification of the Scope of
the Standard

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28:
Applying the Consolidation Exception

PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement v

Amendment to PFRS 13: Short-term Receivables and
Payables

Amendment to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception v

PFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts v

PFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers* Not Early Adopted

PFRS 16 Leases* Not Early Adopted

Philippine Accounting Standards

PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements v
(Revised)

Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures v

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of Other v
Comprehensive Income

Amendments to PAS 1: Clarification of the
requirements for comparative information

\

Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure Initiative

PAS 2 Inventories

PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

N INENEN

Amendments to PAS 7: Disclosure Initiatives

PAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors

\

PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period v
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND Not Not
INTERPRETATIONS Adopted Adopted | Applicable
Effective as of December 31, 2017 p pp
PAS 11 Construction Contracts 4
PAS 12 Income Taxes v

Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of v

Underlying Assets

Amendments to PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax v

Assets for Unrealized Losses
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment v

Amendments to PAS 16: Classification of servicing v

equipment

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Revaluation

Method - Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated v

Depreciation and Amortization

Amendment to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarification of v

Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

Amendment to PAS 16 and PAS 41: Bearer Plants 4
PAS 17 Leases v
PAS 18 Revenue v
PAS 19 Employee Benefits v
(Amended) Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial Gains and Losses, v

Group Plans and Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans: v

Employee Contribution

Amendments to PAS 19: Regional Market Issue v

Regarding Discount Rate
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of v

Government Assistance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates v

Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation v
PAS 23 Borrowing Costs v
(Revised)
PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures v
(Revised) Amendments to PAS 24: Key Management Personnel v
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans v
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS Adopted
Effective as of December 31, 2017

Not Not
Adopted | Applicable

PAS 27 Separate Financial Statements 4

(Amended) I\ dments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27:
Investment Entities

Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures v

(Amended) T, - cndments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28: L,
Applying the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or

Joint Venture at Fair Value* Not Early Adopted

Amendments to PAS 28: Long-term Interests in

Associates and Joint Ventures* Not Early Adopted

PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies v

PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation v

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues v

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 32: Tax effect of distribution to
holders of equity instruments

PAS 33 Earnings per Share v

PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting v

Amendments to PAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting
and Segment Information for Total Assets and 4
Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 34: Disclosure of Information v
‘Elsewhere in the Interim Financial Report’

PAS 36 Impairment of Assets v

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount v
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent v
Assets

PAS 38 Intangible Assets 4

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Revaluation
Method - Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated v
Depreciation and Amortization

Amendment to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS Adopted
Effective as of December 31, 2017

Not Not
Adopted | Applicable

PAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement v

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial 4
Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
of Forecast Intragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option v

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guarantee Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification
of Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification
of Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation v
IFRIC 9 and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items v

Amendments to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and v
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

PAS 40 Investment Property 4

Amendments to PAS 40: Clarifying the
Interrelationship between PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when
Classifying Property as Investment Property or Owner-
Occupied Property

Amendments to PAS 40: Transfers of Investment

Property* Not Early Adopted

PAS 41 Agriculture 4
Amendment to PAS 16 and PAS 41: Bearer Plants v

Philippine Interpretations

IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration v
and Similar Liabilities

IFRIC 2 Members’ Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar
Instruments

IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a v
Lease

IFRIC § Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, v
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

IFRIC 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific v
Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND Not Not
INTERPRETATIONS Adopted |, o 0 ed | A i bl
Effective as of December 31, 2017 opte ppiicable
IFRIC 8 Scope of PFRS 2 v
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives v
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation v
IFRIC 9 and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment v
IFRIC 11 PFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions v
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements v
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes v
IFRIC 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum v
Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC 14, v
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation 4
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners v
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers v
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity v
Instruments
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface v
Mine
IFRIC 21 Levies v
IFRIC 22 Forelgn anency Transactions and Advance Not Early Adopted
Consideration*
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment™* Not Early Adopted
SIC-7 Introduction of the Euro 4
SIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to v
Operating Activities
SIC-12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities v
Amendment to SIC 12: Scope of SIC 12 v
SIC-13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary v
Contributions by Venturers
SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives v
SIC-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity v
or its Shareholders
SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the v
Legal Form of a Lease
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SIC-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures v

SIC-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising v
Services

SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v

* Standards and interpretations which will become effective subsequent to December 31, 2017.

Note: Standards and interpretations tagged as “Not Applicable” are those standards and interpretations
which were adopted but the entity has no significant covered transaction as at and for the year
ended December 31, 2017.
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PREMIUM LEISURE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Financial Soundness Indicators
December 31, 2017

SCHEDULE 1V

Ratios

Formula

2017

2016

Current Ratio

Asset-to-Equity Ratio

Return on Asset

Return on Equity

Debt-to-Equity Ratio

Interest Rate
Coverage Ratio

Current assets

Current liabilities

Total assets

Total stockholders’
equity

Net income

Average total assets

Net income

Average total
stockholders’ equity

Total interest-
bearing debt

Total stockholders’
equity

Earnings before
interest, tax,
depreciation and
amortization

Interest expense

3.93

1.09

11.27%

12.04%

0.004

239.15

6.24

1.04

6.95%

7.22%

0.01

149.19



SCHEDULE V

PREMIUM LEISURE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Supplementary Schedules Required by Paragraph 6D, Part 11
Under SRC Rule 68, As Amended (2011)

December 31, 2017
Schedule A. Financial Assets
Number of Value based on
shares or market
principal amount Amount shown quotations at Interest
Name of issuing entity and of bonds and  inthe balance  balance sheet received
description of each issue notes sheet date and accrued

Loans and receivables

Cash and cash equivalents £2,962,635,687 £2,962,635,687 N/A $P21,158,050
Notes receivable 1,605,925,000 1,605,925,000 N/A 54,759,963

Receivables 700,656,306 700,656,306 N/A

Guarantee bonds 35,000,000 35,000,000 N/A
£5,339,216,993 £5,304,216,993 £75,918,013

Investments held for trading
APC Group, Inc. 48,000,000 23,040,000 23,040,000 -
Leisure & Resorts World Corp 10,924,792 43,480,672 43,480,672 _
Vantage Equities, Inc. 43,376,750 53,787,170 53,787,170 _
LRWC Preferred Shares 50,000,000 52,000,000 52,000,000 _
LRWC Warrants 2,500,000 6,175,000 6,175,000 -
178,482,842 —
AFS Investments
Belle Corporation 166,550,719 646,216,790 646,216,790 —
Tagaytay Highlands

International Golf Club 2 1,200,000 1,200,000 -
Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club 2 1,100,000 1,100,000 -
Asian Petroleum 11,100 _
PLDT 70,000 _
648,597,890 —
£6,131,297,725 £75,918,013




SCHEDULE V

Schedule B. Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, and Principal
Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)

Balance of Amounts Balance at

Name and Designation Beginning of Amounts Written Not end of

of debtor Period Additions collected off Current Current period
Advances to officers

and employees P6,374,244 P5,443,823 (21,799,002) P- 210,019,065 P- 210,019,065

Schedule C. Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are eliminated during the
consolidation of financial statements

Name and Balance of Allowance for Balance at
Designation of Beginning Amounts doubtful Non end of
debtor of Period Additions collected accounts Current Current period

Foundation Capital
Resources, Inc.

(Subsidiary) P266,969,710 P P- (P260,145,827) P P6,823,883 P6,823,883
Pacific Online Systems

Corporation

(Subsidiary) - 179,424,322  (134,568,241) - 44,856,081 - 44,856,081

PremiumLeisure
and Amusement,
Inc. (Subsidiary)
Premium Leisure Corp.
(Parent) 29,733,991 - (14,472) - - 29,719,519 29,719,519

1,548,800,000 (1,548,800,000) - - - -

Schedule D. Intangible Assets - Other Assets

Other
Charged to Charged to Charges
Beginning Additions at cost and other additions
Description balance cost expenses accounts (deductions) Ending balance

License P£9,906,544,455 P-  (P238,472,484) P P- $9,668,071,971
Goodwill 1,828,577,952 3,682,782 - - - 1,832,260,734

Schedule E. Long Term Debt

Amount shown under  Amount shown under

caption "Current portion caption "Long Term

Amount authorized by of long-term debt" in Debt" in related balance

Title of Issue and type of obligation indenture related balance sheet sheet"
Obligations under finance lease P £39,488,510 P35,374,474

Schedule F. Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-Term Loans from Related Companies)

Balance at Balance at
beginning of period end of period
None P P




SCHEDULE V

Schedule G. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers

Name of issuing Amount
entity of securities owned by
guaranteed by the Title of issue of Total amount person
company for which each class of  guaranteed for which
this statement is securities and statement Nature of
filed guaranteed  outstanding is filed Guarantee
None - - - -
Schedule H. Capital Stock
Number of Number of
shares shares
issued and reserved for
outstanding options,
as shown warrants, Number of
Number of  under related conversion shares Directors,
Shares balance and other held by related officers and
Title of Issue authorized  sheet caption rights parties employees Others

Common stock
Preferred stock

37,630,000,000 31,627,310,000
6,000,000,000 -

— 24,904,904,328 39,409,007 6,682,996,665



	Investment in an AssociateAn associate is an entity in which the Company has significant influence.  Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.  The consideration made in determining significant influence are similar to those necessary to determine control over subsidiaries.  Investment in an associate is accounted for under the equity method.
	The consolidated retained earnings includes the earnings of the subsidiaries which are not available for dividend declaration.
	The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
	Determination of Impairment of AFS Financial Assets.  The Company determines that AFS financial assets are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists.  The Company determines that a decline in fair value of greater than 20% of cost is considered to be a significant decline and a decline for a period of more than 12 months is considered to be a prolonged decline.  This determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgment.  In making this judgment, the Company evaluates, among other factors, the normal volatility in share price for quoted equities.  In addition, AFS financial assets are considered impaired when management believes that future cash flows generated from the investment is expected to decline significantly.  The Company’s management makes significant estimates and assumptions on the future cash flows expected and the appropriate discount rate to determine if impairment exists.  Impairment may also be appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance.
	No provision for impairment loss was recognized in 2017, 2016 and 2015.  The carrying values of AFS financial assets amounted to 648.6 million and 657.4 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 13).
	No provision for impairment loss on noncurrent asset held for sale, intangible asset and property and equipment was recognized in 2017, 2016 and 2015.
	Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets.  Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax credits and NOLCO to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.  Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
	255
	6,974
	179,986,807
	2017
	2016
	1,717,643,956
	1,717,643,956
	3,682,782
	–
	727,968,788
	223,889,107
	268,863,737
	–
	65,855,180
	67,825,050
	55,742,294
	51,712,222
	27,265,480
	4,274,311
	12,343,677
	21,018,280
	2,680,828
	–
	2017
	2016
	6,941,634,391
	6,941,634,391
	297,087,533
	7,238,721,924
	2,171,573,454






	1%
	(1%)
	1%
	(1%)
	1,641,680
	(1,641,680)
	5,196,681
	(5,196,681)
	5%
	5%
	5%
	(5%)
	8,924,142
	(8,924,142)
	8,291,536
	(8,291,536)
	2017
	2016
	2015
	17,985,425,379
	16,084,424,756
	15,628,707,220
	On February 18, 2002, PLC’s stockholders approved the cancellation of 3,870,000,000 shares held by Metroplex.  However, Metroplex failed to deliver the stock certificates for cancellation covering the 2,000,000,000 shares of their total shareholdings.  PLC again presented to its stockholders the reduction of its authorized capital stock to the extent of 1,870,000,000 shares, which were already delivered by Metroplex.  On June 3, 2005, the stockholders approved the cancellation and delisting of the 1,870,000,000 shares.  On March 28, 2006, the SEC formally approved PLC’s application for the capital reduction and cancellation of the 1,870,000,000 PLC shares.  The application to delist the said shares was also approved by the PSE.








